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Under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme described in this Offering Circular (the “ Programme”), Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (“Mitsui & Co.”) and Mitsui & Co. Financial Services
(Asia) Ltd. (“Mitsui Asia’, together with Mitsui & Co., the “Issuers’ and each, in relation to Notes (as defined below) issued by it, an “Issuer”), subject to compliance with all
relevant laws, regulations and directives, from time to time, may issue Euro Medium Term Notes (the “Notes’) denominated in such currencies as may be agreed with the
Dealers (as defined below). The Notes will have maturities from one month to 30 years from the date of issue (the “ Settlement Date”) (except as set out herein). Subject as set out
herein, the maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding will not exceed U.S.$5,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies at the time
of agreement to issue subject as further set out herein). Notes issued by Mitsui Asia will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed as to payment of principal, interest and
any additional amounts by Mitsui & Co. (in such capacity, the “Guarantor”). This Offering Circular supersedes all previous offering circulars and prospectuses issued in
connection with the Programme. Any Notes issued under the Programme on or after the date of this Offering Circular are issued subject to the provisions herein. This Offering
Circular does not affect any Notes issued prior to the date hereof.

The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Dealers specified in “Overview of the Programme” and any additional Dealer appointed under the
Programme from time to time, which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis (each a “ Dealer” and together the “ Dealers’). References in this Offering
Circular to the “relevant Dealers’ shall, in the context of an issue of Notes being (or intended to be) subscribed by more than one Dealer, be to all Dealers so subscribing.

Application has been made to the Financial Conduct Authority in its capacity as competent authority under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (“FSMA”") (the “UK
Listing Authority”) for Notes issued under the Programme within 12 months of the date of this Offering Circular to be admitted to the official list of the UK Listing Authority
(the “Official List”) and to the London Stock Exchange plc (the “London Stock Exchange”) for such Notes to be admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange's
Professional Securities Market (the “Market”). References in this Offering Circular to Notes being “listed” (and all related references) shall mean that such Notes have been
admitted to trading on the Market and have been admitted to the Official List. The Market is not a regulated market for the purposes of Article 4.1(14) of Directive 2004/39/EC
of the European Parliament and of the Council on markets in financial instruments. Unlisted Notes may also be issued pursuant to the Programme. The relevant Final Terms (as
defined in the “ Overview of the Programme”) in respect of the issue of any Notes will specify whether or not such Notes will be listed on the Official List and admitted to trading
on the Market (or any other stock exchange).

Information contained in this Offering Circular relating to unlisted Notes is not required to comply with the Financial Conduct Authority’s Listing Rules and has not
been reviewed or approved by the UK Listing Authority.

The Notes shall be issued in bearer form or in registered form. Each Tranche (as defined in the “Overview of the Programme”) of Notes in bearer form will initially be
represented on issue by a temporary Global Note or a permanent Global Note (each a “Global Note”). Each Tranche of Notes in registered form will initially be represented on
issue by aregistered global certificate (a“Global Certificate”) representing one or more Tranches of the same Series (as defined in “ Overview of the Programme”). Each Global
Note and each Global Certificate will be deposited (a) in the case of a Tranche intended to be cleared through Euroclear (as defined below) and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as
defined below), on or about the Settlement Date with a common depositary on behalf of Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, S.A. (“Clearstream,
Luxembourg”) (together, the “Common Depositary”) and (b) in the case of a Tranche intended to be cleared through a clearing system other than or in addition to Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg or delivered outside a clearing system, as otherwise agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s). Interests in temporary Global Notes
will be exchangeable for interests in permanent Global Notes, or if so stated in the relevant Final Terms, for definitive Notes in bearer form (“ Definitive Notes) but, if the D
Rules (as defined herein) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code apply, only on or after the Note Exchange Date, upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership and U.S.
securities law matters (if applicable), and interests in permanent Global Notes may be exchangeable for Definitive Notes, in each case, as described in the “Summary of
Provisions Relating to the Notes while in Global Form”. Global Certificates will be exchangeable for definitive registered certificates (“ Definitive Certificates’) representing a
Noteholder’s entire holding of Notes in registered form as described in the “ Summary of Provisions Relating to the Notes while in Global Form”.

Tranches of Notes may be rated or unrated. Where a Tranche of Notes is rated, the ratings will be specified in the Final Terms. Such rating will not necessarily be the same as
ratings assigned to the Programme. Mitsui & Co. has been rated long-term: AA-/short-term: a-1+ by Rating and Investment Information, Inc., long-term: A3/short-term: P-2 by
Moody’s Japan K.K. and long-term: A/short-term: A-1 by Standard & Poor’'s Ratings Japan K.K. The Programme is rated AA- by Rating and Investment Information, Inc., is
rated A3 by Moody’s Japan K.K. and israted A by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Japan K.K. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to
suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

An Issuer may agree with any Dealer(s) that Notes may be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes herein, in which event an offering
circular, if appropriate, will be made available which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in relation to such Notes.

Prospective investor s should have regard to the factors described under the section headed “ Risk Factors® in this Offering Circular.

Arrangers
Nomura Nomura Singapore Limited
Dealers
BofA Merrill Lynch Citigroup
Daiwa Capital M arkets Eur ope Goldman Sachs I nter national
HSBC J.P.Morgan
Mizuho Securities Morgan Stanley
MUFG Nomura
Nomura Singapore Limited SMBC Nikko Capital Markets Limited

The date of this Offering Circular is 7th September, 2016.



This Offering Circular comprises listing particulars in relation to each Issuer and the Guarantor given in
compliance with the listing rules made under Section 73A(2) of the FSMA by the UK Listing Authority and for
the purpose of giving information with regard to each Issuer, the Guarantor, the Guarantor’s consolidated
subsidiaries (together with the Guarantor, “ Mitsui”) and the Notes, which, according to the nature of each
Issuer, the Guarantor and the Notes, is necessary to enable investors to make an informed assessment of the
assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses and prospects of the relevant Issuer and the
Guarantor and the rights attaching to the Notes.

Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Offering
Circular. To the best of the knowledge and belief of each Issuer and the Guarantor (each of whom has taken
all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Offering Circular isin
accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

This Offering Circular is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are incorporated herein by
reference (see “ Documents Incor porated by Reference” below).

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those
contained in this Offering Circular in connection with the issue or sale of the Notes and, if given or made,
such other information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers,
the Guarantor or any of the Dealers or the Arrangers (as defined in “ Overview of the Programme” ). Neither
the delivery of this Offering Circular nor any sale made in connection herewith shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuers or the
Guarantor since the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been most recently
amended or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position of the Issuers or
the Guarantor since the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been most recently
amended or supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is
correct as of any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the
document containing the same.

The distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering or sale of the Notes in certain jurisdictions may be
restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Offering Circular comes are required by the Issuers, the
Guarantor, the Dealers and the Arrangers to inform themselves about and to observe any such restriction.
The Notes and the Guarantee (if applicable) have not been and will not be registered under the United Sates
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “ Securities Act” ) and include Notes that are subject to U.S. tax law
requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United
Sates or its possessions or to U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation Sunder the Securities Act and Section
7701(a)(30) of the United Sates Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internal Revenue
Code")).

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (as
defined in “ Subscription and Sale€” ) and the Notes issued by Mitsui & Co. are subject to the Special Taxation
Measures Law (as defined in “ Taxation - Japanese Taxation” ). The Notes may not be offered or sold in Japan
or to residents of Japan or to others for re-offering or re-sale, directly or indirectly, in Japan, except pursuant
to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Law to certain financial ingtitutions and persons holding Notes through such
institutions. Interest payments on the Notes issued by Mitsui & Co. generally will be subject to Japanese
withholding tax unless the holder establishes that such Notes are held by or for the account of a holder that is
(i) for Japanese tax purposes, not an individual resident of Japan or a Japanese corporation, or an individual
non-resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation that is a person having a special relationship with
Mitsui & Co. as Issuer as described in Article 6, Paragraph 4 of the Special Taxation Measures Law (the
“ gpecially related person of Mitsui & Co.”), or (ii) a Japanese designated financial institution described in



Article 6, Paragraph 9 of the Special Taxation Measures Law which complies with the requirement for tax
exemption under that Paragraph, see “ Taxation-Japanese Taxation” below.

Each purchaser of Notes issued by Mitsui & Co. in the initial distribution of such Notes is deemed to
represent that it is not a specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.

This Offering Circular is not a prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive. This Offering Circular
has been prepared on the basis that any offer of Notes in any Member Sate of the European Economic Area
which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a “ Relevant Member Sate” ) will be made pursuant to
an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member Sate, from the
reguirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes.

For a description of certain restrictions on offers and sales of Notes and on distribution of this Offering
Circular, see* Subscription and Sale” .

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of the Issuers, the
Guarantor or the Dealersto subscribe for or purchase any Notes.

None of the Dealers or the Arrangers accept any responsibility for the contents of this Offering Circular or
for any other statement, made or purported to be made by the Arrangers or a Dealer or on its behalf in
connection with the Issuers, the Guarantor or the issue and offering of the Notes. The Arrangers and each
Dealer accordingly disclaim all and any liability whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise which it
might otherwise have in respect of this Offering Circular or any such statement.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any other financial statements are intended to provide the basis of any
credit or other evaluation and should not be considered as a recommendation by any of the Issuers, the
Guarantor, the Arrangers or the Dealers that any recipient of this Offering Circular or any financial
statements should purchase the Notes. Each potential purchaser of Notes should determine for itself the
relevance of the information contained in this Offering Circular and its purchase of Notes should be based
upon such investigation as it deems necessary. None of the Dealers or the Arrangers undertakes to review the
financial condition or affairs of the Issuers or the Guarantor during the life of the arrangements contemplated
by this Offering Circular nor to advise any investor or potential investor in the Notes of any information
coming to the attention of any of the Dealers or the Arrangers.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the stabilising
manager () (the “ Sabilising Manager(s)” ) (or persons acting on behalf of any Sabilising Manager(s)) in the
applicable Final Terms may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price
of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail for a limited period after the Settlement
Date. However, there is no assurance that the Sabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a
Sabilising Manager) will undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the
date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche is made and, if
begun, may be ended at any time and must be brought to an end after a limited period.

In this Offering Circular, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, references to “ euro”
and “ €" are to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of the European economic and monetary
union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended from time to time. References
to “Yen” and “¥’ are to Japanese yen, references to “ Serling”, “ Pounds’ and “£" are to United Kingdom
pounds sterling, referencesto “ S$” are to Singapore dollars, references to “ Chinese Yuan” ,“ Renminbi” and
“CNH" are to the currency of the People’'s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this Offering Circular,
shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’'s Republic of China and
Taiwan (“ PRC"), references to “ Roubles’ are to the currency of the Russian Federation, references to
“ Australian dollars’ and “ AUD” are to the currency of Australia, and referencesto “ U.S dollars’, “ U.S$"

and “$’ areto United Satesdollars.



Documents I ncor por ated by Reference

This Offering Circular should be read and construed in conjunction with:

(A) the audited consolidated financial statements of Mitsui & Co. for the year ended 31st March, 2015
(and the audit report thereon) included on pages 120 to 183 (inclusive) and on pages 186 and 187 of
Mitsui & Co.’sAnnual Securities Report in English for the year ended 31st March, 2015;

(B) the audited consolidated financial statements of Mitsui & Co. for the year ended 31st March, 2016
(and the audit report thereon) included on pages 123 to 186 (inclusive) and on pages 189 and 190 of
Mitsui & Co.’sAnnual Securities Report in English for the year ended 31st March, 2016;

(© the audited financial statements of Mitsui Asia for the year ended 31st March, 2015, together with
the relevant audit report relating thereto; and

(D) each of the terms and conditions of the Notes as contained in the following:

Q) pages 26 to 56 (inclusive) of the offering circular relating to the Programme dated 1st
September, 2011,

(i)  pages 27 to 56 (inclusive) of the offering circular relating to the Programme dated 3rd
September, 2012;

(iii)  pages 26 to 53 (inclusive) of the offering circular relating to the Programme dated 3rd
September, 2013;

(iv) pages 27 to 54 (inclusive) of the offering circular relating to the Programme dated 3rd
September, 2014; and

(v) pages 26 to 52 (inclusive) of the offering circular relating to the Programme dated 7th
September, 2015,

respectively, each of which has been previously published or are published simultaneously with this Offering
Circular and which have been approved by the Financial Conduct Authority or filed with it. Such documents
shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Offering Circular, save that any statement contained in a
document which is incorporated by reference herein shall be modified or superseded for the purpose of this
Offering Circular to the extent that a statement contained herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement
(whether expresdly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except
as so modified or superseded, congtitute a part of this Offering Circular. Any documents themselves
incorporated by reference in the documents incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular shall not form
part of this Offering Circular. Only the sections or pages of the documents referred to above shal be
incorporated by reference in, and form part of, this Offering Circular. Any sections or pages which have been
omitted therefrom are either not relevant for the investor or covered elsewhere in this Offering Circular.

Copies of documentsincorporated by reference in this Offering Circular may be obtained without charge from
the registered office of Mitsui & Co. being, at the date hereof, 1-3, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
100-8631, the offices of Citibank, N.A., London Branch, as Issuing and Principal Paying Agent being, at the
date hereof, 13th Floor, Citigroup Centre, Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5L B, and are available
on the website of the Regulatory News Service operated by the London Stock Exchange at
www.|ondonstockexchange.com/exchange/news/mar ket-news/mar ket-news-home.html

Supplemental Listing Particulars

Each of the Issuers (in respect of itself) and the Guarantor has given an undertaking with regard to itself to the
Deadlers that, if at any time during the duration of the Programme there is a significant new factor, material



mistake or inaccuracy relating to information contained in this Offering Circular, which is capable of affecting
the assessment of any Notes, whose inclusion would reasonably be required by investors and their
professional advisers, and would reasonably be expected by them to be found in this Offering Circular, for the
purpose of making an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses
and prospects of any of the Issuers or the Guarantor, and the rights attaching to the Notes, the inclusion of
which is required by Section 81 of the FSMA or by the UK Listing Authority, the relevant Issuer shal, or in
the case of the Guarantor it shall direct the relevant Issuer to, prepare an amendment or supplement to this
Offering Circular or publish a replacement Offering Circular for use in connection with any subsegquent
offering of the Notes as may be required by Section 81 of the FSMA and the UK Listing Authority, and shall
supply to each Deadler such number of copies of such supplement hereto as such Dealer may reasonably
request.

General Overview of the Programme

Under the Programme, an Issuer may from time to time issue Notes denominated in any currency (including
euro) and having a maturity of one month to 30 years from the date of original issue, subject as set out herein.
Notes issued by Mitsui Asia will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed as to payment of principal,
interest and any additional amounts by the Guarantor. An overview of the Programme appears in “Overview
of the Programme”. The applicable terms of any Notes will be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer(s) prior to the issue of the Notes and will be set out in the terms and conditions of the Notes
which, as modified and supplemented by the relevant Final Terms with respect of a Tranche, will be endorsed
on such Notes.

This Offering Circular and any supplement will only be valid for listing Notes on the Official List and
admitting them to trading on the Market in an aggregate nominal amount which, when added to the aggregate
nominal amount then outstanding of all Notes previously or simultaneously issued under the Programme,
does not exceed U.S.$5,000,000,000 or its equivalent in other currencies, subject to increases as provided in
the Dealer Agreement (as defined in “Subscription and Sale”). For the purpose of calculating the U.S. dollar
equivalent of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes issued under the Programme from time to time:

(A) the premium of Notes to be redeemed at a premium shall be added to their nominal amount;

(B) the nominal amount of Notes issued at a discount as at any time shall equal their nominal amount or,
if defined and provided for in the Conditions (as defined in “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”) of
such Notes, their Amortised Face Amount (as defined in “Terms and Conditions of the Notes’) as at
such time; and

(© the U.S. dollar equivalent of the nominal amount of Notes denominated in a currency other than U.S.
dollars shall be determined on the basis of the spot rate for the sale of the U.S. dollar against the
purchase of the relevant currency in the London foreign exchange market quoted by any leading
bank, selected by the relevant Issuer, at any time selected by the relevant Issuer during the five-day
period ending on the date of agreement to issue such Notes.

Notes may not be a suitableinvestment for all investors

Each potential investor in any Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

(A) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the relevant Notes, the
merits and risks of investing in the relevant Notes and the information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Offering Circular or any applicable supplement;



(B)

(©

(D)

(E)

have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the relevant Notes and the impact such investment will
have on its overall investment portfolio;

have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
relevant Notes, including where principal or interest is payable in one or more currencies, or where
the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor’s currency;

understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any
relevant indices and financial markets; and

be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicablerisks.

Some Notes are complex financia instruments and such instruments may be purchased as a way to reduce
risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of risk to an investor’s overall
portfolio. A potential investor should not invest in Notes which are complex financial instruments unless it
has the expertise (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) to evaluate how the Notes will perform
under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of such Notes and the impact an investment in
the Notes will have on the potential investor’s overall investment portfolio.
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OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME

The following overview is qualified in its entirety by the remainder of this Offering Circular.

|ssuers.

Guarantor:

Guarantee and Status of the Guarantee:

Description:

Programme Size:

Arrangers.

Dedlers:

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.
Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd.
Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (in the case of Notesissued by Mitsui Asia)

In respect of Notes issued by Mitsui Asia, the Guarantor will
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee payment of all sums
payable by Mitsui Asia under Notes, Receipts and Coupons (as
defined in “Terms and Conditions of the Notes’) issued by
Mitsui Asia (the “Guarantee”). The Guarantee will be a direct,
unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligation of the
Guarantor and will rank equally with al other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness and monetary obligations of the
Guarantor, present and future (subject to certain statutory
exceptions under Japanese law).

Notes issued with the benefit of a Guarantee are referred to
herein as “ Guaranteed Notes’.

Euro Medium Term Note Programme.

Up to U.S.$5,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in other currencies
at the date of issue) aggregate nominal amount of Notes
outstanding at any onetime.

Nomura International plc
Nomura Singapore Limited

Citigroup Globa Markets Limited
Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Limited
Goldman Sachs I nternational

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
J.P. Morgan Securities plc

Merrill Lynch International

Mizuho International plc

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
MUFG Securities EMEA plc

Nomura International plc

Nomura Singapore Limited

SMBC Nikko Capital Markets Limited

The Issuers may from time to time terminate the appointment of
any dedler under the Programme or appoint additional dealers
either in respect of one or more tranches (each a “Tranche”) or
in respect of the whole Programme. References in this Offering
Circular to “Permanent Dealers’ are to the persons listed above
as Dealers and to such additional persons that are appointed as
dedlers in respect of the whole Programme (and whose
appointment has not been terminated) and references to
“Dedlers’ are to al Permanent Dealers and all persons
appointed as a dealer in respect of one or more Tranches.



Issuing and Principal Paying Agent:

Registrar:
Fiscal Agent and Transfer Agent:
Method of Issue:

Issue Price:

Form of Notes:

Clearing Systems:;

Citibank, N.A., London Branch
Citigroup Global Markets Deutschland AG
Citibank, N.A., London Branch

The Notes will be issued on a syndicated or non-syndicated
basis. The Notes will be issued in series (each a “Series’)
having one or more issue dates and on terms otherwise identical
with the other Notes in the Series (or identical other than in
respect of the first payment of interest), the Notes of each Series
being intended to be interchangeable with all other Notes of that
Series. Each Series may be issued in Tranches on the same or
different issue dates. The specific terms of each Tranche (which
will be supplemented, where necessary, with supplemental
terms and conditions and, save in respect of the issue date, issue
price, first payment of interest and nominal amount of the
Tranche, will be identical to the terms of other Tranches of the
same Series) will be set out in the final terms to this Offering
Circular (the “Final Terms”).

Notes may be issued at their nominal amount or at a discount or
premium to their nominal amount.

The Notes shall be issued in bearer form or in registered form.

Each Tranche of Notes in bearer form will initialy be
represented on issue by atemporary Global Note or a permanent
Global Note. Each (i) temporary Global Note will be
exchangeable in whole or in part for interests in a permanent
Global Note or, if so provided in the relevant Final Terms and
subject to such notice period as specified in the relevant Final
Terms, for Definitive Notes and (ii) permanent Global Note will
be exchangeable in whole or in part for Definitive Notes. In the
case of atemporary Globa Note, such exchange shall be made
on or after the Note Exchange Date and upon certification of
non-U.S. beneficial ownership as required by the U.S. Treasury
Regulations and U.S. securities law matters (if applicable).

Each Tranche of Notes in registered form will initialy be
represented on issue by a Global Certificate registered in the
name of a nominee for one or more clearing systems. Each
Global Certificate will be exchangeable for Definitive
Certificates in the limited circumstances specified in such
Global Certificate. Definitive Certificates and Global
Certificates are collectively referred to as “ Certificates’.

Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and, in relation to any
Tranche, such other clearing system as may be agreed between
the relevant Issuer, the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent and
the relevant Dealer(s).

Note: Persons seeking to hold a beneficial interest in CNH
denominated Notes through the Central Moneymarkets Unit
Service (the “CMU”) operated by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority are advised to contact a relevant CMU member to



Initial Delivery of Notes:

Currencies:

Maturities:

Denomination:

Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes:

establish eligibility.

On or before the Settlement Date for each Tranche, the Global
Note or Globa Certificate representing the Notes may be
deposited with (and in the case of a Globa Certificate,
registered in the name of a nominee for) a Common Depositary
for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Global Notes or
Global Certificates may also be deposited with any other
clearing system or may be delivered outside any clearing system
provided that the method of such delivery has been agreed in
advance by the relevant Issuer, the Issuing and Principal Paying
Agent and the relevant Dealer(s).

Subject to compliance with al relevant laws, regulations and
directives, Notes may be issued in any currency agreed between
the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (in the case of Notes issued by
Mitsui Asia) and the relevant Dealer(s).

Subject to compliance with al relevant laws, regulations and
directives, any maturity between one month and 30 years as
may be agreed between the relevant I ssuer, the Guarantor (in the
case of Notes issued by Mitsui Asia) and the relevant Dealer(s)
and as set out in the relevant Final Terms.

At the date of this Offering Circular, it is intended that the
maximum maturity of any Notes to be issued by Mitsui Asia
will be 10 years.

Definitive Notes will be in such denominations as may be
specified in the relevant Final Terms, save that (i) Notes will
have a minimum denomination of €1,000 (or its equivalent in
other currencies), (ii) unless otherwise permitted by then current
laws, regulations and directives (a) Notes (including Notes
denominated in Sterling) which have a maturity of less than one
year and in respect of which the issue proceeds are to be
accepted by the relevant Issuer in the United Kingdom or whose
issue otherwise constitutes a contravention of Section 19 of the
FSMA will have a minimum denomination of £100,000 (or its
equivalent in any other currency), and (b) Notes denominated in
Singapore dollars will have a minimum denomination of
S$250,000 and (iii) Notes which are offered to the public in a
Member State of the European Economic Area in circumstances
which would otherwise require the publication of a prospectus
under the Prospectus Directive shall be at least €100,000 (or its
equivalent in any other currency as at the date of issue of the
Notes).

Fixed interest will be payable in arrear on the date or dates in
each year specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest determined separately for
each Series on the same basis as the floating rate under a
notional interest rate swap transaction in the relevant Specified
Currency governed by an agreement incorporating the 2006
ISDA Definitions, as published by the International Swaps and
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Zero Coupon Notes:

Interest Periods and Interest Rates:

Redemption:

Optiona Redemption:

Redemption by Instalments:

Status of Notes:

Negative Pledge:
Cross Defaullt:
Early Redemption:

Withholding Tax:

Currently, Mitsui & Co. may not issue Instalment Notes.

Derivatives Association, Inc. or by reference to the benchmark
reference rate specified in Condition 4 and the relevant Final
Terms, as adjusted for any applicable margin.

Interest periods will be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Zero Coupon Notes may be issued at their nominal amount or at
adiscount to it and will not bear interest, other than in the case
of late payment as provided in Condition 4(c).

The length of the interest periods for the Notes and the
applicable interest rate or its method of calculation may differ
from time to time or be constant for any Series. Notes may have
a maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate, or both. All
such information will be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

The relevant Final Terms will specify the basis for calculating
the redemption amounts payable. Unless permitted by then
curent laws and regulations, Notes (including Notes
denominated in Sterling) which have a maturity of less than one
year and in respect of which the issue proceeds are to be
accepted by the relevant Issuer in the United Kingdom or whose
issue otherwise constitutes a contravention of Section 19 of the
FSMA must have a minimum redemption amount of £100,000
(or itsequivalent in any other currency, and no part of such Note
may be transferred unless the redemption value of that part is
not less than £100,000 or such equivalent amount).

The Final Terms issued in respect of each issue of Notes will
state whether such Notes may be redeemed prior to their stated
maturity at the option of the relevant Issuer (either in whole or
in part) and/or the holders, and if so the terms applicable to such
redemption.

The Final Termsissued in respect of each issue of Notes that are
redeemable in two or more instalments will set out the dates on
which, and the amounts in which, such Notes may be
redeemed’.

The Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated
and (subject to the Negative Pledge - see below) unsecured
obligations of the relevant Issuer, all as described in “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes - [Guarantee and] Status of Notes’.

See “Terms and Conditions of the Notes - Negative Pledge”.
See “Terms and Conditions of the Notes - Events of Default”.

Except as provided in “Optional Redemption” above, Notes will
be redeemable at the option of the relevant Issuer prior to
maturity only for tax reasons. See “Terms and Conditions of the
Notes - Redemption, Purchase and Options’.

Interest payments on the Notes issued by Mitsui & Co.
generaly will be subject to Japanese withholding tax unless the
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Governing Law:
Listing:

Ratings

holder of such Notes is neither an individual resident of Japan
nor a Japanese corporation for Japanese tax purposes, nor a non-
resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation being a
specially related person of Mitsui & Co. as Issuer, as prescribed
in Article 6, Paragraph 4 of the Special Taxation Measures Law.
However, interest on Notes issued by Mitsui & Co. of which the
amount of interest is to be calculated by reference to certain
indexes (as prescribed in the Cabinet Order relating to Article 6,
Paragraph 4 of the Special Taxation Measures Law) relating to
Mitsui & Co. or a specialy-related person of Mitsui & Co. will
be subject to the withholding tax even if paid to an individual
non-resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation that is not a
specially-related person of Mitsui & Co., subject to Condition
7(a). See “Terms and Conditions of the Notes - Taxation”. All
payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes will
be made without withholding or deduction for any taxes or
duties of whatever nature imposed by Japan (in the case of
Mitsui & Co.) and Singapore (in the case of Mitsui Asia), asthe
case may be, and, by Japan, in respect of the Guarantee, in the
case of Mitsui Asia, and if payments under the Guarantee were
required to be made, subject to the exceptions described in
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes - Taxation”, unless such
withholding or deduction is required by law whereupon, subject
to the exceptions, all as described in “Terms and Conditions of
the Notes - Taxation”, the relevant Issuer will pay such
additional amounts as will result in the receipt by the payee of
such amounts as would have been received by it had not such
withholding or deduction been required.

Payments of interest, discount income, “prepayment fee”,
“redemption premium” or “break cost” (as such terms are
defined in the Income Tax Act, Chapter 134 of Singapore (the
“Income Tax Act”)) on Notes issued by Mitsui Asia may be
made free of Singapore taxes if such Notes constitute
“qualifying debt securities’ within the meaning of Section
13(16) of the Income Tax Act in the circumstances and subject
to the conditions described herein. See “Taxation - Singapore
Taxation”.

English.

Application has been made to list Notes issued under the
Programme on the Official List and to admit such Notes to
trading on the Market, or as otherwise specified in the relevant
Fina Terms. Notes which will be neither listed nor admitted to
trading on any market may also be issued.

Tranches of Notes may be rated or unrated. Where a Tranche of
Notes is rated, the ratings will be specified in the Final Terms.
Such rating will not necessarily be the same as ratings assigned
to the Programme. The Programme is rated AA- by Rating and
Investment Information, Inc., is rated A3 by Moody’'s Japan
K.K. and israted A by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Japan K.K. A
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Selling Restrictions:

rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities
and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at
any time by the assigning rating agency.

United States, European Economic Area (including the United
Kingdom), Singapore, Japan, Hong Kong, the PRC, Australia,
South Africa and Russia as provided in “ Subscription and Sale”.

Regulation S under the SecuritiesAct.

Notes in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law reguirements
(“TEFRA") and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or its possessions or to a United States person,
except in certain transactions permitted by applicable U.S.
Treasury Regulations.

Notes in bearer form will be issued in compliance with U.S.
Treasury Regulation (“U.S. Treas. Reg.”) 8§1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D)
(the “D Rules’) unless (i) the relevant Fina Terms states that
the Notes are issued in compliance with U.S. Treas. Reg.
§1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(C) (the “C Rules") or (ii) the Notes are issued
other than in compliance with the D Rules or the C Rules but in
circumstances in which the Notes will not constitute
“registration required obligations’, within the meaning of
Section 163(f)(2)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code, which
circumstances will be referred to in the relevant Final Terms as
atransaction to which TEFRA is not applicable.

In connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche
of Notes, additional or aternative restrictions may be imposed
which will be set out in the applicable Final Terms.
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RISK FACTORS

The Issuers and the Guarantor believe that the following factors may affect their ability to fulfil their
obligations under the Notes issued under the Programme and the Guarantee, respectively. All of these factors
are contingencies which may or may not occur and neither the Issuers nor the Guarantor is in a position to
express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

Factors which the Issuers and the Guarantor believe may be material for the purpose of assessing the market
risks associated with the Notes issued under the Programme and the Guarantee are also described below.

The Issuers and the Guarantor believe that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent
in investing in Notes issued under the Programme. However, the Issuers may be unable to pay interest,
principal or other amounts on or in connection with any Notes and the Guarantor may be unable to fulfil its
obligations under the Guarantee for other reasons and the Issuers and the Guarantor do not represent that
the statements below regarding the risks of holding any Notes are exhaustive. Prospective investors should
also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Offering Circular (including any documents
incorporated by reference herein) and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Risks Related to Mitsui’s Business

Declines in volume of trade and the flow of goods and materials resulting from worldwide or specific
region’s economic downturns may adversely affect Mitsui’'s business, operating results and financial
condition.

Mitsui’s global business activities are affected by economic conditions both globally and regionally. Among
other locations, Mitsui is particularly vulnerable to downward economic trends in Europe, Japan, China, the
United States and emerging countries. An economic downturn may cause a reduction in the flow of goods and
materials, a decline in consumer spending and capital investment, and subsequently a decline in demand from
Mitsui’s customers for Mitsui’s products and services, which may have an adverse impact on Mitsui’'s
business, operating results and financial condition.

Fluctuations in commodity prices, especially crude ail, iron ore, coal and copper, may adversely affect
Mitsui’s business, operating results and financial condition.

Mitsui is engaged in trades in and, as the case may be, production of a variety of commaodities in the global
commodities market including mineral resources and energy products. Among others, operating results from
Mitsui’s mineral resources and energy producing activities account for a significant portion of Mitsui’s overall
operating results. These commodity markets can be volatile in a short period or seasonally fluctuate by
various factors such as imbalance of supply and demand, economic fluctuation, inventory adjustment, and
exchange rate fluctuations. These factors are beyond Mitsui’s control. The unexpected market fluctuations
may adversely affect Mitsui’s business, operating results and financial condition, as follows:

. At businesses such as mineral resources and/or energy development projects, in which large amounts
of investment have been made, it may occur that the invested amount is not recoverable through sales
of the produced products due to a fall in price or Mitsui may have difficulty in divesting Mitsui’s
proprietary equity at a reasonable price.

. A decline in the value of Mitsui’s investmentsin LNG projects which are recognised to designate as at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"), could adversely affect Mitsui’s operating
results and financial condition due to the decline of other comprehensive income.

. In trading of commodities or derivative instruments losses may occur as a result of unexpected
fluctuations.
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. Fluctuations in a commodity market may cause a reduction of trading transactions in which Mitsui acts
asaprincipal or an agent.

Exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect Mitsui’s operating results.

Mitsui is exposed to risk of exchange rate fluctuations and exchange rate fluctuations may have an adverse
effect on Mitsui's operating results. Although Mitsui’s reporting currency is the Japanese yen, a significant
portion of Mitsui’s business operations, consolidated revenues and operating expenses is denominated in
currencies other than the Japanese yen. As a result, appreciation or depreciation in the value of other
currencies as compared to the Japanese yen could result in material transactional gains or losses. As most
revenues, costs of revenues, and selling, general and administrative expenses incurred from regular business
activities at overseas subsidiaries and associated companies are quoted in the U.S. dollar, the Australian dollar,
the Brazilian real, or other currencies, Mitsui’s profit for the year may be affected by the fluctuations of these
currencies and Mitsui is exposed to translation risk in Mitsui’s assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. In addition, exchange rate fluctuations may reduce the value of investments in overseas
subsidiaries and associated companies as well asin FVTOCI, and adversely affect Mitsui’s accumulated other
comprehensive income.

Mitsui is subject to substantial amount of counterparty credit risks from diversified clients with which
Mitsui has business transactions or financial dealings and/or credit risks from various projects.

Mitsui is exposed to large-scal e counterparty credit risks, including the following:

. While many of Mitsui’s customers purchase products and services from Mitsui on credit, Mitsui may
also provide financing programs or debt guarantees for customers associated with sales contracts. At
31st March, 2016, Mitsui’s current trade receivables (less allowance for doubtful receivables—current)
were ¥1,607.9 billion, representing 14.7 per cent. of Mitsui’s total assets. The balance of the allowance
for doubtful receivables—current for the year ended 31st March, 2016 was ¥12.5 hillion.

. Mitsui engages in significant project financing activities as a lender or guarantor whereby Mitsui
assumes repayment risk.

. Mitsui has counterparty payment risk from various derivative transactions Mitsui enters into as part of
Mitsui’s hedging activities.

It is not possible for Mitsui’s credit risk management policy to eliminate risks completely relating to the
deterioration of the financial positions of Mitsui’s counterparties. Furthermore, factors such as insolvencies
among Mitsui’s customers caused by liquidity crises, sudden fallsin real estate market or stock market prices,
or increases in company bankruptcies may make it difficult for Mitsui to collect receivables.

Changesin interest rates could have an adverse effect on Mitsui’s operating results.

Mitsui is exposed to risks associated with interest rate fluctuations, which may affect Mitsui’s overall
operational costs and the value of Mitsui’s financial assets and liabilities, particularly Mitsui’s debt
obligations from the capital markets and borrowings from financial institutions, including ¥353.2 hillion
short-term debt and ¥4,357.3 hillion long-term debt as of 31st March, 2016. An increase in interest rates,
especialy in Japan and the United States, may adversely affect Mitsui’s operating results.

If the value of assets for Mitsui’s own use and/or rental to third parties, such as equipment and fixtures,
land and buildings declines, Mitsui may record impairment losses.

Assets for Mitsui’s own use and/or rental to third parties, such as equipment and fixtures, land and buildings
are exposed to potential significant impairment losses due to the decline in the value of these assets. The total
of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets was
¥ 2,243.7 billion, as of 31st March, 2016. The carrying amounts of assets for Mitsui’s own use and/or rental to
third parties are affected by certain factors, which are beyond Mitsui’s control such as changesin price, sales
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volume, production volume and cost based on global or local supply and demand. When impairment |osses on
these assets occur, impairment losses may have an adverse effect on Mitsui’s operating results and financial
condition.

Declines in the market value of domestic and foreign equity and/or debt securities may decrease the value
of Mitsui’s pension plan assets which in turn may increase defined benefit cost of Mitsui.

Declines in the market value of domestic and foreign government bonds, other debt securities and marketable
equity securities would reduce the value of Mitsui’s pension plan assets. A decline in the value of Mitsui’s
pension plan assets or an increase in Mitsui’'s unfunded defined benefit obligation could adversely affect
Mitsui’s operating results and financial condition due to the decline of other comprehensive income and
retained earnings.

Mitsui’s liquidity could be adversely affected by turmoil in financial markets, a downgrade in Mitsui’s
credit ratings, significant changes in the lending or investment policies of Mitsui’s lenders or institutional
investors.

Turmoil in financial markets, a downgrade in Mitsui’s credit ratings or significant changes in the lending or
investment policies of Mitsui’s lenders or institutional investors could result in constraints on Mitsui’s fund
procurement and an increase in funding costs, and could have an adverse effect on Mitsui’s financial position
and liquidity.

Due to Mitsui’s significant investments in marketable equity financial assets, a substantial decline in the
stock market could negatively affect Mitsui’'s investment portfolio.

A significant portion of Mitsui’'s investment portfolio consists of marketable equity financial assets. At 31st
March, 2016, Mitsui's marketable equity financial assets recognised to designate as FVTOCI were carried at a
fair value of ¥533.4 billion, representing 4.9 per cent. of Mitsui's total assets. While Mitsui periodically
reviews its investment portfolio, a decline in the equity securities market could negatively impact the value of
Mitsui’s investment portfolio and operating results and financial condition due to the decline of other
comprehensive income.

Decrease in deferred tax assets due to changes in the assessment for recoverability of deferred tax assets
may adversely affect Mitsui’s operating results and financial condition.

Mitsui determines the recoverability of deferred tax assets based on all currently available information,
including tax deductibility of accounting losses, their timing as well as future taxable income at Mitsui.
Deferred tax assets are recognised except for cases where such deferred tax assets are not recoverable, while
the amount of recoverable net deferred tax assets may change if estimates of future taxable income are
changed or if tax laws and regulations including statutory tax rates are revised.

A worsening of Mitsui’s operating environment could negatively affect Mitsui’s ability to achieve the goals
set in Mitsui’s business plan, and future taxable income may decrease compared to the amount anticipated in
the current tax planning strategies. In such cases, decrease in deferred tax assets due to the changes in
assessment for recoverability of deferred tax assets may adversely affect Mitsui’s operating results and
financial conditions.

Some of Mitsui’s operations are concentrated in a limited number of regions or countries, which could
harm Mitsui’s business, operating results and financial condition if activity levels in these regions or
countries decline.

Various types of businesses worldwide sometimes expose Mitsui to risks associated with regional political
and economic instabilities, in addition to aspects of the global economic environment such as commodity
market conditions, demand and supply for commodities, currency exchange rates and interest rates.
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Furthermore, some of Mitsui’s business activities may be exposed to concentration risk in particular industries
located in specific regions or countries. For example:

. In Brazil, Chile and Russia, Mitsui has significant interests in the exploration, development and
production of mineral resources and energy.

. In Indonesia, Mitsui actively participates in infrastructure projects, including the operation of power
plants, and maintai ns a nationwide motorcycle retail finance business.

As aresult, declining levels of trading activities or asset volumes in specific sectors or in certain regions or
countries, or unexpected political or economic instabilities could have a disproportionately negative effect on
Mitsui’s business, operating results and financial condition.

Mitsui & Co. may not be able to successfully restructure or eliminate unprofitable or underperforming
subsidiaries or associated companiesin a timely manner.

As of 31st March, 2016, Mitsui & Co. had 275 consolidated subsidiaries and 187 equity accounted investees.
Mitsui & Co. has been continuously restructuring underperforming businesses of Mitsui& Co.’s consolidated
subsidiaries and associated companies using a process Mitsui has introduced to assess their profitability. If
Mitsui & Co. fails to successfully restructure or eliminate its underperforming subsidiaries and associated
companies in atimely manner, or if these efforts fail to improve Mitsui’s business operations as contempl ated,
Mitsui’s business operations may become less efficient and Mitsui’s operating results and financial condition
may be adversely affected.

Mitsui’s alliances by forming joint ventures with third parties and strategic investmentsin third parties may
not necessarily result in successful operations.

Mitsui participates in various businesses directly or indirectly through joint ventures or by making strategic
investments in other companies and business enterprises. The outcome of these joint ventures and strategic
investments is unpredictabl e because:

. operational success is critically dependent on factors that are beyond Mitsui’s control such as the
financial condition and performance of the partner companies or the strategic investees; or

. with respect to certain associated companies, Mitsui may be unable to exercise adequate control over
the management, operations and assets of the companies in which Mitsui invested or may be unable to
make major decisions without the consent of other shareholders or participants due to lack of common
business goals and strategic objectives with Mitsui’s alliance partners.

Any occurrence of these events could have an adverse effect on Mitsui’s operating results and financial
condition.

Mitsui’s businesses in exploration, development and production of mineral resources and oil and gas may
not develop in line with assumed costs and schedules, and are subject to the risks associated with
estimating reserves and the operating performance of third party operators.

Reflecting the rising prices of mineral resources and oil and gas as well as increased production in recent
years, exploration, development and production of mineral resources and oil and gas are becoming more
significant to Mitsui’s operating results and financial condition. Mining and oil and gas projects involve risks,
such asthe following:

. development of projects may face schedule delays or cost overruns than originally planned, due to
difficulties in technical conditions, procurement of materials, financial conditions and government
regulations including environmental aspect;
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. reserves are estimated based on available geological, technical, contractual and economic information,
and thus actual development and production may significantly differ from originally estimated
reserves; and

. exploration activities may not produce successful results and thus it is possible that reserve
replacement cannot be achieved based on the assumed cost and time schedule.

Mitsui participates as a non-operator in many of these projects. Under these circumstances, Mitsui carefully
considers the business potential and profitability of projects based on the information and data provided by
operators, who substantially control operations of such projects, including decision-making in the course of
development and production. In addition to the above-mentioned risks, an operator’s failure in managing
those projects may adversely affect Mitsui’s operating results and financial condition.

Intense competition from other Japanese general trading companies and others could have an adverse
effect on Mitsui’s operating results and financial condition.

Products and services Mitsui provides are generally under competition. Other Japanese genera trading
companies as well as other competitors which engage in similar business activities in various fields may have
stronger business associations and relationships with Mitsui’s customers, suppliers and business partners in
both domestic and global markets; or stronger global network and regional expertise, diversified global
customer bases, greater financial engineering skills and market insights.

Unless Mitsui can successfully continue to meet the changing needs of Mitsui’'s customers by providing them
with innovative and integrated services in a cost effective manner, Mitsui may lose its market share or
relationships with its existing customers, and this may have an adverse effect on Mitsui’s operating results and
financial condition.

Mitsui may lose opportunities for entry into new business areas because of the limitation of resources on
business, particularly required human resources.

In new businesses, Mitsui is investing human resources that are capable of planning and evaluating business,
executing projects and managing and supervising workforce. However, in certain business areas, Mitsui may
have a shortage of required human resources, which could cause a loss of opportunities to start new
businesses, which in turn may adversely affect Mitsui’s future business, operating results and financial
condition.

Restrictions under environmental laws and regulations may have a significant impact on Mitsui’s business,
operating results and financial condition.

Various projects and business transactions worldwide Mitsui is involved in are subject to extensive
environmental laws and regulations. In particular, the Mineral & Metal Resources segment and Energy
segment may be adversely affected by present or future environmental regulations or enforcement in
connection with Mitsui’s exploration, development and production activities. For example, Mitsui is subject
to complex sets of environmental regulations in Australia, Brazil, Chile, Russia, and the Middle East. These
laws and regulations may require Mitsui to perform site clean-ups; require Mitsui to curtail or cease certain
operations; impose fines and payments for significant environmental damage; require Mitsui to install costly
pollution control equipment; and require Mitsui to modify its operations. Newly enacted environmental laws
and regulations or changes therein, criticism by stakeholders such as NPOs & NGOs, advice from
institutional shareholder service provider and rating by the ESG/SRI research company may materially impact
the progress of these projects.

Once an environmental accident occurs, as the owner of mineral resource and energy interests, regardless of
the degree of Mitsui’s contribution to such accidents or acts of negligence, Mitsui may be imposed to bear
fines or payments for compensation from environmental authorities or other concerned parties, even in
situations where Mitsui has no involvement at all in actual operations as a non-operator. These fines and/or
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compensation payments may include clean-up costs, compensation for environmental damages, compensation
for health hazard and/or property damage to those affected by the accident, compensation for absence from
work and/or for loss of earnings.

As aresult of an oil spill incident at an exploration project in the Gulf of Mexico for which BP Exploration &
Production Inc. (“BP”) was the operator, civil lawsuits including those seeking recovery for alleged economic
loss, property damages, the costs of and caused by the clean up and personal injuries as well as those seeking
penalties were brought against Mitsui & Co.’s subsidiaries. Among the plaintiffs were private parties, the
United States government, and state and local governmental entities.

In connection with this incident, Mitsui & Co.’s subsidiaries entered into a settlement with BP and its parent
companies (“BP Settlement”), under which Mitsui & Co. and its subsidiaries are to be fully indemnified by
BP and its parent companies asto al claims arising from the incident except for punitive damages, but solely
to the extent arising from the conduct of Mitsui & Co.’s subsidiaries, and fines, penalties and sanctions.
However, thereis arisk that the indemnity payments required by the BP Settlement may not be made.

The civil penaty claims filed by the United States and rights asserted by some of the Gulf Coast state
governments to claim for civil penalties were resolved by an agreement reached between subsidiaries of
Mitsui & Co. and the United States (“DOJ Settlement”).

Except for the punitive damage claims of individuals in connection with the persona injury claims, all
asserted claims that are not covered by the BP Settlement or the DOJ Settlement have been dismissed by court
orders. However, many of these court orders are not final and can be appeal ed.

Mitsui & Co. and its United States subsidiary, Mitsui & Co. (U.S.A.), Inc. are shareholders of Coronet
Industries Inc. (“Coronet”), a former manufacturer of animal feed supplements, each with 18 per cent. and 12
per cent. share interest, respectively. Coronet has been working with the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency and the State of Florida in an investigation on environmental conditions related to its prior operations
at its fecility in the state of Florida. Currently deliberations continue with the environmental authorities in
relation to appropriate environmental measures and concrete clean-up methods, as well as their
implementation.

Mitsui is subject to extensive laws and regulations in Japan and other countries throughout the world as
well as various concession contracts. Changes in these laws and regulations or unilateral change of
contractual terms by a government could adversely affect Mitsui’s business, operating results and financial
condition.

Mitsui’s business operations are subject to extensive laws and regulations in Japan and other countries
throughout the world. Mitsui’s operations are subject to laws and regulations governing, among other things,
commaodities, consumer protection, business and investment approvals, environmental protection, currency
exchange control, import and export (including restrictions from the viewpoint of national and international
security), taxation, and antitrust. For instance, many of Mitsui’s infrastructure projectsin devel oping countries
are subject to less developed legal systems. As aresult, Mitsui’s costs may increase due to factors such as the
lack of a comprehensive set of laws and regulations, an unpredictable judicial system based on inconsistent
application and interpretation of laws and regulations, and changing practices of regulatory and administrative
bodies. For example, Mitsui is subject to sudden and unpredictable changes to: tariffs for products and
services that Mitsui provides; technical specifications with respect to environmental regulations; income tax
and duty rates, and foreign currency exchange controls with respect to repatriation of investments and
dividends.

Furthermore, while Mitsui is involved in the exploration, development and production activities through
various contractual arrangements for concessions, the contracts may not be honored or extended when they
expire. Moreover, the regulatory bodies of these areas may unilaterally intervene or even ater the contractual
terms of Mitsui’s oil and gas as well as mineral resource producing operations involving production rates,
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pricing formulas, royalties, environmental protection cost, land tenure or otherwise. If these regulatory bodies
unilaterally alter such contractual terms, or if the cost of complying with revised or newly established laws
and regulations increases, Mitsui's business, operating results and financial condition could be adversely
affected. In order to comply with laws and regulations, Mitsui may bear considerable additional costs.

Employee misconduct could adversely affect Mitsui’s operating results and reputation.

Due to Mitsui’s size, as well as the operational and geographic breadth of Mitsui’s activities, Mitsui’s day-to-
day operations are necessarily de-centralised. As a result, Mitsui cannot fully ensure that Mitsui’s employees
comply with all applicable laws and regulations as well as Mitsui’s interna policies. For example, Mitsui’s
employees may engage in unauthorised trading activities and exceed the allotted market risk exposure for
various commodities or extend an unauthorised amount of credit to a client, which, in either case, may result
in unknown losses or unmanageable risks. Moreover, Mitsui’'s employees could engage in various
unauthorised activities prohibited under the laws of Japan or other jurisdictions to which Mitsui is subject,
including export regulations, anticorruption laws, antitrust laws and tax regulations. The efforts Mitsui
undertakes to ensure employees’ compliance with applicable laws and regulations as well as Mitsui’s internal
policies may not succeed in preventing misconduct by Mitsui’'s employees. Depending on its nature,
employees’ misconduct could have negative effects on Mitsui’s operating results and reputation.

Failure to maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting could negatively affect Mitsui’s
reputation.

Mitsui is engaged in business activities in a variety of products and services worldwide and thus its internal
control over financia reporting needs to be established for numerous transaction patterns. Mitsui may be
unable to maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting, and thus not be able to assert that
Mitsui’s internal control over financial reporting is effective. This could adversely affect the capital market’s
perception of Mitsui and may cause negative market reactions.

Climate change and natural disaster may adversely affect Mitsui’s operating results.

Among extreme weather conditions which have been increasing recently due to climate change, intense
storms, especially hurricanes and cyclones, which are strong tropical depressions in the Atlantic and South
Pacific oceans, respectively, may have an adverse impact on production and shipments of Mitsui’s mineral
resources, oil and gas, and salt production operations, leading to increased costs and/or decreased revenues. In
the case that production sites, production facilities, and infrastructure used for shipments such as roads,
railways and ports are seriously damaged by extreme weather conditions, operations and shipments could stop
for indeterminate periods until restoration work is completed. Extreme weather conditions such as drought
could also adversely affect foods and raw material producing activitiesin which Mitsui has investments.

Initiatives to reduce greenhouse gases, which are said to be the root cause of climate change and global
warming, are undertaken globally, such as the adoption of the “Paris Agreement” at the 21st Conference of
Parties (COP21) of the United Nations U.N. Framework Convention on Climate Change. Introduction of
government-imposed greenhouse gas emission restrictions including environmental tax, and cap and trade
schemes of emission credit could adversely affect the operating results of Mitsui’s businesses that use fossil
fuel and emit a large amount of greenhouse gasses, such as overseas power producing businesses where
Mitsui has minority share holdings.

Furthermore, natural disaster, such as earthquake, heavy rain or flood, that affects Mitsui’'s employees and
damages Mitsui’s offices or facilities, may adversely hinder Mitsui’s business. Mitsui has implemented
measures such as developing a disaster contingency manual, creating a Business Continuity Plan (BCP),
introducing a safety confirmation system for employees, reinforcing earthquake resistance, and conducting
emergency drills. However, despite these measures, there is no assurance that damage from disasters can be
completely avoided.
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Information security incidents caused by unexpected information system malfunctions or unauthorised
access or attacks from internal or external sources may adversely affect Mitsui’'s business, operating results
and financial condition.

Mitsui is working to strengthen the security of information systems used by Mitsui and to thwart external
attacks through various measures, including the development of related regulations and response systems, and
monitoring of Mitsui's IT networks. However, Mitsui cannot totaly eliminate the possibility that
unforeseeable information system malfunctions or security issues could cause serious problems in Mitsui’s IT
system infrastructure or communications networks, or that confidential business information could be
destroyed or stolen. Such situations could seriously reduce Mitsui’s operational efficiency or jeopardise
Mitsui’s ability to maintain or expand Mitsui’s business activities, with negative consequences, which may
have an adverse impact on Mitsui’s business, operating results and financial condition.

Risks Related to the Notes

Notes subject to optional redemption by the | ssuers

An optional redemption feature is likely to limit the market value of Notes. During any period when the
Issuers may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise substantially above
the price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period.

The Issuers may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the
Notes. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may only be able to do so at
a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments
available at that time.

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may bear interest at arate that the |ssuers may elect to convert from a fixed rate to
afloating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. The Issuers' ability to convert the interest rate will affect
the secondary market and the market value of such Notes since the Issuers may be expected to convert the
rate when it islikely to produce alower overal cost of borrowing. If the Issuers convert from afixed rateto a
floating rate, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may be less favourable than then prevailing spreads
on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied to the same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any
time may be lower than the rates on other Notes. If the Issuers convert from a floating rate to a fixed rate, the
fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on its Notes.

Notesissued at a substantial discount or premium

The market value of securities issued at a substantial discount or premium to their nominal amount tend to
fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional interest-bearing
securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the greater the price volatility as
compared to conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable maturities.

Modification and waivers and substitution

The Conditions and the Agency Agreement (as defined in the Conditions) contain provisions for calling
meetings of Noteholders to consider matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit
defined majorities to bind all Noteholders including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant
meeting and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

I ntegral multiples of less than the Specified Denomination

In relation to any issue of Notes in bearer form which have a denomination consisting of the minimum
Specified Denomination (as defined in the Conditions) of €100,000 plus a higher integral multiple of another
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smaller amount, it is possible that the Notes may be traded in amounts in excess of €100,000 (or its
equivalent) that are not integral multiples of €100,000 (or its equivalent). In such a case a Noteholder who, as
aresult of trading such amounts, holds a principal amount of less than the minimum Specified Denomination
will not receive a Definitive Note in respect of such holding (should Definitive Notes be printed). If the
Noteholder requires a Definitive Note for such holding, a Noteholder would need to purchase a principal
amount of Notes such that it holds an amount equal to one or more Specified Denominations.

The Proposed Financial Transaction Tax (“FTT”)

On 14th February, 2013, the European Commission published a proposal (the “Commission’s Proposal”) for a
Directive for acommon FTT in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Austria, Portugal,
Slovenia and Slovakia (the “participating Member States”).

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scope and could, if introduced, apply to certain dealings in the
Notes (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances. The issuance and subscription of
Notes should, however, be exempt.

Under the Commission’s Proposal the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within and
outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in Notes where at
least one party is afinancial institution, and at least one party is established in a participating Member State. A
financial institution may be, or be deemed to be, “established” in a participating Member State in a broad
range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a person established in a participating Member State
or (b) where the financia instrument which is subject to the dealings is issued in a participating Member
State.

However, the proposed FTT remains subject to negotiation between the participating Member States. It may
therefore be altered prior to any implementation, the timing of which remains unclear. Additional EU Member
States may decide to participate.

Prospective holders of the Notes are advised to seek their own professional advice in relation to the FTT.
Change of law

The Conditions are based on English law in effect as at the date of issue of the relevant Notes. No assurance
can be given as to the impact of any possible judicia decision or change to English law or administrative
practice after the date of issue of the relevant Notes.

Delisting

Where a particular issue of Notes has been listed, the relevant Issuer may where (A) the relevant Issuer or (in
the case of issues of Notes by Mitsui Asia) the Guarantor, is unable to comply with the requirements for
maintaining the listing of the relevant Notes or (B) if maintenance of such listing is agreed by the Arrangers
or the relevant Dealer(s) or lead manager(s), as the case may be, to have become unduly onerous, the relevant
Issuer and/or the Guarantor (as the case may be) may delist such Notes from the relevant stock exchange on
which they are listed provided that the relevant I ssuer uses all reasonable endeavours to obtain and maintain a
listing of such Notes on some other major stock exchange or exchanges agreed between the relevant |ssuer
and/or the Guarantor and the Arrangers, relevant Dealer(s) or lead manager(s), as the case may be.

The secondary market generally

Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market does
develop, it may not be liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Notes easily or at prices that
will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market.
Thisis particularly the case for Notes that are especially sensitive to interest rate, currency or market risks, are
designed for specific investment objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet the investment
requirements of limited categories of investors. These types of Notes generally would have a more limited
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secondary market and more price volatility than conventional debt securities. llliquidity may have a severely
adverse effect on the market value of Notes.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

The Issuers will pay principal and interest on the Notes in the Specified Currency (as defined in the
Conditions). This presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor’s financial activities are
denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the “Investor’s Currency”) other than the Specified
Currency. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to
devaluation of the Specified Currency or revaluation of the Investor’s Currency) and the risk that authorities
with jurisdiction over the Investor’s Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in
the value of the Investor’'s Currency relative to the Specified Currency would decrease (i) the Investor’'s
Currency-equivalent yield on the Notes, (ii) the Investor’s Currency equivalent value of the principal payable
on the Notes and (iii) the Investor’s Currency equivalent market value of the Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that
could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As aresult, investors may receive less interest or principal
than expected, or no interest or principal.

Interest rate risks

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that subsequent changes in market interest rates may
adversely affect the value of Fixed Rate Notes.

Certain currencies are not freely convertible; are subject to restrictions on transfer; and/or may be subject
to other limitations.

Notes may be issued in one or more Specified Currencies that are not freely convertible into other currencies,
or are subject to restrictions on remittance and transfer. Notes may also be issued in one or more Specified
Currencies that are limited in their availability, which in turn may affect the liquidity of Notes denominated in
such Specified Currencies and the Issuers’ ahility to source such Specified Currencies to service the Notes. In
addition, unanticipated changes in government regulation can, and may, further impact the availability and
convertibility of certain Specified Currencies, which will impact the suitability of such Notes as well as the
Issuers' ability to source such Specified Currencies to service the Notes.

In particular, Renminbi is not freely convertible and is subject to certain conversion requirements. Subject to
limited exceptions, the remittance of Renminbi into the PRC for settlement of capital account items is subject
to restrictions, and foreign investors may only remit offshore Renminbi into the PRC for capital account
purposes, such as shareholders' loan or capital contributions, upon obtaining prior regulatory approval. The
Renminbi is also a developing market and the liquidity of the Renminbi market remains limited. There can be
no assurances that further government regulation will not cause a contraction in such market. Renminbi
products may suffer significant losses in liquidating the underlying investments if such investments do not
have an active secondary market and their prices have large bid/offer spreads. Further, pursuant to the
Conditions, payments in respect of Notes denominated in CNH are subject to restrictions, including a
restriction that payment will be made solely by transfer to an account denominated in Renminbi.

Similarly, due to the lack of experience of the ICSDs with settling, clearing and trading debt instruments that
are both denominated and settled in Roubles, there can be no guarantee that such clearing, settlement and
trading procedures will progress smoothly or in a way which is comparable to procedures carried out with
respect to instruments denominated in more conventionally settled currencies.

Although restrictions on the transfer and holding of Roubles offshore and their repatriation onshore have now
been lifted for non-residents (save for some restrictions which apply to the regime of residents’ accounts held
outside of the Russian Federation), there is still no specific tested framework under Russian law for
transferring or holding Roubles in offshore Rouble accounts. All payments of Roubles to, from, or between
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Rouble accounts located outside the Russian Federation will be made via onshore correspondent accounts
within the Russian banking system. The Russian banking system is less developed than many of its Western
counterparts and consequently there is arisk that payments of both principal and interest under relevant Notes,
and proceeds from the sale of such Notes, will be subject to delays and disruptions which may not exist in
more mature banking markets.

In order for Noteholders to remove Roubles received from payments of principal and interest on the relevant
Notes and proceeds from the sale of such Notes from the ICSDs, they will need to hold a bank account
denominated in Roubles. The administrative difficulties associated with (i) opening Rouble accounts outside
the Russian Federation and (ii) non-resident Noteholders opening Rouble accounts onshore in the Russian
Federation are significant.

As aresult of the above, any unforeseen difficulties in dealing with Rouble payments and/or Rouble accounts
may have an adverse effect on the liquidity, marketability or trading price of such Notes.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks.

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to an issue of Notes. The ratings
may not reflect the potential impact of al risks related to structure, market, additional factors discussed
above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Notes. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any time.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or review
or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine
whether and to what extent (i) Notes are legal investments for it, (ii) Notes can be used as collateral for
various types of borrowing and (iii) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Notes. Financial
institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate
treatment of Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.
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TERMSAND CONDITIONSOF THE NOTES

The following are the Conditions in respect of Notes which, subject to completion and amendment and as
supplemented or varied in accordance with the provisions of Part A of the relevant Final Terms and save the
paragraphsin italics, will be applicable to the Notes and, subject further to simplification by deletion of non-
applicable provisions, will be endorsed upon, or attached to, Definitive Notes or Definitive Certificates,
details of the relevant Series being shown on the relevant Notes and in Part A of the relevant Final Terms.
References in the Conditions to “ Notes’ are to the Notes of one Series (as defined below) only, not to all
Notes which may be issued under the Programme, and references to the “ Issuer” are to the Issuer of such
Notes.

References to Instalment Notes, |nstalment Amounts and Receipts in these Terms and Conditions are currently
only relevant to the Notes issued by Mitsui Asia.

The Notes are issued pursuant to an amended and restated agency agreement dated 7th September, 2016 (as
amended or supplemented as at the Settlement Date, the “Agency Agreement”) among Mitsui & Co., Ltd.
(“Mitsui & Co.”), Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd. (“Mitsui Asia’ and together with Mitsui & Co.,
the “Issuers’), Mitsui & Co. as guarantor in relation to Notes issued by Mitsui Asia (the “Guarantor”),
Citibank, N.A., London Branch, as issuing and principal paying agent (the “Issuing and Principal Paying
Agent”) and as fiscal agent (the “Fiscal Agent”), Citigroup Global Markets Deutschland AG as registrar (the
“Registrar”), and the transfer agents (the “Transfer Agent”), paying agents (the “Paying Agent” which
expression shall include the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent) and other agents named in it, and with the
benefit of deeds of covenant dated 3rd September, 2013 in relation to Mitsui & Co. and Mitsui Asia (as
amended or supplemented as at the Settlement Date, the “Deeds of Covenant”). The initia Calculation
Agent(s) (if any) is specified hereon. The Noteholders (as defined below), the holders of the interest coupons
(the “Coupons’) relating to interest bearing Notes in bearer form and, where applicable in the case of such
Notes, talons for further Coupons (the “Talons’) (the “Couponholders’) and the holders of the instalment
receipts (the “Receipts’) appertaining to the payment of principal by instalments of Notes in bearer form are
deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the Agency Agreement applicable to them. Copies of the
Agency Agreement and the Deeds of Covenant are available for inspection at the specified offices of each of
the Paying Agents, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and the Transfer Agents.

Form of Notes
(@ Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes are issued in bearer form (“Bearer Notes’) or in registered form (“Registered Notes’), in
each case in the Specified Denomination(s) shown hereon.

This Note is a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note, an Instalment Note or a
combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest and Redemption/Payment Basis
shown hereon.

Bearer Notes are serially numbered and are issued with Coupons (and, where appropriate, a Talon)
attached, save in the case of Zero Coupon Notes, in which case references to interest (other than in
relation to interest due after the Maturity Date), Coupons and Talons in these Conditions are not
applicable. Instalment Notes in bearer form are issued with one or more Receipts attached.

Registered Notes are represented by registered certificates (“Certificates’) and, save as provided in
Condition 1(b)(iii), each Certificate shall represent the entire holding of Registered Notes by the same
holder.

Title to the Bearer Notes and the Receipts, Coupons and Talons relating to it shall pass by delivery.
Title to the Registered Notes shall pass by registration in the register that the Issuer shall procure to be

25



(b)

kept by the Registrar in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement (the “Register”).
Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, the holder (as defined
below) of any Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon, as the case may be, shall be deemed to be and may be
treated as the absolute owner of such Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon, as the case may be, for the
purpose of receiving payment thereof or on account thereof and for all other purposes, whether or not
such Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon, as the case may be, shall be overdue and notwithstanding any
notice of ownership, trust, theft or loss thereof (or of the Certificate representing it) or any writing
thereon (or on the Certificate representing it) made by anyone and no person shall be liable for so
treating the holder. In these Conditions, “Noteholder” means the bearer of any Bearer Note and the
Receipts relating to it or the person in whose name a Registered Note is registered (as the case may
be), “holder” (in relation to a Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon) means the bearer of any Bearer Note,
Receipt, Coupon or Talon or the person in whose name a Registered Note is registered (as the case
may be) and capitalised terms have the meanings given to them hereon, the absence of any such
meaning indicating that such term is not applicable to the Notes.

All capitalised terms which are not defined in these Conditions will have the meanings given to them
in the Agency Agreement or relevant Final Terms.

No Exchange of Notes and Transfers of Registered Notes

() No Exchange of Notes. Registered Notes may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes. Bearer
Notes of one Specified Denomination may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes of another
Specified Denomination. Bearer Notes may not be exchanged for Registered Notes.

(i)  Transfer of Registered Notes: One or more Registered Notes may be transferred upon the
surrender (at the specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent) of the Certificate
representing such Registered Notes to be transferred, together with the form of transfer
endorsed on such Certificate, (or another form of transfer substantially in the same form and
containing the same representations and certifications (if any), unless otherwise agreed by the
Issuer), duly completed and executed and any other evidence as the Registrar or Transfer Agent
may reasonably require. In the case of a transfer of part only of a holding of Registered Notes
represented by one Certificate, a new Certificate shall be issued to the transferee in respect of
the part transferred and a further new Certificate in respect of the balance of the holding not
transferred shall be issued to the transferor. All transfers of Registered Notes and entries on the
Register will be made subject to the detailed regulations concerning transfers of Registered
Notes scheduled to the Agency Agreement. The regulations may be changed by the Issuer, with
the prior written approval of the Registrar and the Noteholders. A copy of the current
regulations will be made avail able by the Registrar to any Noteholder upon request.

(iii)  Exercise of Optionsor Partial Redemption in Respect of Registered Notes: In the case of an
exercise of an Issuer’s or Noteholders' option in respect of, or a partial redemption of, a holding
of Registered Notes represented by a single Certificate, a new Certificate shall be issued to the
holder to reflect the exercise of such option or in respect of the balance of the holding not
redeemed. In the case of a partial exercise of an option resulting in Registered Notes of the
same holding having different terms, separate Certificates shall be issued in respect of those
Registered Notes of that holding that have the same terms. New Certificates shall only be issued
against surrender of the existing Certificates to the Registrar or any Transfer Agent. In the case
of atransfer of Registered Notes to a person who is aready a holder of Registered Notes, a new
Certificate representing the enlarged holding shall only be issued against surrender of the
Certificate representing the existing holding.

(iv) Delivery of New Certificates: Each new Certificate to be issued pursuant to Conditions 1(b)(ii)
or (iii) shal be available for delivery within three business days of receipt of the form of
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transfer or Exercise Notice (as defined in Condition 5(f)) and surrender of the Certificate for
exchange. Delivery of the new Certificate(s) shall be made at the specified office of the
Transfer Agent or of the Registrar (as the case may be) to whom delivery or surrender of such
form of transfer, Exercise Notice or Certificate shall have been made or, at the option of the
holder making such delivery or surrender as aforesaid and as specified in the form of transfer,
Exercise Notice or otherwise in writing, be mailed by uninsured post at the risk of the holder
entitled to the new Certificate to such address as may be so specified, unless such holder
requests otherwise and pays in advance to the relevant Agent (as defined in the Agency
Agreement) the costs of such other method of delivery and/or such insurance as it may specify.
In this Condition 1(b)(iv), “business day” means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on
which banks are open for business in the place of the specified office of the relevant Transfer
Agent or the Registrar (as the case may be).

(v) Transfer Free of Charge: Transfers of Registered Notes and issue of Certificates on
registration, transfer, partia redemption or exercise of an option shall be effected without
charge to the Noteholder by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Registrar or the Transfer Agents, but
upon payment by the Noteholder of any tax or other governmental charges that may be imposed
in relation to it (or the giving of such indemnity by the Noteholder as the Registrar or the
relevant Transfer Agent may require).

(vi) Closed Periods: No Noteholder may require the transfer of a Registered Note to be registered
(i) during the period of 15 days ending on the due date for redemption of, or payment of any
Instalment Amount in respect of, that Note, (ii) during the period of 15 days before any date on
which Notes may be called for redemption by the I ssuer at its option pursuant to Condition 5(€),
(iii) after any such Note has been called for redemption or (iv) during the period of seven days
ending on (and including) any Record Date (as defined in Condition 6(b)).

2. [Guarantee and]® Satusof Notes
(a) Satusof Notes

The Notes and the Receipts and Coupons constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject
to the provisions of Condition 3(a)) unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu and
rateably without any preference among themselves and (subject to any applicable statutory exceptions
and without prejudice as aforesaid) rank equally with al other unsecured and unsubordinated
indebtedness and monetary obligations of the I ssuer, present and future.

(b) [Guarantee

The Guarantor has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due payment of all sums expressed
to be payable by the Issuer under the Notes, Receipts and Coupons. Its obligations in that respect (the
“Guarantee”) are contained in the Deed of Covenant. The Guarantee is a direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligation of the Guarantor and will rank equally with all other
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness and monetary obligations of the Guarantor, present and
future (subject to certain statutory exceptions under Japanese law).]®

3.  Negative Pledge
(@ thelssuer

[So long as any Note remains outstanding (as defined in the Agency Agreement), the Issuer will not
create or permit to be outstanding any pledge, mortgage, charge or other security interest for the
benefit of the holders of any of the Issuer’s Relevant Debt (as defined below) upon the whole or any

@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui Asia
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4.

(b)

part of the property or assets, present or future, of the Issuer to secure payment of any sum payable in
accordance with the terms and conditions of such Relevant Debt, except for any security interest to
secure any payment under any guarantee of, or indemnity or other like obligation relating to, such
Relevant Debt, without in any such case at the same time according or procuring to be accorded to the
Notes, Receipts and Coupons either (i) the same security as is granted to or is outstanding in respect of
such Relevant Debt, or (ii) such other security or guarantee, as shall in each case be approved by an
Extraordinary Resolution of Noteholders (as defined in the Agency Agreement).

For the purposes of this Condition, “Relevant Debt” means an issue of bonds, debentures, notes or
other similar securities of the Issuer with a stated maturity (if any) of more than one year from the
creation thereof which are for the time being, or are intended to be, quoted, listed or ordinarily dealt in
or traded on any stock exchange or over-the-counter market or other similar organised market for
securities]®

[the Guarantor]®

So long as any of the Notes remains outstanding (as defined in the Agency Agreement), [the
Guarantor]® [the Issuer]® will not create or permit to be outstanding any pledge, mortgage, charge or
other security interest for the benefit of the holders of Securities (as defined below) upon the whole or
any part of its property or assets, present or future, of [the Guarantor]®” [the Issuer]® to secure
payment of any sum due in respect of any Securities, without in any such case at the same time
according to the Notes, Receipts and Coupons either the same security as is granted to or is
outstanding in respect of such Securities or such other security as shal be approved by an
Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Agency Agreement) of the Noteholders.

For the purposes of this Condition, “Securities’ shall mean an issue of bonds, debentures, notes or
other similar securities which:

Q) either (A) are by their terms payable, or confer aright to receive any payment, in any currency
other than Yen or (B) are denominated in Yen and more than 50 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount thereof isinitially distributed outside Japan by or with the authorisation of [the
Guarantor] [the Issuer]® or (as the case may be) the other entity being the principal debtor in
respect thereof; and

(i)  arefor the time being, or are intended to be, quoted, listed, ordinarily dealt in or traded on any
stock exchange or listing authority or over-the-counter or other similar securities market outside

Japan.

Interest and Other Calculations

(@)

Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or if it is repayable in
instalments, its nominal amount outstanding) from the Interest Commencement Date at the rate per
annum (expressed as a percentage) equal to the Rate of Interest (as defined below), such interest being
payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date. The amount of interest payable shall be determined in
accordance with Condition 4(f).

Interest will cease to accrue on each Note on the due date for redemption unless, upon due
presentation, payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused, in which event interest will

@ Text only applicable to Notesissued by Mitsui Asia
@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui & Co.
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(b)

continue to accrue (as well after as before judgment) at the Rate of Interest in the manner provided in
this Condition 4 to the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 7(c)).

Interest on Floating Rate Notes

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Each Floating Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or if it is repayable
in instalments, its nominal amount outstanding) from the Interest Commencement Date at the
rate per annum (expressed as a percentage) equa to the Rate of Interest, such interest being
payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date. The amount of interest payable shall be
determined in accordance with Condition 4(f). Such Interest Payment Date(s) is/are either
shown hereon as Specified Interest Payment Dates or, if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s)
iare shown hereon, Interest Payment Date shall mean each date which falls on the number of
months or other period shown hereon as the Specified Period after the preceding Interest
Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest
Commencement Date.

If any date referred to in these Conditions that is specified to be subject to adjustment in
accordance with a Business Day Convention would otherwise fall on a day that is not a
Business Day (as defined below), then, if the Business Day Convention specified is (A) the
Floating Rate Business Day Convention, such date shall be postponed to the next day that is a
Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (x) such
date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (y) each
subsequent such date shall be the last Business Day of the month in which such date would
have fallen had it not been subject to adjustment, (B) the Following Business Day Convention,
such date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day, (C) the Modified Following
Business Day Convention, such date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day
unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such date shall be
brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day or (D) the Preceding Business Day
Convention, such date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

The Rate of Interest in respect of Floating Rate Notes for each Interest Accrual Period (as
defined below) shall be determined in the manner specified hereon and the provisions below
relating to either ISDA Determination or Screen Rate Determination shall apply, depending
upon which is specified hereon.

(A) 1SDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified hereon as the manner in which the Rate of
Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Accrual Period shall be
determined by the Calculation Agent as a rate equal to the relevant ISDA Rate. For the
purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), “ISDA Rate” for an Interest Accrual Period means a
rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Calculation Agent under
a Swap Transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the ISDA Definitions
(as defined below) and under which:

(x)  theFloating Rate Option is as specified hereon;
(y) theDesignated Maturity is a period specified hereon; and

(27  the relevant Reset Date is the first day of that Interest Accrual Period unless
otherwise specified hereon.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), “Floating Rate”, “Calculation Agent”,
“Foating Rate Option”, “Designated Maturity”, “Reset Date” and “Swap Transaction”
have the meanings given to those termsin the ISDA Definitions.
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(B)

Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

)

v)

)

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified hereon as the manner in which the
Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Accrual
Period will, subject as provided below, be either:

(1)  theoffered quotation; or
(2)  thearithmetic mean of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate (which shall
be LIBOR, EURIBOR, TIBOR, Shibor, BBSW, MosPrime Rate, JIBAR, SOR,
SIBOR or CNH HIBOR) which appears or appear, as the case may be, on the
Relevant Screen Page (as defined below) as at 11.00 am. (London time in the
case of LIBOR or Brussels time in the case of EURIBOR), or 11.15 am. (Hong
Kong time) or if, a or around that time it is notified that the fixing will be
published at 2.30 p.m. (Hong Kong time), then as of 2.30 p.m. (in the case of
CNH HIBOR) or as at such other Relevant Time specified hereon, on the Interest
Determination Date (as defined below) in question as determined by the
Calculation Agent. If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the
Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest
guotation, one only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than
one such lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by
the Calculation Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean of such
offered quotations.

if the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, Condition 4(b)(iii)(B)(x)(1)
applies and no such offered quotation appears on the Relevant Screen Page or if
Condition 4(b)(iii)(B)(x)(2) applies and fewer than three such offered quotations
appear on the Relevant Screen Page in each case as at the time specified above,
subject as provided below, the Calculation Agent shall request, if the Reference
Rate is LIBOR, the principal London office of each of the Reference Banks (as
defined below) or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR, the principal Euro-zone
office of each of the Reference Banks o, if the Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR,
the principal Hong Kong office of each of the Reference Banks, or, if the
Reference Rate is other than LIBOR, EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR, the principal
office of each of the Reference Banks in the location specified hereon, to provide
the Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate
per annum) for the Reference Rate if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, at
approximately 11.00 am. (London time) or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR,
at approximately 11.00 am. (Brussels time) or, if the Reference Rate is CNH
HIBOR, at approximately 11.00 am. (Hong Kong time) or, if the Reference Rate
is other than LIBOR, EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR, as at the Relevant Time
specified hereon, in each case, on the Interest Determination Date in question. If
two or more of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with such
offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period (as defined below)
shall be the arithmetic mean of such offered quotations as determined by the
Calculation Agent; and

if Condition 4(b)(iii)(B)(y) applies and the Calculation Agent determines that
fewer than two Reference Banks are providing offered quotations, subject as
provided below, the Rate of Interest shall be the arithmetic mean of the rates per
annum (expressed as a percentage) as communicated to (and at the request of) the
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(d)

Accrual of I nterest

Calculation Agent by the Reference Banks or any two or more of them, at which
such banks were offered, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, at approximately 11.00
am. (London time) or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR, at approximately
11.00 am. (Brussels time) or, if the Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR, at
approximately 11.00 am. (Hong Kong time) or, if the Reference Rate is other
than LIBOR, EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR, as a the Relevant Time specified
hereon, in each case, on the relevant Interest Determination Date, deposits in the
Specified Currency (as defined below) for a period equa to that which would
have been used for the Reference Rate by leading banks in, if the Reference Rate
is LIBOR, the London inter-bank market or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR,
the Euro-zone inter-bank market or, if the Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR, the
Hong Kong inter-bank market or, if the Reference Rate is other than LIBOR,
EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR, the location for the Reference Banks specified
hereon, as the case may be, or, if fewer than two of the Reference Banks provide
the Calculation Agent with such offered rates, the offered rate for deposits in the
Specified Currency for a period egual to that which would have been used for the
Reference Rate, or the arithmetic mean of the offered rates for deposits in the
Specified Currency for a period egual to that which would have been used for the
Reference Rate, at which, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, at approximately
11.00 am. (London time) or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR, at
approximately 11.00 am. (Brussels time) or, if the Reference Rate is CNH
HIBOR, at approximately 11.00 am. (Hong Kong time) or, if the Reference Rate
is other than LIBOR, EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR, as at such other Relevant Time
specified hereon, in each case, on the relevant Interest Determination Date, any
one or more banks (which bank or banks is or are in the opinion and the Issuer
suitable for such purpose) informs the Calculation Agent it is quoting to leading
banksin, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, the London inter-bank market or, if the
Reference Rate is EURIBOR, the Euro-zone inter-bank market or, if the
Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR, the Hong Kong inter-bank market or, if the
Reference Rate is other than LIBOR, EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR, the location
for the Reference Banks specified hereon, as the case may be, provided that, if
the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this paragraph, the Rate of Interest shall be determined as at the last
preceding Interest Determination Date (though substituting, where a different
Margin or Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest is to be applied to the relevant
Interest Accrual Period from that which applied to the last preceding Interest
Accrual Period, the Margin or Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest relating to
the relevant Interest Accrual Period, in place of the Margin or Maximum or
Minimum Rate of Interest relating to that last preceding Interest Accrual Period).

I nterest Rate on Zero Coupon Notes

Where a Note the Interest Basis of which is specified to be Zero Coupon is repayable prior to the
Maturity Date and is not paid when due, the amount due and payable prior to the Maturity Date shall
be the Early Redemption Amount of such Note. As from the Maturity Date, the Rate of Interest for any
overdue principa of such a Note shall be a rate per annum (expressed as a percentage) equal to the
Amortisation Yield (as described in Condition 5(d)(ii)).

Interest (if any) shall cease to accrue on each Note (or in the case of the redemption of part only of a
Note, that part only of such Note) on the due date for redemption unless, upon due presentation,
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(9)

payment is improperly withheld or refused, in which event interest shall continue to accrue (as well
after as before judgment) at the Rate of Interest in the manner provided in this Condition 4 to the
Relevant Date.

Margin, Maximum/Minimum Rates of Interest, I nstalment Amounts and Redemption Amounts and
Rounding

Q) If any Margin is specified hereon (either (x) generally or (y) in relation to one or more Interest
Accrual Periods), an adjustment shall be made to all Rates of Interest, in the case of (x), or the
Rates of Interest for the specified Interest Accrual Periods, in the case of (y), calculated in
accordance with (b) above, by adding (if a positive number) or subtracting (if a negative
number) the absolute value of such Margin subject always to the next paragraph.

@ity  If any Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest, Instalment Amount or Redemption Amount is
specified hereon, then any Rate of Interest, Instalment Amount or Redemption Amount shall be
subject to such maximum or minimum, as the case may be. If no Minimum Rate of Interest for
any Interest Period is specified in the relevant Final Terms, then the Minimum Rate of Interest
in respect of such Interest Period shall be deemed to be zero (0) and in no event shall the Rate
of Interest for such period calculated in accordance with (b) above be less than zero.

(i)  For the purposes of any calculations required pursuant to these Conditions (unless otherwise
specified), (x) all percentages resulting from such calculations will be rounded, if necessary, to
the nearest one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point (with halves being rounded up), (y)
all figures shall be rounded to seven significant figures (with halves being rounded up) and (z)
all currency amounts which fall due and payable will be rounded to the nearest unit of such
currency (with halves being rounded up), save in the case of Japanese yen, which shall be
rounded down to the nearest Japanese yen. For these purposes “unit” means the lowest amount
of such currency which is available as legal tender in the country(ies) of such currency.

Calculations

The amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount in respect of any Note for any Interest Accrual
Period shall be equal to the product of the Rate of Interest, the Calculation Amount specified hereon,
and the Day Count Fraction for such Interest Accrual Period and, in the case of Notes denominated in
CNH, rounding the resulting figure to the nearest cent (half a cent being rounded upwards). Unless an
Interest Amount (or a formula for its calculation) is specified in respect of such Interest Accrua
Period, in which case the amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount in respect of such Note
for such Interest Accrual Period shall equal such Interest Amount (or be calculated in accordance with
such formula). Where any Interest Period comprises two or more Interest Accrual Periods, the amount
of interest payable per Calculation Amount in respect of such Interest Period shall be the sum of the
Interest Amounts payable in respect of each of those Interest Accrual Periods. In respect of any other
period for which interest is required to be calculated, the provisions above shall apply save that the
Day Count Fraction shall be for the period for which interest is required to be calculated.

Determination and Publication of Rates of Interest, Interest Amounts, Final Redemption Amounts,
Early Redemption Amounts, Optional Redemption Amounts and I nstalment Amounts

The Calculation Agent shall, as soon as practicable on each Interest Determination Date or such other
time on such date as the Calculation Agent may be required to calculate any rate or amount, obtain any
quotation or make any determination or calculation, determine such rate and calculate the amount of
interest payable in respect of each Specified Denomination of the Notes for the relevant Interest
Accrua Period, calculate the Final Redemption Amount, Early Redemption Amount, Optional
Redemption Amount or Instalment Amount, obtain such quotation or make such determination or
calculation, as the case may be, and cause the Rate of Interest and the Interest Amounts for each
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Interest Accrua Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date and, if required to be calculated, the
Fina Redemption Amount, Early Redemption Amount, Optiona Redemption Amount or any
Instalment Amount, to be notified to the Issuer, the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent, each of the
other Paying Agents, the Noteholders, any other Calculation Agent appointed in respect of the Notes
which isto make a further calculation upon receipt of such information and, if the Notes are listed on a
stock exchange and the rules of such exchange or other relevant authority so require, such exchange or
other relevant authority as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than (i) the
commencement of the relevant Interest Period, if determined prior to such time, in the case of
notification to such exchange of a Rate of Interest and Interest Amount, or (ii) in al other cases, the
fourth Business Day after such determination, in accordance with Condition 13.

The Interest Amounts and the Interest Payment Date so published may subsequently be amended (or
appropriate aternative arrangements made by way of adjustment) without notice in the event of an
extension or shortening of the Interest Period. If the Notes become due and payable under Condition 9,
the accrued interest and the Rate of Interest payable in respect of the Notes shall nevertheless continue
to be calculated as previously in accordance with this Condition but no publication of the Rate of
Interest or the Interest Amount so calculated need be made. The determination of each Rate of Interest,
Interest Amount, Final Redemption Amount, Early Redemption Amount, Optional Redemption
Amount and Instalment Amount, the obtaining of each quote and the making of each determination or
calculation by the Calculation Agent(s) shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding
upon all parties.

Definitions

In these Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires, the following defined terms shall have the
meanings set out below:

“Business Day” means:

Q) in the case of a Specified Currency other than euro and CNH, a day (other than a Saturday or
Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the
principal financial centre for that currency; and/or

(i)  in the case of euro, a day on which the TARGET System (as defined below) is operating (a
“TARGET Business Day”); and/or

(iii) in the case of CNH, a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets are open for business in Hong Kong, and on
which commercial banks in Hong Kong are open for business and settlement of CNH
payments; and/or

(iv)  inthe case of a Specified Currency and/or one or more Business Centres, as specified hereon, a
day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange
markets settle payments in such currency in the Business Centre(s) or, if no currency is
indicated, generally in each of the Business Centres so specified.

“CNH” or “Renminbi” or “Chinese Yuan” means the lawful currency of the PRC.

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount on any Note for any period of
time (from and including the first day of such period to but excluding the last) (whether or not
congtituting an Interest Period or Interest Accrual Period, the “ Calculation Period”):

0] if “Actual/Actual” or “Actual/Actual-(1SDA)” is specified hereon, the actual number of daysin
the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Calculation Period falls in a
leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

faling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the
Calculation Period falling in anon-leap year divided by 365);

if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is specified hereon, the actual number of daysin the Calculation Period
divided by 365;

if “Actual/360" is specified hereon, the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided
by 360;

if “30/360", “360/360" or “Bond Basis’ is specified hereon, the number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 360 calculated on aformula basis as follows:

[360 x (Y2-Y1)] +[30x (M2-M 1)]+ (D2 -D1)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where;
“Y1" isthe year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period fals;

“Y2" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period falls;

“M1" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period fals;

“M2" isthe calendar month, expressed as number, in which the day immediately following the
last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

“D1” is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless such
number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

“D2" isthe calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included in
the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31 and D1 is greater than 29, in which
case D2 will be 30;

if “30E/360" or “Eurobond Basis’ is specified hereon, the number of days in the Calculation
Period divided by 360 calculated on aformula basis as follows:

[360 x (Y2-Y1)] +[30 X (M2 -M 1)]+ (D2 -D1)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:
“Y1" isthe year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period fals;

“Y2" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period falls;

“M1" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

"M2" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

“D1” is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless such
number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

“D2" isthe calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included in
the Cal culation Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be 30;
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(vi) if “30E/360 (ISDA)” is specified hereon, the number of days in the Calculation Period divided
by 360, calculated on aformula basis as follows:

[360 x (Y2-Y1)] +[30x (M2-M 1)]+ (D2 -D1)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:
“Y1" isthe year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period fals;

“Y2" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period falls;

“M1" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period fals;

“M2" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

“D1” isthe first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless (i) that
day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30;
and

"D2" isthe calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included in
the Calculation Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but not the Maturity Date
or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be 30; and

(vii) if “Actual/Actua-ICMA” is specified hereon,

(@ if the Cdculation Period is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during
which it falls, the number of daysin the Calculation Period divided by the product of (x)
the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination
Periods normally ending in any year; and

(b) if the Calculation Period islonger than one Determination Period, the sum of:

(x)  the number of daysin such Calculation Period falling in the Determination Period
in which it begins divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Periods normally
ending in any year; and

(y)  the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next Determination
Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (2) the number of Determination Periods normally ending in any year

where:

“Determination Period” means the period from and including a Determination Date in
any year to but excluding the next Determination Date.

“Interest Accrual Period” means the period beginning on (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date and ending on (but excluding) the first Interest Period Date (as
defined below) and each successive period beginning on (and including) an Interest
Period Date and ending on (but excluding) the next succeeding Interest Period Date.

“Hong Kong” means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’'s Republic of
China.
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“Interest Amount” means:

() in respect of an Interest Accrual Period, the amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount
for that Interest Accrual Period and which, in the case of Fixed Rate Notes (other than Notes
denominated in CNH), and unless otherwise specified hereon, shall mean the Fixed Coupon
Amount or Broken Amount specified hereon as being payable on the Interest Payment Date
ending the Interest Period of which such Interest Accrual Period forms part; and

(i)  inrespect of any other period, the amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount for that
period.

“Interest Commencement Date” means the date of issue of the Notes (the “Settlement Date”) or such
other date as may be specified hereon.

“Interest Determination Date” means, with respect to a Rate of Interest and Interest Accrual Period, the
date specified as such hereon or, if none is so specified, (i) the first day of such Interest Accrua Period
if the Specified Currency is Sterling or CNH other than where the Specified Currency is CNH and the
Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR or (ii) the day falling two Business Days in London for the Specified
Currency prior to the first day of such Interest Accrua Period if the Specified Currency is neither
Sterling nor euro or (iii) the day falling two TARGET Business Days prior to the first day of such
Interest Accrual Period if the Specified Currency is euro or (iv) the day falling two Business Days in
Hong Kong prior to the first day of such Interest Accrual Period if the Specified Currency is Renminbi
and the Reference Rateis CNH HIBOR.

“Interest Period” means the period beginning on (and including) the Interest Commencement Date and
ending on (but excluding) the first Interest Payment Date and each successive period beginning on
(and including) an Interest Payment Date and ending on (but excluding) the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date.

“Interest Period Date” means each Interest Payment Date unless otherwise specified hereon.

“1SDA Definitions” means the 2006 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc., unless otherwise specified hereon.

“PRC” means the People's Republic of China which for the purpose of these Conditions shall exclude
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China and Taiwan.

“Rate of Interest” means the rate of interest payable from time to time in respect of this Note and that
is either specified or calculated in accordance with the provisions hereon.

“Reference Banks’ means, in the case of a determination of LIBOR, the principal London office of
four major banks in the London inter-bank market, in the case of a determination of EURIBOR, the
principal Euro-zone office of four major banks in the Euro-zone inter-bank market, in the case of a
determination of CNH HIBOR, the principal Hong Kong office of four major banks dealing in Chinese
Yuan in the Hong Kong inter-bank market, and in the case of a determination of a Reference Rate other
than LIBOR, EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR, four mgjor banks in the location for the Reference Banks
specified hereon, in each case selected by the Calculation Agent or as specified hereon.

“Reference Rate” means such rate specified as such hereon.

“Relevant Screen Page” means such page, section, caption, column or other part of a particular
information service as may be specified hereon.

“Relevant Time” means such time as specified hereon.

“Specified Currency” means the currency specified as such hereon or, if none is specified, the currency
in which the Notes are denominated.
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“TARGET System” means the Trans European Automated Real Time Gross Settlement Express
Transfer (known as TARGET?2) System which was launched on 19th November, 2007 or any successor
thereto.

Calculation Agent and Reference Banks

The Issuer will procure that there shall at all times be one or more Calculation Agents if provision is
made for them in the Conditions applicable to the Notes and for so long as any Notes are outstanding.
Where more than one Calculation Agent is appointed in respect of the Notes, references in these
Conditions to the Calculation Agent shall be construed as each Calculation Agent performing its
respective duties under the Conditions. If the Calculation Agent is unable or unwilling to act as such or
if the Calculation Agent fails duly to establish the Rate of Interest for any Interest Period or to
calculate the Interest Amounts or comply with any other requirements, the Issuer will appoint the
London office of a leading bank engaged in the London interbank market to act as such in its place.
The Calculation Agent may not resign its duties without a successor having been appointed as
aforesaid.

5. Redemption, Purchase and Options

(@)

(b)

Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled as provided below or its maturity is extended
pursuant to any Issuer’s or Noteholders' option, as specified in the relevant Final Terms, each Note will
be redeemed at its Fina Redemption Amount (which, unless otherwise provided, is its nominal
amount) on the Maturity Date specified on each Note.

Redemption for Taxation Reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, on any Interest
Payment Date (if this Note is a Floating Rate Note) or at any time (if this Note is not a Floating Rate
Note), on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Noteholders (which notice shall
be irrevocable), at their Early Redemption Amount (together with interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption), if (i) the Issuer [or, if the payments under the Guarantee were required to be made, the
Guarantor]® has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in
Condition 7, or increase the payment of such additiona amounts as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws (or any regulations, rulings or other administrative pronouncements
promulgated thereunder) of the jurisdiction in which the Issuer is incorporated [or, as the case may be,
Japan] and/or in which the Issuer [or the Guarantor, as the case may be]® is resident for tax
purposes or maintains a permanent establishment (each, the “Relevant Jurisdiction”) or any political
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax, or any change in the application or
official interpretation of such laws, regulations, rulings or other administrative pronouncements, which
change or amendment is made public on or after the Settlement Date or any other date specified in the
Fina Terms, and (ii) such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer [or the Guarantor, as the case
may be,]® taking reasonable measures available to it, provided that no such notice of redemption shall
be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer [or the Guarantor, as the case
may be,]® would be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes
[or the Guarantee, as the case may be ] then due. Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption
pursuant to this paragraph, the Issuer shall deliver to the Issuing and Principa Paying Agent a
certificate signed by a duly authorised officer of the Issuer [or the Guarantor, as the case may be ]
stating that the Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts
showing that the conditions precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred, and an
opinion of independent legal advisors of recognised standing to the effect that the Issuer [or the
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Guarantor, as the case may be] has or is likely to become obliged to pay such additional amounts as
aresult of such change or amendment.

(c)  Purchase

Notes may be purchased by or on behalf of the Issuer[, the Guarantor]® and any of [its?/their
respective®™] subsidiaries at any time (provided that, if Bearer Notes are to be cancelled in accordance
with Condition 5(h), al unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons (if any)
appertaining thereto are attached or surrendered therewith) in the open market or otherwise at any
price.

(d)  Early Redemption of Zero Coupon Notes

Q) The Early Redemption Amount payable in respect of any Note which does not bear interest
prior to the Maturity Date, upon redemption of such Note pursuant to Condition 5(b) or upon it
becoming due and payable as provided in Condition 9, shall be the amortised face amount
(“Amortised Face Amount”) (calculated as provided below) of such Note unless otherwise
specified hereon.

(i)  Subject to the provisions of Condition 5(d)(iii) below, the Amortised Face Amount of any such
Note shall be the scheduled Final Redemption Amount of such Note on the Maturity Date
discounted at a rate per annum (expressed as a percentage) equal to the Amortisation Yield
(which, if none is shown hereon, shall be such rate as would produce an Amortised Face
Amount equal to the issue price of the Notes if they were discounted back to their issue price on
the Settlement Date) compounded annually. Where such calculation is to be made for a period
of less than one year, it shall be made on the basis of the Day Count Fraction shown hereon.

(i)  If the Early Redemption Amount payable in respect of any such Note upon its redemption
pursuant to Condition 5(b) or upon it becoming due and payable as provided in Condition 9 is
not paid when due, the Early Redemption Amount due and payable in respect of such Note shall
be the Amortised Face Amount of such Note as defined in Condition (5)(d)(ii) above, except
that such sub-paragraph shall have effect as though the reference therein to the date on which
the Note becomes due and payable were replaced by a reference to the Relevant Date. The
calculation of the Amortised Face Amount in accordance with this sub-paragraph will continue
to be made (as well after as before judgment) until the Relevant Date, unless the Relevant Date
fals on or after the Maturity Date, in which case the amount due and payable shall be the
scheduled Final Redemption Amount of such Note on the Maturity Date together with any
interest which may accrue in accordance with Condition 4(c).

(e) Redemption at the Option of the I ssuer

If Issuer Call Option is specified hereon, the Issuer may, on giving not less than 15 nor more than 30
days’ irrevocable notice to the Noteholders within the period as specified in the applicable Final Terms,
redeem all or, if so provided, some of the Notes in their nominal amount on any Optional Redemption
Date. Any such redemption of Notes shall be at their Optional Redemption Amount together with
interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption. Any such redemption or exercise must relate to Notes
of a nominal amount at least equal to the Minimum Redemption Amount to be redeemed specified
hereon and no greater than the Maximum Redemption Amount to be redeemed specified hereon.

All Notes in respect of which any such notice is given shall be redeemed on the date specified in such
notice in accordance with this Condition 5(e).

@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui Asia
@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui & Co.
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In the case of a partial redemption, the notice to Noteholders shall also contain the serial humbers of
the Bearer Notes to be redeemed, or in the case of Registered Notes shall specify the nominal amount
of Registered Notes drawn and the holder(s) of such Registered Notes to be redeemed, which shall
have been drawn in such place and in such manner as may be fair and reasonable in the circumstances,
taking account of prevailing market practices, subject to compliance with any applicable laws and
stock exchange requirements or the requirements of any other relevant authority.

()] Redemption at the Option of Noteholders

If Investor Put Option is specified hereon, the Issuer shall, at the option of the holder of any such Note,
giving not less than 15 nor more than 30 days' notice, redeem such Note on the Optional Redemption
Date(s) at its Optional Redemption Amount together with interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption.

To exercise such option the holder must deposit (in the case of Bearer Notes) such Note (together with
all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons) with any Paying Agent or (in the case
of Registered Notes) the Certificate representing such Registered Note(s) with the Registrar or any
Transfer Agent at its specified office, together with a duly completed option exercise notice (an
“Exercise Notice”) in the form obtainable from any Paying Agent, the Registrar or any Transfer Agent
(as applicable) within the notice period. No Note or Certificate so deposited and option exercised may
be withdrawn (except as provided in the Agency Agreement) without the prior consent of the I ssuer.

(g) Redemption by Instalments

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled as provided in this Condition 5 or the relevant
Instalment Date (being one of the dates so specified on the Notes) is extended pursuant to any Issuer’s
or Noteholders' option, as specified in the relevant Final Terms, each Note which provides for
Instalment Dates and Instalment Amounts will be partially redeemed on each Instalment Date at the
Instalment Amount specified on it, whereupon the outstanding nominal amount of such Note shall be
reduced by the Instalment Amount for all purposes.

(h)  Cancéllation

All Notes purchased by or on behalf of the Issuer|, the Guarantor]® or any of [its®/their respective™]
subsidiaries may be surrendered for cancellation (in the case of Bearer Notes) by surrendering each
such Note together with al unmatured Receipts and Coupons and all unexchanged Talons to the
Issuing and Principal Paying Agent and (in the case of Registered Notes) by surrendering the
Certificate representing such Registered Note(s) to the Registrar and, in each case, if so surrendered,
will, together with al Notes redeemed by the Issuer, be cancelled forthwith (together with all
unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith).
Any Notes so surrendered for cancellation may not be reissued or resold and the obligations of the
Issuer [and the Guarantor]® in respect of any such Notes shall be discharged.

6. Payment and Talons
(a) Bearer Notes

Payments of principal and interest in respect of Bearer Notes will, subject as mentioned below, be
made against presentation and surrender of the relevant Coupons (in the case of interest, save as
specified in Condition 6(f)(vi)), Receipts (in the case of payments of Instalment Amounts other than on
the due date for redemption and provided that the Receipt is presented for payment together with its
relative Note) or Notes (in the case of al other payments of principal and, in the case of interest, as
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(b)

(©)

(d)

specified in Condition 6(f)(vi)), at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States of
America and its possessions, other than in the case of Notes denominated in CNH, by a cheque
payable in the currency in which such payment is due drawn on, or, at the option of the holder, by
transfer to an account denominated in that currency with, abank in the principal financial centre of that
currency or in the case of euro, in a city in which banks have access to the TARGET System; provided
that in the case of Japanese yen, the transfer will be to a non-resident Japanese yen account with a bank
in Tokyo (in the case of payment to a non-resident of Japan), or, in the case of Notes denominated in
CNH, by transfer to an account denominated in Renminbi with a bank in Hong Kong.

Registered Notes

Q) Payments of principal (which for the purposes of this Condition 6(b) shall include final
Instalment Amounts but not other Instalment Amounts) in respect of Registered Notes shall be
made against presentation and surrender of the relevant Certificates at the specified office of
any of the Transfer Agents or of the Registrar and in the manner provided in this Condition
6(b).

(i)  Interest (which for the purposes of this Condition 6(b) shall include al Instalment Amounts
other than final Instalment Amounts) on Registered Notes shall be paid to the person shown on
the Register at the close of business (i) on the fifteenth day before the due date for payment
thereof or (ii) in the case of Renminbi, on the fifth Business Day before the due date for
payment thereof (as applicable, the “Record Date”).

Payments of principal and interest on each Registered Note shall be made (1) in the case of a currency
other than Renminbi, in the relevant currency by cheque drawn on a bank and mailed to the holder (or
to the first-named of joint holders) of such Note at its address appearing in the Register. Upon
application by the holder to the specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent before the
Record Date, such payment of principal or interest may be made by transfer to an account in the
relevant currency maintained by the payee with a bank; and (2) in the case of Renminbi, by transfer to
the registered account of the Noteholder.

Paymentsin the United States of America

Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments in respect of any Bearer Notes denominated in U.S. dollars
may be made at the specified office of any Paying Agent in New York City in the same manner as
aforesaid if and only if (i) the Issuer shall have appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside
the United States of America and its possessions with the reasonable expectation that such Paying
Agents would be able to make payment of the amounts on the Notes in U.S. dollars in the manner
provided above when due, (ii) payment in full of such amounts at all such offices is illegal or
effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions on payment or receipt of such
amounts and (iii) such payment is then permitted by United States law, without involving, in the
opinion of the Issuer, any adverse tax consequence to the I ssuer.

Payments Subject to Laws

Payments will be subject in all casesto (i) any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto in
the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 7 and (ii) any withholding
or deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Internal Revenue Code, any
regulations or agreements thereunder, any officia interpretations thereof, or (without prejudice to the
provisions of Condition 7) any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto.
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(e)  Appointment of Agents

The Issuing and Principal Paying Agent, the other Paying Agents, the Registrar, the Transfer Agents,
the Fiscal Agent and the Calculation Agent initially appointed by the Issuers [and the Guarantor]® and
their respective specified offices which are (save in the case of the Fiscal Agent) located outside the
United States and its possessions are listed below. The Issuing and Principal Paying Agent, the other
Paying Agents, the Registrar, the Transfer Agents, the Fisca Agent and the Calculation Agent act
solely as agents of the Issuers [and the Guarantor]® and do not assume any obligation or relationship
of agency or trust for or with any holder. The Issuers [and the Guarantor]® reserve the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent or any other
Paying Agent, the Registrar, any Transfer Agent or the Fiscal Agent and to appoint additional or other
Paying Agents, Transfer Agents or Fiscal Agents, provided that the Issuers will at all times maintain (i)
an Issuing and Principal Paying Agent, (ii) a Fiscal Agent, (iii) a Registrar in relation to Registered
Notes, (iv) a Transfer Agent in relation to Registered Notes, (v) one or more Calculation Agent(s)
where the Conditions so require and (vi) such other agent as may be required by any stock exchange
on which the Notes may be listed. No Issuing and Principal Paying Agent, however, shall be located
within the United States or its possessions. Moreover, except as set forth in the immediately
succeeding sentence, no Paying Agent shall be located within the United States or its possessions.

The Issuer [and the Guarantor]® shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent in New York City in respect of
payments in respect of any Bearer Notes denominated in U.S. dollars in the circumstances described in
Condition 6(c).

Notice of any such change or any change of any specified office will promptly be given to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13.

()] Unmatured Coupons and Receipts and unexchanged Talons

Q) Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note comprising a Fixed Rate Note, such Note
shall be surrendered for payment together with all unmatured Coupons (if any) relating thereto,
failing which an amount equal to the face value of each missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the
case of payment not being made in full, that proportion of the amount of such missing
unmatured Coupon which the sum of principal so paid bears to the total principal due) will be
deducted from the Fina Redemption Amount, Early Redemption Amount or Optional
Redemption Amount, as the case may be, due for payment. Any amount so deducted will be
paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of such missing Coupon within a period
of 10 years from the Relevant Date for the payment of such principal (whether or not such
Coupon has become void pursuant to Condition 8).

(i)  Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note comprising a Floating Rate Note,
unmatured Coupons relating to such Note (whether or not attached) shall become void and no
payment shall be made in respect of them.

(iii)  Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note, any unexchanged Talon relating to such
Note (whether or not attached) shall become void and no Coupon shall be delivered in respect
of such Talon.

(iv)  Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note which is redeemable in instalments, all
Receipts relating to such Note having an Instalment Date falling on or after such due date
(whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect of them.

@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui Asia
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(9)

(h)

(i)

(v)  Where any Bearer Note which provides that the relative unmatured Coupons are to become
void upon the due date for redemption of those Notes is presented for redemption without all
unmatured Coupons and any unexchanged Talon relating to it, and where any Bearer Note is
presented for redemption without any unexchanged Talon relating to it, redemption shall be
made only against the provision of such indemnity as the Issuer may require.

(vi)  If the due date for redemption of any Note is not a due date for payment of interest, interest
accrued from the preceding due date for payment of interest or the Interest Commencement
Date, as the case may be, shall only be payable against presentation (and surrender, if
appropriate) of the relevant Note or Certificate representing it, as the case may be. Interest
accrued on a Note which only bears interest after its Maturity Date shall be payable on
redemption of such Note against presentation of the relevant Note or Certificate representing it,
as the case may be.

Talons

On or after the Interest Payment Date for the final Coupon forming part of a Coupon sheet issued in
respect of any Bearer Note, the Talon forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the
specified office of the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet (and
if necessary another Talon for a further Coupon sheet) (but excluding any Coupons which may have
become void pursuant to Condition 8).

Non-Business Days

If any date for payment in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a business day, the holder
shall not be entitled to payment until the next following business day nor to any interest or other sum
in respect of such postponed payment. In this paragraph, “business day” means a day (other than a
Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for business in the
relevant place of presentation, in such jurisdictions as shall be specified as “Additional Financia
Centres’ hereon and:

Q) in the case of a payment (in a currency other than euro and Renminbi) where payment is to be
made by transfer to an account maintained with a bank in the relevant currency, on which
foreign exchange transactions may be carried on in the relevant currency in the principal
financial centre of the country of such currency;

(i)  inthe case of apayment in euro, whichisa TARGET Business Day; or

(iii)  inthe case of a payment in Renminbi, on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open
for business and settlement of Renminbi paymentsin Hong Kong.

Payment of U.S. Dollar Equivalent

Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 6(a) and Condition 6(b) and all other provisions in the
Conditions, if by reason of Inconvertibility, Non-transferability or Illiquidity, the Issuer is not able, or
it would be impracticable for it, to satisfy payments of principal or interest (in whole or in part) in
respect of Notes when due in Renminbi in Hong Kong, the Issuer, on giving not less than five or more
than 30 days' irrevocable notice to the Noteholders prior to the due date for payment, may settle any
such payment (in whole or in part) in U.S. dollars on the due date at the U.S. Dollar Equivalent of any
such Renminbi denominated amount.

In such event, payments of the U.S. Dollar Equivalent of the relevant principal or interest in respect of
the Notes shall be made by a U.S. dollar denominated cheque drawn on a bank in New York City or by
transfer to aU.S. dollar bank account in New York City specified by the Noteholder.
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The Issuing and Principal Paying Agent will notify the Issuer of the calculation of the U.S. Dollar
Equivalent as soon as reasonably practicable following the calculation thereof by the Issuing and
Principal Paying Agent.

In the event of a payment pursuant to this Condition 6(i), the following modification shall be made in
respect of the Conditions:

The definition of “Business Day” in Condition 4(h) shall mean a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or
public holiday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets are open for businessin the
relevant place of presentation and on which foreign exchange transactions may be carried out in U.S.
dollarsin New York City.

Under this Condition 6(i), in place of payment by transfer to an account maintained by the Noteholder
in Renminbi with a bank in Hong Kong under Condition 6(a) and Condition 6(b), payment shall be
made by transfer to a U.S. dollar account maintained by the Notehol der.

For the purposes of this Condition 6(i):

“CNH Dealer” means an independent foreign exchange dealer of internationa repute active in the
Renminbi exchange market in Hong Kong;

“Governmental Authority” means any de facto or de jure government (or any agency or instrumentality
thereof), court, tribunal, administrative or other governmental authority or any other entity (private or
public) charged with the regulation of the financial markets (including the central bank) of Hong
Kong;

“Illiquidity” means the general Renminbi exchange market in Hong Kong becomesiilliquid as a result
of which the Issuer cannot obtain sufficient Renminbi in order to satisfy its obligation to pay interest
and principal (in whole or in part) in respect of the Notes, as determined by the Issuer in good faith and
in acommercialy reasonable manner following consultation with two CNH Deadlers;

“Inconvertibility” means the occurrence of any event that makes it impossible for the Issuer to convert
any amount due in respect of the Notes in the general Renminbi exchange market in Hong Kong, other
than where such impossihility is due solely to the failure of the Issuer to comply with any law, rule or
regulation enacted by any Governmental Authority (unless such law, rule or regulation is enacted after
the Settlement Date and it is impossible for the Issuer, due to an event beyond its control, to comply
with such law, rule or regulation);

“Non-transferability” means the occurrence of any event that makes it impossible for the Issuer to
deliver Renminbi between accounts inside Hong Kong or from an account inside Hong Kong to an
account outside Hong Kong, other than where such impossibility is due solely to the failure of the
Issuer to comply with any law, rule or regulation enacted by any Governmental Authority (unless such
law, rule or regulation is enacted after the Settlement Date and it isimpossible for the Issuer, due to an
event beyond its control, to comply with such law, rule or regulation);

“Rate Calculation Business Day” means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial
banks are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange) in Hong Kong and in
New York City;

“Rate Calculation Date’” means the day which is two Rate Calculation Business Days before the due
date of the relevant amount under these Conditions,

“Spot Rate” means the spot Renminbi/U.S. dollar exchange rate for the purchase of U.S. dollars with
Renminbi in the over-the-counter Renminbi exchange market in Hong Kong for settlement in two Rate
Calculation Business Days, as determined by the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent in good faith and
in a commercially reasonable manner at or around 11:00 am. (Hong Kong time) on the date of
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determination, on a deliverable basis by reference to Reuters Screen Page TRADCNY 3, or if no such
rate is available, on a non-deliverable basis by reference to Reuters Screen Page TRADNDF. If neither
rate is available, the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent in good faith and in a commercialy
reasonable manner will determine the Spot Rate at or around 11:00 a.m. (Hong Kong time) on the date
of determination as the most recently available Renminbi/U.S. dollar official fixing rate for settlement
in two Rate Calculation Business Days reported by The State Administration of Foreign Exchange of
the PRC, which is reported on the Reuters Screen Page CNY=SAEC. Reference to a page on the
Reuters Screen means the display page so designated on the Reuter Monitor Money Rates Service (or
any successor service) or such other page as may replace that page for the purpose of displaying a
comparable currency exchange rate; and

“U.S. Dollar Equivalent” means the Renminbi amount converted into U.S. dollars using the Spot Rate
for the relevant Rate Calculation Date.

All notifications, opinions, determinations, certificates, calculations, quotations and decisions given,
expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this Condition 6(i) by the Issuing and
Principal Paying Agent, will (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding
on the Issuer, the Agents and all Noteholders.

7. Taxation

@

[All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes and Coupons held by a Japanese non-
resident or a designated financia institution will be made without withholding or deduction for or on
account of any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature
imposed or levied by or on behalf of Japan, or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax (the
“Taxes") if the Noteholder establishes that the Note is held by or for the account of a Japanese non-
resident (not being a specially-related person of the Issuer) or a designated financia institution in
compliance with requirements under Japanese tax laws. If such withholding or deduction in respect of
the Notes held by such Japanese non-resident or designated financial institution is required by law, the
Issuer shall pay such additional amounts (“Additional Amounts’) as will result in the receipt by the
holders of such amounts as would have been received by them had no such deduction or withholding
been required, except that no Additional Amounts shall be payable with respect to any payment in
respect of any Note or Coupon:

) to, or to athird party on behalf of, a holder(s) (x) who isfor Japanese tax purposes treated as an
individual resident of Japan or a Japanese corporation (other than a designated financial
institution which does not fall under item (y) below) or a Japanese non-resident being specially-
related person of the Issuer, (y) who fails to comply with the Japanese tax law requirements in
respect of the exemption from such withholding or deduction or (z) who is otherwise subject to
such Taxes by reason of its having some connection with Japan other than the mere holding of
such Note or Coupon; or

(i)  presented (or in respect of which the Certificate representing it is presented) for payment more
than 30 days after the Relevant Date except to the extent that the holder thereof would have
been entitled to such Additional Amounts on presenting the same for payment on such thirtieth

day.

However, interest on Notes issued by the Issuer of which the amount of interest is to be calculated by
reference to certain indexes (as prescribed in the Cabinet Order relating to Article 6, paragraph 4 of the
Special Taxation Measures Law) relating to the Issuer or a specially-related person of the Issuer will be
subject to the withholding tax even if paid to a Japanese non-resident that is not a specially-related
person of the Issuer.



For the purpose of this Condition 7(a), unless the context otherwise requires, the following defined
terms shall have the meaning set out below:

“Japanese non-resident” means a person that is not an individua resident of Japan or a Japanese
corporation for Japanese tax purposes,

“designated financial institution” means a Japanese financial ingtitution or a Japanese financial
instruments business operator designated by the Cabinet Order pursuant to Article 6, paragraph 9 of the
Special Taxation Measures Law;

“specially-related person of the Issuer” means a person having a special relationship with the Issuer as
prescribed in Article 6, paragraph 4 of the Special Taxation Measures Law; and

“the Special Taxation Measures Law” means the Specia Taxation Measures Law of Japan (Law No.
26 of 1957, as amended).]®

(b)  [All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the
Guarantee by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will be made without withholding or
deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental
charges of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of Singapore or Japan or any authority
therein or thereof having power to tax, unless the withholding or deduction of such taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges is required by law. In such event (subject to the paragraph
below), the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will pay such additional amounts as may be
necessary in order that the net amounts received by the Noteholders and the Couponholders, after such
withholding or deduction, shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which would
have been received in respect of the Notes, Receipts or (as the case may be) Coupons, in the absence
of such withholding or deduction.

No additional amounts as described above shall be payable with respect to any payment in respect of
any Note, Receipt or Coupon:

0) to, or to athird party on behalf of, a holder who is subject to such taxes, duties, assessments or
governmental charges in respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having some
connection with Singapore or Japan otherwise than merely by holding the Note, Receipt or
Coupon (but including, without limitation, being a resident in Singapore or Japan for tax
purposes and/or having a permanent establishment in Singapore or Japan in connection with
which the Note, Receipt or Coupon is held); or

(i)  presented (or in respect of which the Certificate representing it is presented) for payment more
than 30 days after the Relevant Date except to the extent that the holder thereof would have
been entitled to such additional amounts on presenting the same for payment on the thirtieth
such day.]®

(¢) Asused in these Conditions, “Relevant Date” in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon means the
date on which payment in respect thereof first becomes due or (if any amount of the money payableis
improperly withheld or refused) the date on which payment in full of the amount outstanding is made
or (if earlier) the date on which notice is duly given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition
13 that, upon further presentation of the Note (or relative Certificate), Receipt or Coupon being made
in accordance with the Conditions, such payment will be made, provided that payment is in fact made
upon such presentation. References in these Conditions to (i) “principal” shall be deemed to include
any premium payable in respect of the Notes, all Instalment Amounts, Final Redemption Amounts,
Early Redemption Amounts, Optional Redemption Amounts, Amortised Face Amounts and all other
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amounts in the nature of principal payable pursuant to Condition 5 or any amendment or supplement to
it, (ii) “interest” shall be deemed to include al Interest Amounts and all other amounts payable
pursuant to Condition 4 or any amendment or supplement to it and (iii) “principal” and/or “interest”
shall be deemed to include any additional amounts which may be payable under this Condition 7.

8. Prescription

Claims against the Issuer [and the Guarantor]” for payment in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons
(which for this purpose shall not include Talons) shall be prescribed and become void unless made within 10
years (in the case of principal) or five years (in the case of interest) from the appropriate Relevant Date in
respect thereof.

9. Eventsof Default

If any of the following events (each an “Event of Default”) occurs and is continuing, the holder of any Note
may give written notice (a “Default Notice”) to the Fiscal Agent at its specified office that such Note is
immediately repayable, whereupon the Early Redemption Amount of such Note together with accrued interest
to the date of payment shall become immediately due and payable upon the date falling seven days after the
date on which such written notice is received by the Fiscal Agent unless within such seven days such Event of
Default shall have been remedied:

(@  default being made for a period of more than 7 days in the payment of principal in respect of any of the
Notes when and as the same ought to be paid in accordance with the terms of the Notes; or

(b)  default being made for a period of more than 14 days in the payment of interest in respect of any of the
Notes when and as the same ought to be paid in accordance with the terms of the Notes; or

(c) adefault is made in the performance or observance by the Issuer [or the Guarantor, as the case may
be]® of any other obligation under the Notes [or the Guarantee relating to such Notes]® and such
default shall continue for 60 days after the date on which written notice requiring such default to be
remedied shall have been given to the Fiscal Agent at its specified office by the holder of any Note; or

(d) any other bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness for money borrowed (together and
individually, “Indebtedness’) of the Issuer [or the Guarantor]®, having an aggregate outstanding
nomina amount of at least U.S.$10,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency or currencies),
becomes prematurely repayable following a default which shall not have been remedied or steps are
taken to enforce any security therefor, or the Issuer [or the Guarantor]® defaults in the repayment of
any such Indebtedness at the maturity thereof and at the expiration of any applicable grace period
therefor or any guarantee of or indemnity in respect of any Indebtedness of others given by the Issuer
[or the Guarantor]® and having an aggregate outstanding nominal amount of at least U.S.$10,000,000
(or its equivalent as aforesaid) shall not be honoured when due and called upon; or

(e)  aneffective resolution is passed or an order of a court of competent jurisdiction is made that the I ssuer
[or the Guarantor]®? be wound up or dissolved otherwise than (i) for the purposes of or pursuant to and
followed by a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or reconstruction, the terms of which have
previously been approved by an Extraordinary Resolution of Noteholders, or (ii) for the purposes of or
pursuant to and followed by a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or reconstruction relating to such
Issuer [or the Guarantor]® under which the continuing entity or the entity formed as a result thereof
assumes the entire obligations of the Issuer [or the Guarantor]® under the Notes, the Coupons, the
Receipts, the Dealer Agreement, the Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant [or the Guarantee,
as the case may be ] relating to such Issuer [and the Guarantor]™®; or
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()] a decree or order by a court having jurisdiction shall have been entered adjudging the Issuer [or the
Guarantor]® to be bankrupt or insolvent, or approving a petition seeking reorganisation (such
reorganisation being otherwise than for the purposes of a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or
reconstruction for the purposes set out in paragraph (€) above) of the Issuer [or the Guarantor]® under
any applicable bankruptcy or reorganisation law, and such decree or order shall have continued
undischarged and unstayed for a period of 60 days; or if a decree or order of a court having jurisdiction
for the appointment of areceiver or liquidator or trustee or assignee in bankruptcy or insolvency of the
Issuer [or the Guarantor]® or of all or substantially all of the property, or for the winding-up or
liquidation of the affairs, of the Issuer [or the Guarantor]™ shall have been entered, and such decree or
order shall have continued undischarged and unstayed for a period of 60 days; or

() the Issuer [or the Guarantor]® shall institute proceedings to be adjudicated a voluntary bankruptcy or
shall consent to the filing of bankruptcy proceedings against it, or shall file a petition seeking
reorganisation or arrangement (such reorganisation or arrangement being otherwise than for the
purposes of a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or reconstruction for the purposes set out in
paragraph (€) above) under any applicable bankruptcy or reorganisation law, or shall consent to the
filing of any such petition, or shall consent to the appointment of a receiver or liquidator or trustee or
assignee in bankruptcy or insolvency of the Issuer [or the Guarantor (as the case may be)]® or its
property, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or there shall be a moratorium in
respect of payments made by it, or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they
become due, or corporate action shall be taken by the Issuer in furtherance of any of the aforesaid
purposes; or

(h)  steps are taken to enforce any security or a distress, execution or seizure before judgment is levied or
enforced upon or sued out against all or substantially all of the property of the Issuer or the Guarantor
and is not discharged within 60 days thereof; or

0) an encumbrancer takes possession, or atrustee or receiver is appointed, of all or substantially all of the
assets or undertaking of the Issuer [or the Guarantor; or /.

) [the Guarantee is not (or is claimed by the Guarantor not to be) in full force and effect.]”

For the purpose of Condition 9(d), any Indebtedness which is in a currency other than U.S. dollars may be
translated into U.S. dollars at the spot rate for the sale of U.S. dollars against the purchase of the relevant
currency quoted by the Fiscal Agent or any leading bank on any day when a quotation is required for such
purpose.

10. Meetings of Noteholders[,*/and®] M odifications [and Substitution]®
(@) Meetings of Noteholders

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of Noteholders to consider any
matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a
modification of the Notes (including these Conditions insofar as the same may apply to such Notes).
Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer at any time and shall be convened upon a request in
writing by Noteholders holding not less than one-tenth in nominal amount of the Notes for the time
being outstanding. The quorum for any meeting convened to consider an Extraordinary Resolution
shall be two or more persons holding or representing in the aggregate a clear majority in nominal
amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting two or more persons
being or representing Noteholders whatever the nominal amount of the Notes held or represented,
unless the business of such meeting includes consideration of proposals, inter alia, (i) to amend the
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Maturity Date or the date of redemption of the Notes, any Instaiment Date or any date for payment of
interest thereon, (ii) to reduce or cancel the nominal amount or any Instalment Amount of, or any
premium payable on redemption of, the Notes, (iii) to reduce the rate or rates of interest in respect of
the Notes or to vary the method or basis of calculating the rate or rates or amount of interest in respect
thereof, (iv) if a Minimum and/or a Maximum Rate of Interest, Instalment Amount, Final Redemption
Amount, Early Redemption Amount or Optional Redemption Amount is shown hereon, to reduce any
such Minimum and/or Maximum, (v) to change any method of calculating the Final Redemption
Amount, Early Redemption Amount or Optional Redemption Amount, including the method of
calculating the Amortised Face Amount, (vi) to change the currency or currencies of payment or
Denomination of the Notes, (vii) to modify the provisions concerning the quorum required at any
meeting of Noteholders or the majority required to pass the Extraordinary Resolution or (viii) to
amend, vary or terminate the relevant Deed of Covenant of the Issuer or its obligations thereunder [or
the Guarantee] ™ in a manner which would adversely affect any Noteholder, Couponholder, or holders
of Receipts or Talons in which case the necessary quorum shall be two or more persons holding or
representing in the aggregate not less than three-quarters, or at any adjourned meeting not less than
one-quarter, in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. Any Extraordinary
Resolution duly passed shall be binding on Noteholders (whether or not they were present at the
meeting at which such resolution was passed) and on all Couponholders.

(b)  Madification of Agency Agreement

The Issuer [and the Guarantor]® shall only permit any modification of, or any waiver or authorisation
of any breach or proposed breach of or any failure to comply with, the Agency Agreement, if to do so
could not reasonably be expected to be prejudicial to the interests of the Notehol ders.

(©) [Substitution

The Issuer, or any previously substituted company, may at any time, without the consent of the
Noteholders or the Couponholders but subject to the conditions set out below, substitute for itself as
principal debtor under any Series of the Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons relating to such Notes
any company (the “Substitute”) which is the Guarantor or a Subsidiary (as defined in the Agency
Agreement) of the Guarantor, provided that no payment in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Couponsis
at the relevant time overdue. The substitution shall be made by a deed poll (the “Deed Poll”), to be
substantially in the form scheduled to the Agency Agreement as Schedule 7, and may take place only if
(i) the Substitute shall, by means of the Deed Poll, agree to indemnify each Noteholder and
Couponholder against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge which is imposed on it
(including, without restriction, by way of withholding), by (or by any authority in or of) the
jurisdiction of the country of the Substitute’s residence for tax purposes and, if different, of its
incorporation with respect to any Note, Receipt, Coupon, Talon or the Deed of Covenant executed by
the Issuer and which would not have been so imposed had the substitution not been made, as well as
against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge, and any cost or expense, relating to the
substitution, (ii) where the Substitute is not the Guarantor, the obligations of the Substitute under the
Deed Poll, the Notes, Receipts, Coupons, Talons and Deed of Covenant shall be unconditionally
guaranteed by the Guarantor by means of the Deed Poall, (iii) al actions, conditions and things required
to be taken, fulfilled and done (including the obtaining of any necessary consents) to ensure that such
Deed Poll, the Notes, Receipts, Coupons, Talons and Deed of Covenant represent valid, legally binding
and enforceable obligations of the Substitute and in the case of the Deed Poll, have been taken,
fulfilled and done and are in full force and effect, (iv) the Substitute shall have become party to the
Agency Agreement, with any appropriate consequential amendments, asif it had been an original party
to it, (v) legal opinions addressed to the Noteholders shall have been delivered to them (care of the

@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui Asia
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11.

12.

13.

14.

Issuing and Principal Paying Agent) from alawyer or firm of lawyers with aleading securities practice
in each jurisdiction referred to in (i) above and in England as to the fulfilment of the preceding
conditions of this paragraph (c) and the other matters specified in the Deed Poll and (vi) the Issuer
shall have given at least 14 days prior notice of such substitution to the Noteholders, stating that
copies, or pending execution the agreed text, of all documents in relation to the substitution which are
referred to above, or which might otherwise reasonably be regarded as material to Noteholders, will be
available for inspection at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents. Following any such
substitution, references in Condition 9 to obligations under the Notes shall be deemed to include
obligations under the Deed Poll, and, where the Deed Poll contains a guarantee, the events listed in
Condition 9 shall be deemed to include that guarantee not being (or being claimed by the Guarantor
not to be) in full force and effect.]®

Replacement of Notes, Certificates, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

If aBearer Note, Certificate, Receipt, Coupon or Talon, as the case may be, is lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced
or destroyed, it may be replaced, subject to applicable laws and regulations including the regulations of any
stock exchange or other relevant authority at the specified office of the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent (in
the case of Bearer Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons) and of the Registrar (in the case of Registered
Notes) or such other Paying Agent located outside of the United States and its possessions or such other
Transfer Agent, as the case may be, as may from time to time be designated by the Issuer for such purpose
and notice of whose designation is given to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13, in each case on
payment by the claimant of the fees and costs incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to
evidence, security and indemnity (which may provide, inter alia, that if the allegedly lost, stolen or destroyed
Bearer Note, Certificate, Receipt, Coupon or Talon is subsequently presented for payment or, as the case may
be, for exchange for further Coupons, there will be paid to the Issuer on demand the amount payable by the
Issuer in respect of such Bearer Notes, Certificates, Receipts, Coupons or further Coupons) and otherwise as
the Issuer may require. Mutilated or defaced Bearer Notes, Certificates, Receipts, Coupons or Talons, as the
case may be, must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

Further Issues

The Issuer may from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders or Couponholders create and issue
further notes having the same terms and conditions as the Notes (so that, for the avoidance of doubt,
references in these Conditions to “ Settlement Date” shall be to the first issue date of the Notes) and so that the
same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with such Notes, and references in these Conditions to
“Notes’ shall be construed accordingly.

Notices

Notices to the holders of Registered Notes shall be mailed to them at their respective addresses in the Register
and deemed to have been given on the fourth weekday (being a day other than a Saturday or Sunday) after the
date of mailing. Notices to the holders of Bearer Notes will be valid if published in a daily newspaper of
genera circulation in London (which is expected to be the Financial Times). If any such publication is not
practicable, notice will be validly given if published in another leading daily English language newspaper
with general circulation in the UK. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such
publication or, if published more than once or on different dates, on the date of the first publication as
provided above.

Couponholders shall be deemed for al purposes to have notice of the contents of any notice to the holders of
Bearer Notes in accordance with this Condition.

Currency | ndemnity
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Any amount received or recovered in a currency other than the currency in which payment under the relevant
Note, Coupon or Receipt is due (whether as a result of, or of the enforcement of, a judgment or order of a
court of any jurisdiction, in the insolvency, winding-up or dissolution of the Issuer [or the Guarantor]® or
otherwise) by any Noteholder or Couponholder in respect of any sum expressed to be due to it from the I ssuer
[or the Guarantor]® shall only constitute a discharge to the Issuer [or the Guarantor, as the case may be]®, to
the extent of the amount in the currency of payment under the relevant Note, Coupon or Receipt which the
recipient is able to purchase with the amount so received or recovered in that other currency on the date of
that receipt or recovery (or, if it is not practicable to make that purchase on that date, on the first date on
which it is practicable to do so). If the amount received or recovered is less than the amount expressed to be
due to the recipient under any Note, Coupon or Receipt, the Issuer[, failing whom, the Guarantor]® shall
indemnify it against any loss sustained by it asaresult. In any event, the Issuer|, failing whom, the Guarantor]
@ shall indemnify the recipient against the cost of making any such purchase. For the purposes of this
Condition, it will be sufficient for the Noteholder or Couponholder, as the case may be, to demonstrate that it
would have suffered a loss had an actual purchase been made. These indemnities constitute a separate and
independent obligation from the Issuer’s other obligations, shall give rise to a separate and independent cause
of action, shall apply irrespective of any indulgence granted by any Noteholder or Couponholder and shall
continue in full force and effect despite any other judgment, order, claim or proof for aliquidated amount in
respect of any sum due under any Note, Coupon or Receipt or any other judgment or order.

15. Contracts (Rightsof Third Parties) Act 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of the Notes under the Contracts (Rights of
Third Parties) Act 1999 but this does not affect any right or remedy of a third party which exists or may arise
otherwise than pursuant to such Act.

16. Governing Law and Jurisdiction
(@ Governing Law

The Agency Agreement, the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons, the Talons and any non-contractual
obligations arising out of or in connection with them are governed by, and shall be construed in
accordance with, English law.

(b)  Jurisdiction

The courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in
connection with any Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons and accordingly any legal action or
proceedings arising out of or in connection with any Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Taons
(“Proceedings’) may be brought in such courts. [Each of the”/The®?] Issuer [and the Guarantor]®
irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the courts of England and waives any objection to
Proceedings in such courts on the ground of venue or on the ground that the Proceedings have been
brought in an inconvenient forum. The submission[s]® [are™/is®] made for the benefit of each of the
holders of the Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons and shall not affect the right of any of them to take
Proceedings in any other court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the taking of Proceedings in one or
more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction (whether concurrently
or not).

(c)  Serviceof Process

@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui Asia
@ Text only applicable to Notes issued by Mitsui & Co.
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[Each of the/The®] Issuer [and the Guarantor]® irrevocably appoints Jordans Trust Company
Limited of 20-22 Bedford Row, London, WCI1R 4JS, United Kingdom to receive, for it and on its
behalf, service of process in any Proceedings in England. Such service shall be deemed completed on
delivery to such process agent (whether or not it is forwarded to and received by the Issuer [or the
Guarantor]™). If for any reason such process agent ceases to be able to act as such or no longer has an
address in London, [each of]® the Issuer [and the Guarantor]®” irrevocably agrees to appoint a
substitute process agent and shall immediately notify Noteholders of such appointment in accordance
with Condition 13. Nothing shall affect the right to serve process in any manner permitted by law.
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SUMMARY OF PROVISIONSRELATING TO THE NOTESWHILE IN GLOBAL FORM

Initial 1ssue of Notes

Each issue of Notes in bearer form will initially be represented by a temporary Global Note or a permanent
Global Note in bearer form without Coupons which will be deposited on behalf of the subscribers of the
relevant Note with a Common Depositary for the ICSDs on or about the Settlement Date. Upon issuance of
any permanent Global Note (or earlier in certain circumstances), certification of non-U.S. beneficial
ownership and U.S. securities law matters (if applicable) in the form set out in the Agency Agreement must be
provided. Each issue of Notes in registered form will initially be represented by a Global Certificate, which
will be deposited on behalf of the subscribers of the relevant Note with a Common Depositary for, and
registered in the name of a hominee for, the ICSDs on or about the Settlement Date.

While the Notes are represented by a Global Note or Global Certificate, transfer of interests in such Notes
will be governed by the rules and procedures of the relevant ICSDs. The ICSDs will credit each subscriber
with a nominal amount of Notes equal to the nominal amount thereof for which it has subscribed and paid.

Notes that are initially deposited with the Common Depositary may also be credited to the accounts of
subscribers with (if indicated in the relevant Final Terms) such other clearing systems as agreed between the
relevant Issuer, the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent and the relevant Dealer(s) through direct or indirect
accounts with the ICSDs held by other clearing systems. Conversely, Notes that are initially deposited with
any other clearing system may similarly be credited to the accounts of subscribers with the ICSDs or other
clearing systems. For the purposes of these provisions, “Relevant Clearing System” means the ICSDs or such
other clearing system as agreed between the relevant Issuer, the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent and the
relevant Dealer(s).

Relationship of Accountholderswith Clearing Systems

Each of the persons shown in the records of a Relevant Clearing System as the holder of a Note represented
by a Global Note or Global Certificate must look solely to such Relevant Clearing System for his share of
each payment made by the Issuer to the bearer of such Global Note or the registered holder of the underlying
Notes in registered form, as the case may be, and in relation to all other rights arising under the Global Notes
or Global Certificates, subject to and in accordance with the rules and procedures of the Relevant Clearing
System. Such persons shall have no claim directly against the Issuer in respect of payments due on the Notes
for so long as the Notes are represented by such Globa Note or Global Certificate and such obligations of the
Issuer will be discharged by payment to the bearer of such Global Note or the registered holder of the
underlying Notesin registered form, as the case may be, in respect of each amount so paid.

Amendment to Conditions

The temporary Global Notes, the permanent Global Notes and the Global Certificates contain provisions
which apply to the Notes which they represent, some of which modify the effect of the terms and conditions
of the Notes set out in this document. The following is a summary of certain of those provisions:

Exchange
1.1 Temporary Global Notes

Each temporary Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge to the holder) on or after its Note Exchange
Date (as defined below):

(@ if therelevant Final Terms indicates that such temporary Global Note is issued in compliance with the
C Rules or in a transaction to which TEFRA is not applicable (as to which, see “Overview of the

52



Programme — Selling Restrictions’), in whole, but not in part, for interests in a permanent Global Note
without Receipts, Coupons or Talons or, if so provided in the relevant Final Terms, for the Definitive
Notes (as described below) of the same Series with, where applicable, Receipts, Coupons or Talons;
and

(b)  otherwise, in whole or in part upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficia ownership and U.S.
securities law matters (if applicable) in the form set out in the Agency Agreement for interests in a
permanent Global Note without Receipts, Coupons or Talons or, if so provided in the relevant Final
Terms, for Definitive Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, Receipts, Coupons or Talons.

1.2  Permanent Global Notes

Each permanent Global Note is exchangeable (free of charge to the holder) on or after its Note Exchange Date
in whole (or in part if the permanent Global Note is held by or on behalf of the ICSDs and the rules of the
ICSDs then permit) for Definitive Notes (i) if the permanent Global Note is held on behalf of the ICSDs and
any such clearing system is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of
holidays, statutory or otherwise) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or in fact does so,
by a holder giving notice to the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent, (ii) on or following the giving of a
Default Notice in the circumstances contemplated by Condition 9, by a holder giving notice to the Issuing and
Principal Paying Agent or (iii) if there is a substantial likelihood that the Issuer would suffer a material
disadvantage in respect of the Notes as a result of a change in the laws or regulations (taxation or otherwise)
of any jurisdiction referred to in Condition 7 which would not be suffered were the Notes issued in definitive
form and a certificate to such effect signed by a director of the Issuer is delivered to the Issuing and Principal
Paying Agent for display to Noteholders, by the relevant Issuer giving notice to the Issuing and Principal
Paying Agent and the Noteholders of itsintention of such exchange (unless a Default Notice has been given).

1.3 Dédlivery of Definitive Notes

On or after any Note Exchange Date the holder of a Global Note may, in the case of an exchange in whole,
surrender such Global Note or, in the case of a partial exchange, present it for endorsement, to or to the order
of the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent for exchange, for Definitive Notes, in each case, outside of the
United States and its possessions. In exchange for such Globa Note, the Issuer will deliver, or procure the
delivery of, an equal aggregate nominal amount of duly executed and authenticated Definitive Notes (if
appropriate, having attached to them all Coupons and Receipts in respect of interest or Instalment Amounts
which have not already been paid on the Global Note and a Talon), security printed in accordance with any
applicable legal and stock exchange requirements, in or substantially in the relevant forms set out in the
schedules to the Agency Agreement. On exchange in full of each Global Note, the Issuer will, if the holder so
reguests, procure that such Global Note is cancelled and returned to the holder together with the relevant
Definitive Notes.

“Note Exchange Date” means, (a) in relation to atemporary Globa Note, 40 days after the Settlement Date ,
and (b) in relation to a permanent Globa Note, a day falling not less than 60 days, or in the case of exchange
following the giving of a Default Notice 30 days, after that on which the notice requiring exchange is given
and on which banks are open for business in the city in which the specified office of the Issuing and Principal
Paying Agent islocated and, except in the case of exchange pursuant to paragraph 1.2(i) above, in the citiesin
which the Relevant Clearing Systems are located.

If, for any actual or alleged reason which would not have been applicable had there been no exchange of a
Global Note (or part of such Global Note) or in any other circumstances whatsoever, the Issuer does not
perform or comply with any one or more of what are expressed to be its obligations under any Definitive
Notes, then any right or remedy relating in any way to the obligation(s) in question may be exercised or
pursued on the basis of such Global Note despite its stated cancellation after its exchange in full, as an
aternative, or in addition, to the Definitive Notes (with the Coupons, Receipts or Talons appertaining to them,
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as appropriate). With this exception, upon exchange in full and cancellation of such Global Note for
Definitive Notes, such Global Note shall become void.

In the event that a Global Note is exchanged for Definitive Notes, such Definitive Notes shall be issued in
Specified Denomination(s) only. A Noteholder who holds a nominal amount of less than the minimum
Specified Denomination will not receive a Definitive Note in respect of such holding and would need to
purchase a nomina amount of Notes such that it holds an amount equal to one or more Specified
Denominations.

1.4 Global Certificates

Transfers of the holding of Notes represented by any Global Certificate pursuant to Condition 1(b)(ii) may
only be made in part:

) if the Notes are to be represented by a Global Certificate and held in the ICSDs and any such clearing
system is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holidays,
statutory or otherwise) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or does in fact do so;
or

(ii)  onor following the giving of a Default Notice in the circumstances contemplated by Condition 9,

provided that, in the case of the first transfer of part of a holding pursuant to paragraph 1.4(i) or 1.4(ii) above,
the registered holder of the Notes has given the Registrar not less than 30 days' notice at its specified office of
the registered holder’s intention to effect such transfer. These provisions will not prevent the trading of
interests in the Notes within a clearing system whilst they are held on behalf of such clearing system, but will
limit the circumstances in which the Notes may be withdrawn from the relevant clearing system.

Payments

No payment falling due after the Note Exchange Date will be made on any Global Note unless exchange for
an interest in a permanent Global Note or for Definitive Notes, as the case may be, is improperly withheld or
refused. Payments on any temporary Global Note issued in compliance with the D Rules before the Note
Exchange Date will only be made outside the United States and its possessions against presentation of
certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership and U.S. securities law matters (if applicable) in the form set
out in the Agency Agreement. All payments in respect of Notes represented by a Global Note will be made
against presentation for endorsement and, if no further payment fals to be made in respect of the Notes,
surrender of that Global Note to or to the order of the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent or such other Paying
Agent as shall have been notified to the Noteholders for such purpose. A record of each payment so made will
be endorsed in the appropriate schedule to each Global Note, which endorsement will be prima facie evidence
that such payment has been made in respect of the Notes. For the purposes of any payments made in respect
of a Global Note, the relevant place of presentation shall be disregarded in the definition of “business day” set
out in Condition 6(h) (Non-Business Days).

All payments in respect of Notes represented by a Global Certificate will be made to, or to the order of, the
person whose name is entered on the Register at the close of business on the record date which shall be on the
Clearing System Business Day immediately prior to the date for payment, where “Clearing System Business
Day” means Monday to Friday inclusive except 25th December and 1st January.

Notices

So long as any Notes are represented by a Global Note or Global Certificate and such Global Note or Global
Certificate is held on behalf of a Relevant Clearing System, notices to holders of such Notes of that Series
may be given by delivery of the relevant notice to that Relevant Clearing System for communication by it to
entitled accountholders in substitution for publication as required by the Conditions or by delivery of the
relevant notice to the holder of the Global Note or the Globa Certificate.
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Prescription

Claims against the Issuer in respect of Notes which are represented by a permanent Global Note shall be
prescribed and become void unless it is presented for payment within a period of ten years (in the case of
principal) and five years (in the case of interest) from the appropriate Relevant Date.

M eetings

The holder of a Global Note or of the Notes represented by a Global Certificate will (unless such Global Note
or Global Certificate represents one Note) be treated as being two persons for the purposes of any quorum
requirements of a meeting of Noteholders and, at any such meeting, the holder of a Global Note shall be
treated as having one vote in respect of each integral currency unit of the Specified Currency of the Notes. All
holders of Notes in registered form are entitled to one vote in respect of each integral currency unit of the
Specified Currency of the Notes comprising such Noteholder’s holding, whether or not represented by a
Global Certificate.

Purchase and Cancellation

Notes represented by a permanent Global Note may only be purchased by the |ssuer, the Guarantor or any of
their respective subsidiaries if they are purchased together with the rights to receive all future payments of
interest and Instalment Amounts (if any) thereon.

Cancellation of any Note represented by a Global Note that is required by the Conditions to be cancelled
(other than upon its redemption) will be effected by reduction in the nominal amount of the relevant Global
Note.

Default

Each Global Note provides that the holder may cause such Global Note, or a portion of it, to become due and
repayable in the circumstances described in Condition 9 by stating in a Default Notice to the Fiscal Agent the
nominal amount of such Global Note which is becoming due and repayable.

If principal in respect of any Note is not paid when due, the holder of a Global Note or Notes in registered
form represented by a Global Certificate may elect for direct enforcement rights against the Issuer under the
terms of the Deeds of Covenant executed as a deed on 3rd September, 2013 (as amended or supplemented as
at the relevant Settlement Date) to come into effect in relation to the whole or a part of such Global Note or
one or more Notes in registered form in favour of the persons entitled to such part of such Global Note or
such Notes in registered form, as the case may be, as accountholders with a Relevant Clearing System.
Following any such acquisition of direct rights, the Global Note or, as the case may be, the Global Certificate
and the corresponding entry in the register kept by the Registrar, will become void as to the specified portion
or Notes in registered form, as the case may be, and the persons entitled to such portion, as accountholders
with a Relevant Clearing System, will acquire direct enforcement rights against the Issuer under the terms of
such Deed of Covenant. However, no such election may be made in respect of Notes represented by a Global
Certificate unless the transfer of the whole or a part of the holding of Notes represented by that Global
Certificate shall have been improperly withheld or refused.

I ssuer’s Option

Any option of the Issuer provided for in the Conditions of any Notes (including the terms set out in the
relevant Final Terms) while such Notes are represented by a permanent Global Note or the Global Certificate
shall be exercised by the Issuer giving notice to the Noteholders within the period set out in, and containing
the information required by, the Conditions (including the terms set out in the relevant Final Terms), except
that such notice shall not be required to contain the certificate numbers of Notes drawn in the case of a partial
exercise of an option and accordingly no drawing of Notes in bearer form shall be required. In the event that
any option of the Issuer is exercised in respect of some but not all of the Notes of any Series, the rights of
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accountholders with a Relevant Clearing System will be governed by the standard procedures of the ICSDs or
any other clearing system (as the case may be).

Noteholders Option

Any option of the Noteholders provided for in the Conditions of any Notes (including the terms set out in the
relevant Final Terms) while such Notes are represented by a permanent Global Note or the Global Certificate
may be exercised by the holder (i) giving an Exercise Notice (in the form obtainable from any Paying Agent,
Registrar or Transfer Agent, as the case may be) to a Paying Agent, Registrar or a Transfer Agent within the
period set out in the Conditions (including the terms set out in the relevant Final Terms), except that such
notice shall not be required to contain the serial numbers of the Notes in bearer form, (ii) stating the nominal
amount of Notes in respect of which the option is exercised, and (iii) at the same time presenting the
permanent Global Note or the Global Certificate to the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent, or to such other
Paying Agent acting on behalf of the Issuing and Principal Paying Agent or the Transfer Agent or the
Registrar, for notation.

Electronic Consent and Written Resolution
While any Global Note or Global Certificateis held on behalf of a Relevant Clearing System, then:

(@  approva of aresolution proposed by an Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) given by way of
electronic consents communicated through the electronic communications systems of the Relevant
Clearing System(s) in accordance with their operating rules and procedures by or on behalf of the
holders of not less than 75 per cent. in nomina amount of the Notes outstanding (an “Electronic
Consent” as defined in the Agency Agreement) shall, for al purposes, take effect as an Extraordinary
Resolution passed at a meeting of Noteholders duly convened and held, and shall be binding on all
Noteholders and holders of Coupons whether or not they participated in such Electronic Consent; and

(b)  where Electronic Consent is not being sought, for the purpose of determining whether a Written
Resolution (as defined in the Agency Agreement) has been validly passed, each Issuer and the
Guarantor shall be entitled to rely on consent or instructions given in writing directly to the Issuer
and/or the Guarantor, as the case may be, by accountholders in the clearing system with entitlements to
such Globa Note or Global Certificate or, where the accountholders hold any such entitlement on
behalf of another person, on written consent from or written instruction by the person for whom such
entittement is ultimately beneficialy held, whether such beneficiary holds directly with the
accountholder or via one or more intermediaries and provided that, in each case, the Issuer or the
Guarantor (as the case may be) have obtained commercially reasonable evidence to ascertain the
validity of such holding and have taken reasonable steps to ensure that such holding does not alter
following the giving of such consent or instruction and prior to the effecting of such amendment. Any
resolution passed in such manner shall be binding on all Noteholders and Couponholders, even if the
relevant consent or instruction proves to be defective. As used in this paragraph, “commercially
reasonable evidence” includes any certificate or other document issued by the Relevant Clearing
System, or issued by an accountholder of them or an intermediary in a holding chain, in relation to the
holding of interests in the Notes. Any such certificate or other document shall, in the absence of
manifest error, be conclusive and binding for all purposes. Any such certificate or other document may
comprise any form of statement or print out of electronic records provided by the Relevant Clearing
System (including Euroclear’'s EUCLID or Clearstream, Luxembourg’'s CreationOnline system) in
accordance with its usual procedures and in which the accountholder of a particular principal or
nominal amount of the Notes is clearly identified together with the amount of such holding. Neither
the Issuer nor the Guarantor shall be liable to any person by reason of having accepted as valid or not
having rejected any certificate or other document to such effect purporting to be issued by any such
person and subsequently found to be forged or not authentic.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of each issue of Notes issued by Mitsui & Co. will be used by Mitsui & Co. for its general
corporate purposes. The net proceeds of each issue of Notes by Mitsui Asiawill be applied by Mitsui Asiafor
its general corporate purposes (including to fund loans to other subsidiaries of the Guarantor).
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MITSUI & CO., LTD.

General

Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (Mitsui Bussan Kabushiki Kaisha) (“Mitsui & Co.”) was incorporated on 25th July, 1947,
as Daiichi Bussan Kabushiki Kaisha, a corporation (Kabushiki Kaisha) under the Commercial Code of Japan.
The shares of common stock of Mitsui & Co. were listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange in May 1949. The
registered office of Mitsui & Co. is located at 1-3, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8631,
Japan, and the telephone number of Mitsui & Co. is+81 -3 -3285 -1111.

Mitsui is a general trading company engaged in a range of global business activities including worldwide
trading of various commodities, arranging financing for customers and suppliersin connection with its trading
activities, organising and coordinating international industrial projects by using its global office network and
its ability to gather information. Mitsui’s business activities include the sale, import, export, offshore trading,
production and a wide variety of comprehensive services such as retail, information and telecommunication,
technology, logistics and finance in the areas of Iron & Steel, Mineral & Metal Resources, Machinery &
Infrastructure, Chemicals, Energy, Lifestyle, Innovation & Corporate Development. Mitsui also participatesin
the development of natural resources such as oil, gas, iron and steel raw materials. Mitsui has been
proactively making strategic business investments in certain new industries such as IT, renewable energy and
environmental solution businesses.

The business units of Mitsui & Co., which are organised based on “products and services’, plan overall and
worldwide strategies for their products and services and conduct their worldwide operations. The business
units also collaborate with overseas branches and overseas trading subsidiaries in planning and executing their
strategies for products and regions. The overseas branches and overseas trading subsidiaries are separate
operating units, which are delegated responsibility for the business of their regions as the centres of each
particular regional strategy and operate diversified businesses together with their subsidiaries and associated
companies in collaboration with the business units. Therefore, its operating segments consist of product-
focused operating segments comprised of the business units of the head office and region-focused operating
segments comprised of overseas branches and overseas trading subsidiaries.

The operating segments of Mitsui & Co. are as follows;

. “lron & Steel Products’ consists of the Iron & Steel Products Business Unit. This segment
manufactures, sells and trades iron and steel products in Japan and abroad.

. “Mineral & Metal Resources’ consists of the Mineral & Metal Resources Business Unit. This segment
is engaged in overseas development of iron and non-ferrous metal resources, and produces, sells and
trades raw materials and metal productsin Japan and abroad.

. “Machinery & Infrastructure” consists of the Infrastructure Projects Business Unit and the Integrated
Transportation Systems Business Unit. This segment is engaged in manufacturing, sales and trading,
leasing and financing of plant and machinery, as well as infrastructure businesses such as power
generation in Japan and abroad.

. “Chemicals’, with effect from April 2016, consists of the Basic Materials Business Unit, the
Performance Materials Business Unit and the Nutrition & Agriculture Business Unit. This segment
manufactures, sells and trades chemical productsin Japan and abroad.

. “Energy” consists of the Energy Business Units | and Il. This segment is engaged in overseas
development of oil and gas resources, and manufactures, sells and trades oil, gas, coa and related
products in Japan and abroad.
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. “Lifestyle”, with effect from April 2016, consists of the Food Resources Business Unit, the Food
Products & Services Business Unit, the Healthcare & Service Business Unit and the Consumer
Business Unit. This segment manufactures, sells, and trades foods, consumer products and materials,
and engages in healthcare, real estate and service businesses in Japan and abroad.

. “Innovation & Corporate Development” consists of the IT & Communication Business Unit and the
Corporate Development Business Unit. This segment engages in information and communication,
logistics, insurance, finance and media businesses in Japan and abroad.

. “Americas’, “Europe, the Middle East and Africa’, and “Asia Pacific” trade in various commodities
and conduct related business led by overseas trading subsidiaries or offices located in each region.

Operations

Iron & Steel Products Segment

The Iron & Steel Products segment consists of one business unit, the Iron & Steel Products Business Unit.
Through the Iron & Steel Products segment, Mitsui provides its customers both in Japan and overseas with
services relating to the procurement and supply of iron and steel products. In addition, Mitsui invests in steel
service centres that function as processing and distribution bases, in electric furnace steel mills and rolling
mills that act as manufacturing bases, and in component suppliers and the iron and steel distribution industry.
The lron & Steel Products segment mainly engages in the fields of business described below:

Infrastructure

. Supply and sales expansion of steel products for infrastructure projects mainly in Asia, the Middle East
and Africa

. Supply and sales expansion of high value-added steel products such as rails to Africa, Brazil and
Austraia

Automotive
. Automotive components manufacturing business and service centre business

Energy

. Supply and sales expansion of high value-added steel products related to shale gas development and
renewable energy, in addition to conventional steel products used in the energy industry

. Fabrication and assembly of offshore structures, as well as their maintenance including inspection,
repair and technical assistance

Mineral & Metal Resources Segment

The Minera & Metal Resources segment consists of one business unit, the Mineral & Metal Resources
Business Unit. The Mineral & Metal Resources segment mainly engages in the fields of business described
below relating to the development of resources, production, processing and sales through investments:

Business relating to the devel opment of resources, production, processing and sales through investments

Iron Ore

° Joint ventures with Rio Tinto and BHP Billiton in Australia

. Indirect shareholding of Vale S.A., aproducer and seller of iron orein Brazil
Coa
. Joint ventures with Anglo American, Rio Tinto and BHP Billiton in Australia
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Ferrous Raw Materials and Recycling Solutions
. Metal scrap business through Simsin the U.S. and Australia

. Diversified businesses in areas such as coal, power generation, ferroalloys and chemical products
through Erdos Electrical Power & Metallurgical Co., Ltd. in Inner Mongolia, China

. Minera and metal resources recycling business in Japan and overseas, with a focus on global
environmental protection

Copper
. The Collahuasi, Anglo American Sur, and Caserones projectsin Chile
Nickel

. The Cora Bay and Taganito projectsin Philippines

Aluminium
. Alumina and aluminium ingot businesses through the Albras and Alunorte projects in Brazil
. Aluminium coil centre business through Garmco Singapore

Global trading business utilising Mitsui’s logistics network

. Iron ore, ferrous raw materials such as metal scrap, hot briquetted iron, pig iron and ferroaloys,
remanufactured automotive parts, coal, petroleum coke, copper concentrates and copper cathodes,
nickel, aluminium, rare metals, etc.

Machinery & Infrastructure Segment

The Machinery & Infrastructure segment consists of two business units, the Infrastructure Projects Business
Unit and the Integrated Transportation Systems Business Unit.

Infrastructure Projects Business Unit
The Infrastructure Projects Business Unit mainly engages in the fields of business described below:

Electric power
. Independent power producer (IPP) business with thermal power, hydropower and renewable energy

Marine enerqy / Basic industry

. Marine energy business, including FPSO (floating production, storage and offloading system for
offshore oil and gas) facilities

. Core infrastructure business, including LNG facilities for offloading/unloading, pipeline and local gas
distribution business

Water treatment and supply / Logistics

. Development and operation of water supply and sewage, desalination, and wastewater treatment
facilitiesin Mexico, China, Europe and Middle East

. Development and operation of logistics and socia infrastructure projects mainly involving seaport and
airport business

Integrated Transportation Systems Business Unit

The Integrated Transportation Systems Business Unit mainly engages in the fields of business described
below:
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. Sales of newly built ships, provision of ship management services, brokerage for chartering vessels
and for sales and purchases of second-hand ships for ship owners and shipping companies in Japan and
overseas, and sales of ship machinery to shipbuilders

. Ownership and operation of commercial shipsand LNG carriers

Land

. Export, manufacturing and sales of Japanese automobiles and parts

. Import wholesaling, dealing and manufacturing of Japanese vehicles, logistics for vehicle parts, retail

operations and retail finance worldwide

. Sales and ancillary services involving dump trucks for mining operations, hydraulic excavators.

. Arrangement of rolling stock and locomotive operating and finance leasing in North America, Brazil,
Europe and Russia, as well as the provision of relevant operating, maintenance and management
services

. General freight transport and passenger transport businessin Brazil

. Truck leasing and truck rental businessesin North America

Air

. Sales, provision and arrangement of operating leases and finance leases for passenger aircraft, as well

as aircraft enginesto airlines in Japan and overseas

Chemicals Segment

The Chemicals segment currently consists of the Basic Materials Business Unit, the Performance Materials
Business Unit, and the Nutrition & Agriculture Business Unit, each newly established in place of the Basic
Chemicals Business Unit and the Performance Chemicals Business Unit, with effect from April 2016. As part
of this reorganisation, part of the Food Resources Business Unit and the Food Product & Services Business
Unit were transferred to the Nutrition & Agriculture Business Unit.

The Chemicals segment mainly engages in the fields of business described below:

Value chain relating to food and agriculture

. Agricultural chemicals businessin Europe and the U.S.
. Phosphorus ore business in Peru and fertiliser business both within and outside Japan
. Food and nutrition sciences business

Responding to growing market needs for environmentally friendly and sustainable energy with Mitsui’s green
and biochemical business

. Manufacture of bio-succinic acid in Canada
. Oleochemical business using palm oil as raw materialsin Malaysia and China

Investment in manufacturing of products based on various competitive feedstock

) Production and sales of methanol in Saudi Arabia and the U.S.

. Salt production businessin Australia
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Supporting Japanese chemical manufactures with proprietary technology and products in starting up
businesses overseas

. Production and sales of high-performance polyethylene resin in Singapore
. Production and sales of raw materials for high-performance polycarbonate in Germany
Energy Segment

The Energy segment consists of two business units, the Energy Business Units | and |l. The Energy segment
engages mainly in the fields of business described below

. Exploration, development and production of energy resources including oil and natural gas/LNG (main
businesses are shown in the below chart)

. Trading and marketing of oil, natural gas/LNG, petroleum products, coal and uranium.
. Environmental and next-generation energy businesses toward the realisation of alow-carbon society

Upstream=Midstream Assets (Natural Gas/LNG/0il)

As of March 31, 2016

| Exploration > Development > Production >
[ow o[ Semic p[ Processingy] Celing [ Vahution > [ Fen »| D y[ Development s [ Produstion >
[—
USA: Marcellus Shale Russia: Sakhalin Il LNG(Sakhalin Energy)
Australia: 18 Exploration permits{MEPAL) [MEPUSA) 'z Australia: NWS LNG(IAL-MINI),
MNew Zealand: 7 Exploration Blocks Eagle Ford Shale (MEPTX) 2 Casino/Henry/Netherby, Meridian CSG(MEPAL)
(MEPALIY Cameron LNG Mew Zealand: Kupe{MEPAL)
Thailand: Block L10/43, G7/50 {MOECO) (Investment subsidiary) Thailand: Blocks 10.11.12.13 104 114 G4/48, Block B12/27,
Vietnam: Blocks B&48/95, 52/97"{MOECO) [MITUSA) Blocks 144 154 164, Blocks BE/32894,

Cambodia: Block A(MOECO])
Indonesia: Tuna, West Papuza [ fII{MOECO)

Australia: Laverda/Cimattit
Kipper, Meridian C5G™

Block G4/43, GB/S0{MOECO)
Indonesia: Tangguh LNG(KG Berau/KG Wiriagar)

USA: Marcellus Shale(MEPLISA)

Myanmar : M3, AD-%, AD-11, MD-5 EP-Z, PSC-G, [MEPAU), Eagle Ford Shale(MEPTX)
agle Fo ale
MOGE-3 (MOECO)

. Browse LNG Qatar: Qatargss 1 LNG(MILNED)
Brazil: BAR M215/217/252/254 UALMINI Qatargas 3 LNG
Morway: PLEAZ(MOGHM) Mozambique: Areal'! Oman: NOGIV(MEPME)

United Kingdom: 2219, 22/19¢ (MEPMOZ)

Oman LNG
Abu Dhabi: Abu Dhabi LNG
Equatorial Guinea: Equatorial Guinea LNG
United Kingdom: Britannia{MEPUK])

USA: Eagle Ford Shale
(MEPTX) -2
Italy: Tempa Rossa{MEPIT)

Russia: Sakhalin ll{Sakhalin Energy)
Australia: Wanaea Cossack(J AL-MINMI),
Enfield, Vincent (MEPALY)

Thailand: Blocks 10.11.12.13.104 114 G4/48,

Blocks 8/322:94, Block G4/43, L11/43{MOECO)
Oman: Blocks 3, 4, 9, 27{MEPME)
USA: Eagle Ford Shale(MEPTX)
United Kingdom: &lba, Britannia|MEPUK)

*1Proved undeveloped  *2 Partly in production

Lifestyle Segment
The Lifestyle segment currently consists of four business units, the Food Resources Business Unit, the Food
Products & Services Business Unit, the Healthcare & Service Business Unit and the Consumer Business Unit.

With effect from April 2016, part of the Food Resources Business Unit and the Food Product and Services
Business Unit were transferred to the Nutrition & Agriculture Business Unit. In addition, the Healthcare &
Service Business Unit and the Consumer Business Unit were established in April 2016 in place of the
Consumer Service Business Unit.
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The Lifestyle segment mainly engages in the fields of business described below.

Building afood value chain

. Securing and supply of grains, oils and fats, sugars, livestock and marine products, beverage materials,
dairy products and other such items worldwide

. Supply of edible oils, refined sugar, compound feed stuffs and other products on a global scale

. Sales of processed foods and acoholic beverages, etc. for supermarkets, convenience stores, contract
food and catering services, and restaurant chains

. Support for Japanese retailers, including convenience stores, in their efforts to achieve global
expansion

Medical and healthcare

. Hospital business and its ancillary business

. Pharmaceutical manufacturing and development support business

. Manufacturing and sales of generic pharmaceuticals

Services

. Outsourcing business focusing mainly on contract food services and facility management services

. Healthcare staffing services and educational business

Real estate

. Development, leasing and property management of office buildings, industrial facilities, and
residences

Housing and industrial materials

. Woodchip business, pulp and paper products, lumber businesses, sales of off road tires, and
manufacturing and sales of sanitary ware

Fashion

. Brand marketing business for global markets, OEM business for apparel, and export of advanced
functional materials and textile fabrics

Innovation & Corporate Development Segment

The Innovation & Corporate Development segment consists of two business units, the IT & Communication
Business Unit and the Corporate Development Business Unit.

The Innovation & Corporate Development segment mainly engages in the fields of business described below:

ICT business featuring added value unigue to Mitsui

. High-speed internet infrastructure business in emerging economies

. Operation of service platforms and service business such as marketing
. Broadcasting services and TV shopping business

° loT

. Sl, cyber security and cloud service business
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Expanding into new areas by utilising financial and logistics expertise to evolve Mitsui’s business

Asset management, leasing and insurance
Buyout investment and venture investment

Commodity derivatives and provision to clients and the group companies with hedging tools for price
fluctuation risks of commodities

Logistics centre business including warehousing and delivery centres and establishment and proposal
of logistics strategies for clients

Americas Segment

Leveraging Mitsui’s extensive expertise in business investment in the U.S., an incubation centre for new
busi nesses, the Americas segment mainly engages in the fields of business described below:

Metals business area

Streamlining processes at each stage of the value chain in alliances with steelmakers, steel processors,
major customers and recycling companies

Provision of a full range of processing services of steel products through Steel Technologies LLC (50
per cent. shareholdings) and other affiliated companies

Provision of oil and gas well tubular products and other energy-related steel products through
Champions Pipe & Supply, Inc. and Cinco Pipe and Supply, Inc.

Machinery & Infrastructure business area

Development and operation of large-scale infrastructure projects and related businesses centred on
power generation, water treatment, transportation, and energy and mineral resources mainly in Brazil
and Mexico

Expansion and reinforcement of businesses related to automotive, construction machinery, ships,
aerospace and transportation

Chemicals business area

Trading of products such as petrochemical products, food and feed additives, chemical fertilisers,
pesticides, synthetic resins, and resin additives

Production and sales of amino acids used in feedstuffs at Novus International, Inc.

Tank terminal operations at Intercontinental Terminals Company LLC

Lifestyle business area

Others

Businesses related to food materials and processed food products, medical and healthcare, housing and
industrial materials, fashion, services, and real estate

Grain origination and export business at United Grain Corporation of Oregon

Single family and Multi-family residential development, and Senior housing development and
operation at MBK Real Estate LLC

Identifying and forming new projects in the Energy and Innovation & Corporate Development
business areas
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Europe, the Middle East and Africa Segment

Mitsui & Co. Europe PLC, other subsidiaries and branches, along with the affiliated companies, cooperate
with each of the headquarter business units and regional business units.

This segment mainly engages in the fields of business described below:

Metals business area

. Sale of oil and gas well tubular products and line pipe, providing Supply Chain Management services
for the energy-related industry, and fabrication and assembly of offshore structures as well as their
inspection, repair and maintenance

. Processing and sales of steel products including automotive and electrical steel sheetsin Europe

. Joint venture with a packaging manufacturer and sales of tin materials in Africa, Turkey and Turkey’s
neighbouring countries

. The sale of steel materials for transportation infrastructure, such as building and rail materials, with
main focusin the Middle East and Africa

. Sales and intermediary services for iron and sted raw materials, steel scrap, as well as nonferrous
metals and their products

Energy business area

. Development and promotion of energy resources projectsincluding LNG
. Sales and intermediary services involving energy resources

Machinery & Infrastructure business area

. Power generation (thermal, wind and solar power) business in Europe, the Middle East and Africa
. Water utility and sewer concession business in Europe

. Offshore-related business (FPSO)
. Port operation business mainly in Africa
. Building and chartering ships, and leasing of locomotive, aircraft and aircraft engines

Chemicals business area

. Sales and intermediary services involving chemical products and materials
. Operation of chemical tank terminal in Belgium

Lifestyle business area

. Fashion brand and license businesses aimed at the Japanese and the Asian market

. Medical and healthcare related businesses including pharmaceutical manufacturing support business
. Global development support for European services centred on the education industry

. Sales and intermediary servicesinvolving food and food materials

Asia Pacific Segment
In the Asia Pecific segment, trading subsidiaries including Mitsui & Co. (Asia Pacific) Pte. Ltd. (Singapore),
Mitsui & Co. (Thailand) Ltd. and Mitsui & Co. (Australia) Ltd., subsidiaries and associated companies jointly
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collaborate with other business units and regional business units. This segment mainly engages in the fields of
business described below:

ASEAN Region

. Engaging in various businesses involving chemical products, steel and metal products, industrial
projects and foods

. Supplying tap water under long-term water supply agreements with local public water utilities in
Thailand

Southwest Asia

. Import and export related transactions

. Various manufacturing and sales operations in India with Indian companies, and pursuing

opportunities for investment in infrastructure including logistics infrastructure in India

Oceania
. Development of mineral resources such asiron ore and coal
. Energy businessincluding wind power generation

. Export sales of agricultural cropsincluding wheat

Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

Mitsui & Co. and its subsidiaries and associated companies form a group for which Mitsui & Co. isthe parent
company. In addition to holding shares in its direct subsidiaries, Mitsui & Co. conducts its own business
activities. As at 31st March, 2016, Mitsui & Co. had 462 affiliated companies, of which 275 subsidiaries were
consolidated and 187 equity accounted investees were accounted for by the equity method. The following
table shows certain information with regard to Mitsui & Co.’s major consolidated subsidiaries and associated

companies accounted for by the equity method, as of 31st March, 2016:

Major Subsidiaries

Operating Jurisdiction (())¥v\r}%rtsilr1]|9p
Segment Registered Name Principal Lines of Business | of y Shares
ncorporation (%)
N Domestic sales, export, import of steel
Mitsui & Co. Stedl Ltd. products Japan 100.0
Iron & Stedl Bangkok Coil Center Co., : ;
Products Lt d.g Steel processing Thailand 99.1
Regency Steel AsiaPte Ltd. Wholesale and retail of steel products Singapore 925
Mitsui-1tochu Iron Pty. Ltd. Mining and sales of Australian iron ore Australia 70.0
m;/tsll_“t (; ron Ore Devel opment Mining and sales of Australian iron ore Austraia 100.0
Mineral & Mitsui Raw Materials Investment in Sims Metal Management .
Metdl Development Pty. Limited Ltd., a scrap metal recycler Austrdlia 100.0
Resources vestment inand loan
. nvestment in and loan to copper
gr\llente Copper Netherlands business in Chile through Inversiones Netherlands 100.0
o Mineras Acrux SpA
Japan Collahuasi Resources Investment in Collahuasi copper mine
BV in Chile Netherlands 61.9
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Ownership

Jurisdiction ;
Operating . . . . of Voting
Segment Registered Name Principal Lines of Business | of » Shares
ncorporation (%)
Mitsui Bussan Copper Investment in Caserones copper minein
Investment & Co., Ltd. Chile Japan 100.0
MITSUI BUSSAN METALS | Salesand trading of non-ferrous scrap,
CO., LTD. aloy and products Jepan 160.0
Mitsui & Co. Mineral A
Investmentsin nickel and cobalt A
Resources Devel opment . : : g Philippines 100.0
(Asia) Corp. smelting business in Philippines
lt/lt:jtwl Coal Holdings Pty. Investments in Australian coal business Australia 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Plant Systems, Sales of various plants, electric power Japan 100.0
Ltd. facilities and transportation equipment :
KARUGAMO ENERGY : .
MANAGEMENT PTY. nvesiments i power generation Australia 100.0
LIMITED
MIT POWER CANADA LP Investment in Greenfield Power
INC. Generation Project in Ontario Canata 100.0
MITSUI GAS E ENERGIA Investments in gas distribution Brazil 100.0
DO BRASIL LTDA. companiesin Brazil )
lé/h\t/lnveﬂment Manzanillo Investment in LNG terminal in Mexico | Netherlands 100.0
Drillship Investment B.V. angﬁment in deepwater drilling service Netherlands 100.0
usiness
MIT Gas Mexico, S. deR.L. Investments in gas distribution Mexico 100.0
deC.v. companiesin Mexico
ME Servicos de Energiado . ; : : . ; 100.0
Brasi| Participacoes L tda Cogeneration service business in Brazil Brazil
Mit-Power Capitals Investment in cogeneration service Thailand 100.0
(Thailand) Limited businessin Thailand
Designing, building and operation of Mexico 85.0
ATLATEC, SA.deC.V. wastewater treatment plants
Investment and management of power 100.0
_ MyPower Corp. projectsin U.S, U.SA.
Machinery &
Infrastructure | MIZHA ENERGIA Investment in power producing business Brazil 100.0
PARTICIPACOES S.A. in Brazil
MIT SAFI COMPANY Investment in power generation United 100.0
LIMITED business in Morocco Kingdom )
Portek Internationa Private Development and operation of container Singapore
ol X 100.0
Limited terminal
Tokyo International Air Cargo | Operation of air cargo terminal at Tokyo Japan 100.0
Terminal Ltd. International Airport )
. Import and sales of automobiles and Chile
Toyota Chile SA. auto partsin Chile 100.0
Mitsui Automotriz S.A. S:rtgl sdles of automobiles and auto Peru 100.0
MITSUI AUTO FINANCE ) . Chile
CHILE LTDA. Automobile retail finance 100.0
Veloce Logistica SA Auto parts logistics Brezil 100.0
MBK Commercia Vehicles Investment in full-service truck leasing, USA. 100.0
Inc. rental and logistics business :
MBK USA Commercial Investment in full-service truck leasing, USA. 100.0

VehiclesInc.

rental and logistics business
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Ownership

Jurisdiction ;
Operating . . . . of Voting
Segment Registered Name Principal Lines of Business | of » Shares
ncorporation (%)
Mitsui Bussan Automotive Sales, leasing and service of ]
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. automobiles Thailand 100.0
BAF (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Motorcycle retail finance Thailand 100.0
PT. Bussan Auto Finance Motorcycle retail finance Indonesia 70.0
Bussan Automoative Singapore | Investment in two-wheeled vehicle "
Pte. Ltd. related companiesin India Singapore 100.0
Komatsu-Mitsui Maguinarias | Sales of construction and mining Peru 60.0
Peru SA. equipment )
: Sales of construction and mining
Road Machinery, LLC equipment U.SA. 100.0
Ellison Technologies Inc Sdles of construction and mining USA 88.8
: equipment i )
MITSUI BUSSAN Sale of machine tools and peripheral
MACHINE TEC CO., LTD. | equipment Japan 100.0
Orient Marine Co., Ltd. Shipping business Japan 100.0
OMC SHIPPING PTE. LTD. | Shipping business Singapore 100.0
Mitsui Bussan Aerospace Co., | Import and sales of helicopters and Japan 100.0
Ltd. defense and aerospace products )
Guarana Urban Mobility Investment in passenger transportation Japan 50.1
Incorporated businessin Brazil )
Mitsui Rail Capital Holdings, | Freightcar leasing and management in
Inc. North America USA. 100.0
I\B/ll\t/SUI Rail Capital Europe Easgpr;r;onve leasing and management in Netherlands 100.0
E.'l.AEI)ICHI TANKER CO., Operation of chemical tankers Japan 100.0
. Investments in methanol producing
éag;n—aﬁratlt%M ethanol businessin Saudi Arabiaand sales of Japan 55.0
pany L-td. products
Investment in methanol producing
MMTX Inc. businessin U.S. and sale of products U.SA. 100.0
Shark Bay Salt Pty. Ltd. Production of salt Austraia 100.0
Mitsui Bussan Chemicals Co., | Salesand trading of solvents and
Ltd. coating materials Japan 100.0
Chemicals 'tA.I.IBSUI & CO.PLASTICS Sales of plastics and chemicals Japan 100.0
. . Manufacture and sales of industrial
Daito Chemica Co., Ltd. chemicals Japan 70.0
Mitsui AgriScience Investments in crop protection .
International SA/NV businesses in Europe Belgium 100.0
Mitsui AgriScience Investments in crop protection
International Inc. businesses in Americas USA. 100.0
Mitsui Bussan Agro Business | Development and sales of fertilizers and
Co., Ltd. agricultural products Jepan 160.0
Mitsui Bussan Fertilizer Investment in phosphorus ore mining in
Resources B.V. Peru and global marketing business Netherlands 100.0
Mitsui Oil Exploration Co., Exploration, development and
Ltd. production of oil and natural gas Japan 743
Energy -
Mitsui E&.PMiddle East B.v, | EXPloration, development and Netherlands 100.0

production of oil and natural gas
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Ownership

Jurisdiction ;
Operating . . . . of Voting
Segment Registered Name Principal Lines of Business | of » Shares
ncorporation (%)
Mitsui E& PAustraia Pty Exploration, development and .
Limited production of oil and natural gas Austrdia 100.0
Exploration, development and United
Mitsui E&P UK Limited production of oil and natural gasin Kinadom 100.0
Europe & Africa 9
P Exploration, development and
Mitsui E&PUSALLC production of oil and gas U.SA. 100.0
MEP Texas Holdings LLC Investment in oil and gasin Americas U.SA. 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Energy Trading | International trading of petroleum .
Singapore Pte. Ltd. products and crude oil Singapore 100.0
Mitsui Sakhalin Holdings Investments in Sakhalin Energy
B.V. Investment Company Ltd. Netherlands 100.0
Mitsui & Co. LNG Investment in natural gas liquefaction USA 100.0
Investment USA, Inc. businessin the U.S. and sales of LNG i :
Mitsui Gas Devel opment Exploration, development and
Qatar B.V. production of oil and natural gas Netherlands 100.0
. . Exploration, devel opment and .
Xr'é?i E?anl]?tl\e/ldozamblque production of oil and natural gasin KliJnn'fj%dm 51.3
Mozambique 9
PRIFOODS CO., LTD. Production, processing and sales of Japan 46.4
broilers
TOHO BUSSAN KAISHA, Import and sales of agricultural and
LTD. marine products Jepan 100.0
Investments in processed oil food
WILSEY FOODS, INC. company U.SA. 90.0
Production and merchandising of .
XINGU AGRI AG agriproducts Switzerland 100.0
A " Origination and merchandising of .
Multigrain Trading AG agricultural products Switzerland 100.0
. : Manufacture and sales of saccharified
E?S'e' Sucrochemical Co., products, pharmaceuticals, feedstuffs Japan 70.0
’ and other products
Mitsui Norin Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sales of food products Japan 100.0
) MITSUI ALIMENTOS Export of coffee beans and domestic Brazil 100.0
Lifestyle LTDA. sales of roasted coffee '
MITSUI FOODS CO., LTD. Wholesale of foods and beverages Japan 100.0
Bussan Logistics Solutions Operation and management of logistics
Co., Ltd. centers Japan 100.0
VENDOR SERVICE CO., Sales and distribution of food and
LTD. packaging materials Japan 100.0
RETAIL SYSTEM SERVICE | Saes of foods and groceries, services
CO,, LTD. for retailers Japan 100.0
I_M_l_lgSUI & CO. FORESIGHT Property management Japan 100.0
Investment in healthcare staffing
UHS Partners, Inc. business U.SA. 100.0
Mitsui Bussan Woodchip Plantation, processing and sales of ;
Oceania Pty. Ltd. woodchip Austrdia 100.0
MITSUI & CO. REAL :
ESTATE LTD. Real estate sales, leasing and brokerage Japan 100.0
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Ownership

Jurisdiction ;
i f Vot
%ggr?]t;? Registered Name Principal Lines of Business of © Shgrge]g
Incorporation (%)
MBK Headlthcare Partners . United
Limited Investment in IHH Healthcare Bhd. Kingdom 100.0
MicroBiopharm Japan Co., Manufacture and sales of medicines and
Ltd. chemicals Japan 800
MITSUI BUSSAN INTER- Planning and management for Japan 100.0
FASHION LTD. production and procurement of apparel :
Paul Stuart, Inc. Luxury clothing retailer U.SA. 100.0
Planning, development and sales of
MITSUI KNOWLEDGE : 4 P
INDUSTRY CO., LTD. information and communication Japan 100.0
systems
Mitsui Bussan Electronics Sales of electronics device and
Ltd. equipment Jepan 160.0
Mitsui Bussan Secure : .
Directions, Inc. Cyber security business Japan 100.0
. e " Investment in high-speed mobile "
AsiaPacific Mobile Pte. Ltd. service business in Indonesia Singapore 100.0
Innovation & | Mitsuibussan Insurance Co., Non life and life insurance agency
Corporate Ltd. services Japan 100.0
Development Vit & Co. Global
itsui 0. Glo . .
Investment L td. Investment in venture businesses Japan 100.0
Mitsui & Co., Principa . . )
Investments L td. Investment in private equity Japan 100.0
Mitsui Bussan Commodities Trading of energy and basemetal United 100.0
Ltd. derivatives Kingdom )
TRI-NET (JAPAN) INC. 'sgﬁnci'onaj integrated transportation Japan 100.0
Trinet Logistics Co., Ltd. Domestic warehousing business Japan 100.0
P Trading canned foods, chilled foods,
Mitsui Foods, Inc. juice ingredient and coffee U.SA. 100.0
United Grain Corporation of ! ‘o
Oregon Grain merchandising U.SA. 100.0
Champions Pipe & Supply, Sales of oil and gaswell tubular
Inc. products USA. 100.0
MBK Real Estate LLC Real estate-related business U.SA. 100.0
MITSUI PLASTICSINC. Sales of chemicals U.SA. 100.0
; . Manufacturing and sales of feed
Americas Novus International, Inc. additives U.SA. 65.0
Intercontinental Terminals . :
Company LLC Chemical tank leasing U.SA. 100.0
Game Changer Holdings Inc. | Investment in steel processing company U.SA. 100.0
. : Sales of il and gaswell tubular
Cinco Pipe and Supply, LLC products U.SA. 100.0
Mitsui & Co. (U.S.A), Inc. Trading U.SA. 100.0
Mitsui & Co. (Canada) Ltd. Trading Canada 100.0
W Tsul & co. (BRASIL) | Trading Brazil 100.0
Europe, the EURO-MIT STAAL B.V. Steel processing Netherlands 90.0
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Ownership

Jurisdiction ;
Operating . . . . of Voting
Segment Registered Name Principal Lines of Business | of » Shares
ncorporation (%)
Middle East o ' United
and Africa Mitsui & Co. Europe PLC Trading Kingdom 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Deutschland .
GmbH Trading Germany 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Benelux . :
SA/NV. Trading Belgium 100.0
Mitsui & Co. ItdiaS.p.A. Trading Italy 100.0
Mitsui & Co., Middle East . United Arab
Ltd. Trading Emirates 100.0
Mitsui Water Holdings . . !
(Thailand) Ltd. Investment in water supply business Thailand 100.0
MIT POWER AUSTRALIA ; :
PTY LTD Wind power generation Austrdia 100.0
Asia Pacific Mitsui & Co. (Asia Pacific) Trading Singapore 100.0
Pte. Ltd.
Mitsui & Co. (Thailand) Ltd. | Trading Thailand 100.0
Mitsiam International Ltd. Trading Thailand 751
Mitsui & Co. (Australia) Ltd. | Trading Australia 100.0
Mitsul & Co. (HongKong) | 1yging China 100.0
Mitsui & Co. (China) Ltd. Trading China 100.0
Mitsui & Co. (Shanghai) Ltd. | Trading China 100.0
Mitsui & Co. (Taiwan) Ltd. Trading Taiwan 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Korea Ltd. Trading Korea 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Financial ) . . -
Services Ltd. Financing services within the Group Japan 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Financia Financing services within the Group Singapore 100.0
Services (Asia) Ltd.
All Other
Mitsui & Co. Financial ' . . -
Services (U.SA.) Inc. Financing services within the Group U.SA. 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Financial . : ; o United
Services (Europe) Plc Financing services within the Group Kingdom 100.0
MITSUI BUSSAN . .
Provision of HR & GA servicesto
E_IL_JDSINESS PARTNERS CO., Mitsui and its subsidiaries Japan 100.0
Mitsui & Co. Trade Services Provision of logistics-related servicesto
Ltd. Mitsui and its subsidiaries Japan 1000
Mitsui & Co. Financial Provision of accounting and treasury- Japan 100.0

Management, Ltd.

related servicesto Mitsui
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Major Equity Accounted | nvestees

Operating Jurisdiction (())\]:v\r}%rt?fr}lgp
Segment Registered Name Principal Lines of Business | of y Shares
ncorporation (%)
Shanghai Bao-Mit Steel - ;
Distribution Co., Ltd. Processing and sales of steel products China 35.0
SIAM YAMATO STEEL .
COMPANY LIMITED Manufacture and sales of steel products Thailand 20.0
Mahindra Sanyo Special Steel | Manufacture and sales of specia steel India 20.0
Pvt. Ltd. products ’
Gestamp North America, Inc. | Manufacture of automotive components U.SA. 30.0
Iron & Stedl - -
Products gistmp Holding Mexico, Manufacture of automotive components Spain 30.0
Gestamp Brasil IndustriaDe . .
Autopecas SA. Manufacture of automotive components Brazil 30.0
gistanp Holding Argentina, Manufacture of automotive components Spain 30.0
GONVARRI EOLICA, SL Manufacture of wind turbine towers and Spain 25.0
flanges
Valepar SA. Holding Company of Vale SA. Brazil 18.2
:Er;ré(e::r:\(/ljalongg\ll\l,zlrEédos Coa mining, power generation, ferrous
. - alloy and chemical production and China 25.0
Metallurgical Group Limited water bumpin
By Shares pumping
m:ert];ral & NIPPON AMAZON Investments in aluminum smelting Japan 20.9
RESOUICES ALUMINIUM CO., LTD. business in Brazil
: Investments in nickel smelting and
EUVMIC Nickel Netherlands refining business in New Caledonia and Netherlands 47.6
o sales of products
EtHdP Billiton Mitsui Codl Pty Mining and sales of Australian coal Australia 16.8
. . . Engineering and construction for
Toyo Engineering Corporation industrial facilities Japan 229
Galaxy Newspring Pte. Ltd. Investments in water businessin China Singapore 50.0
Investment in power generation
JM ENERGY CO,, LIMITED business in China Hong Kong 50.0
P.T. PAITON ENERGY Power generation in Indonesia Indonesia 40.5
Compania de Generacion C ; .
Valadolid, S. de R.L. de C.V. Power generation in Mexico Mexico 50.0
Investments in power generation United
IPM EagleLLP bUSINess Kingdom 30.0
. L Power plant business in the United United
Machinery & IPM Holdings (UK) Limited Kingdom Kingdom 26.3
Infrastructure - - X
MT Falcon Holdings Investment in power generation Mexico 40.0
Company, SA.PI.deC.V. businessin Mexico ’
Integrated freight transportation :
VLI SA. business in Brazil Brazil 20.0
ETSI(EAUtomOt'Ve Group, Automotive retailer U.SA. 18.2
TOYOTA MANILA BAY ] -
CORPORATION Retail sales of Toyota cars Philippines 40.0
PT. Yamaha Indonesia Motor :
Manufacturing Manufacture and sales of motorcycles Indonesia 15.0
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Ownership

Jurisdiction -
i f Vot
%ggr?]t;? Registered Name Principal Lines of Business of OSh;)rgg
Incorporation (%)
TAIYOKENKI RENTAL : .
CO., LTD Rental of construction machinery Japan 25.9
KOMATSU MARKETING . -
SUPPORT AUSTRALIA pTy | Sa€sof construction and mining Australia 40.0
equipment
LTD
NATIONAL PLANT AND i . .
EQUIPMENT PTY LIMITED Rental of mining equipment Austraia 49.9
. LPG imports and marketing, fuel cell
- ENEOS GLOBE Corporation and photovoltaic systems marketing Japan 30.0
nergy
Japan AustraliaLNG (MIMI) | Exploration, development and sales of Australia 50.0
Pty. Ltd. crude oil and natural gas ’
Manufacture and sales of compound
FEED ONE CO., LTD. feedstuffs Japan 25.0
Mitsui Sugar Co., Ltd. Manufacture of refined sugar Japan 325
1L-thde Kumphawapi Sugar Co., Production and sales of sugar Thailand 4.7
AIM SERVICES CO,, LTD. Contract food services Japan 50.0
ARAMARK Uniform .
Lifestyle Services Japan Corporation Rental and sales of uniforms Japan 39.2
} - Sales of building materials, contract of
ﬁue?;?%g‘ MLt'éw' bussan construction work and import of various Japan 50.0
T building materials
Dispensary pharmacy business, total
SOGO MEDICAL CO., LTD. | solutionsfor medical institution Japan 25.6
management
. Manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
Fuji Pharma Co., Ltd. products Japan 229
. Comprehensive telemarketing and
Relialnc. direct marketing operations Jepan 344
Innovation & | QVC JAPAN INC, g/l}ultlr'nedlaretall business based on TV Japan 40.0
Corporate opping
Devel opment ; ; ; ;
CCTV Shopping Co., Ltd. Servicefor TV shopping businessin China 25.0
JA Mitsui Leasing, Ltd. Leasing and financing business Japan 314
ITC RUBISTERMINAL ] : :
Europe, the ANTWERP NV Chemical tank leasing Belgium 50.0
Middle East — - - ] Onited
and Africa . - rication, upgrading, inspection an nit
GEG (Holdings) Limited mai ntenance of welded structures Kingdom 250
Funding

Mitsui’s basic funding policy as set forth by its management is to secure liquidity required for its smooth
operations and to maintain the strength and soundness of its balance sheet. Thus, Mitsui’s principal strategy is
to obtain long-term funds (those with maturities of around 10 years) from financial institutions, including
domestic life-insurance companies and banks, and through the issuance of corporate bonds. At the same time,
Mitsui minimises its refinance risk by deconcentrating the amount of long-term debt to be repaid each fiscal
year. In cases of projects where large amounts of financing are required, Mitsui utilises financing programs
provided by government financing agencies and/or project financing. Mitsui also holds sufficient cash and
cash equivalents in order to maintain liquidity to flexibly meet capital requirements and to minimise the
harmful effects of a deteriorated financial market on future debt-service requirements. While there is no
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particular target amount of cash and cash equivalents to be held, considering the current financial market
conditions, cash and cash equivalents are invested mainly in highly liquid and highly rated short-term
financial instruments, or deposited.

In principle, a domestic financing subsidiary provides a cash management service to wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries, which results in the centralisation of funding sources, efficient use of excess funds and
securement of liquidity for domestic subsidiaries.

The same policy and practices have been extended to wholly owned overseas subsidiaries through Mitsui’s
regional financing subsidiaries. As a result, approximately three fourths of total interest-bearing debt on a
consolidated basis as of 31st March, 2016 was raised by Mitsui & Co. and the above-mentioned financing
subsidiaries.

Risk Management

As a general trading company engaging in a wide variety of businesses, risks arising from business activities
are monitored and managed by Chief Operating Officers of business units and regional business units within
their authorisation delegated from the management. Risks associated with Mitsui’s business include
quantitative risks such as credit risk, market risk, business risk arising from subsidiaries’ businesses, and
country risk, as well as qualitative risks such as compliance risk and operational risk. Measures taken by each
business unit to manage quantitative risks include setting of position limits and loss-cut limits as well as
monitoring of positions by divisions with relevant expertise. For the management of qualitative risks, the
business units are obligated to observe related internal regulations. When a business unit or a regional
business unit takes risks greater than the scope of authority granted to the Chief Operating Officers, it is
necessary to obtain approval of the Corporate Management Committee or a Representative Director in charge,
or a Senior Managing Officer in charge, depending on the importance of the case, in accordance with the
standards of the internal approval system.

Furthermore, as committees responsible for business execution and the internal control system, organisations
such as the Portfolio Management Committee, the Internal Controls Committee, the CSR Promotion
Committee, and the Crisis Management Headquarters establish and develop the risk management structures
and handle significant risks. These committees consist of Managing Officers and the General Managers of
Corporate Staff Units. With respect to the risks in the fields they are in charge of, each division of the
Corporate Staff Unitsis responsible for surveillance of the whole position of Mitsui & Co., control within the
prescribed range of their authority, and supporting the relevant Directors and Managing Officers.

M anagement

Basic Corporate Governance Policy

In structuring the corporate governance framework, Mitsui & Co. places emphasis on “improved transparency
and accountability” and “clarification of the division of roles between management oversight and execution.”

For the “improved transparency and accountability,” Mitsui & Co. ensures sound supervision and monitoring
of management with the view point of External Directors and External Audit & Supervisory Board Members.
Mitsui & Co. has also established an internal control system for disclosure so that all executives and
employees fulfill their accountability to stakeholders under the principle of fair disclosure. For “clarification
of the division of roles between management oversight and execution,” Mitsui & Co. delegates execution of
business to Managing Officers substantially while the Board of Directors retains a supervisory role over
Managing Officers' business activities. Chief Operating Officers of 15 business units within headquarters and
3 regiona business units serve concurrently as Managing Officers and engage in business operation for the
consolidated group in aresponsive and flexible manner.
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While increasing the effectiveness of supervisory functions by having Audit & Supervisory Board Members,
Mitsui & Co. implements corporate governance by maintaining an Audit & Supervisory Board system
because it believes that having internal Directors who are familiar with Mitsui’s business practices and
operations is essential to the business of a general trading company. By adopting a Committee System in
which External Directors and External Audit & Supervisory Board Members participate, Mitsui & Co.
achieves highly effective corporate governance to secure “improved transparency and accountability” and
“clarification of the division of roles between management oversight and execution.” In order to realise
effective corporate governance for shareholders and other stakeholders, Mitsui & Co. has established, and
maintains, the following structures:

(i) The Board of Directorsis the highest authority for execution of business and supervision, and in order
to secure this function, Mitsui & Co. has set the number of Directors to the maximum number that
permits substantial discussions. As advisory committees to the Board of Directors, Mitsui & Co. aso
has in place the Governance Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
in which External Directors and/or External Audit & Supervisory Board Members participate as
members.

(i)  The Audit & Supervisory Board Members supervise the Directors execution of duties as an
independent institution with the mandate of the shareholders. For this purpose, Audit & Supervisory
Board Members carry out multi-faceted, effective audit activities such as attending important internal
meetings, verifying reports and investigating Mitsui’s business, and take necessary measures in a
timely manner.

Member of the Board of Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members
The Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members of Mitsui & Co. as of the date hereof are as follows:

Name Position

Masami lijimat Chairman of the Board of Directors

Tatsuo Y asunaga®
Shintaro Ambet

Motomu Takahashi®

Hiroyuki Kato*

Y oshihiro Hombo®
Makoto Suzuki®
Keigo Matsubara
Shinsuke Fujii*
Ikujiro Nonaka
Toshiro Muto

Izumi K obayashi
Jenifer Rogers
Hirotaka Takeuchi
Joji Okada

Takashi Yamauchi
Hiroyasu Watanabe
Haruka Matsuyama

Hiroshi Ozu

President and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Vice President

Executive Vice President

Executive Vice President

Senior Executive Managing Officer

Senior Executive Managing Officer
Executive Managing Officer

Executive Managing Officer

External Director

External Director

External Director

External Director

External Director

Audit & Supervisory Board Member

Audit & Supervisory Board Member

External Audit & Supervisory Board Member
External Audit & Supervisory Board Member
External Audit & Supervisory Board Member

75



Notes:

1 Representative Director

2. None of the Directors or Audit & Supervisory Board Members listed above, except for Mr. Nonaka, Mr. Muto,
Ms. Kobayashi, Ms. Rogers, Mr. Takeuchi, Mr. Watanabe, Ms. Matsuyama and Mr. Ozu, performs any principal
activities outside Mitsui which are significant with respect to Mitsui & Co.

3. All of the Directors, except for Mr. lijima, Mr. Nonaka, Mr. Muto, Ms. Kobayashi, Ms. Rogers and Mr. Takeuchi,
also serve as Executive Officers.

4, Mr. Nonakais a Professor Emeritus at Hitotsubashi University, First Distinguished Drucker Scholar in Residence,
Drucker School of Claremont Graduate University and Specially Appointed Professor at Waseda University. Mr.
Muto is the Chairman of Daiwa Institute of Research Ltd. Ms. Kobayashi is the Vice Chairperson of Japan
Association of Corporate Executives. Ms. Rogers is the General Counsel of NEW Asurion Asia Pecific Japan
LLC. Mr. Takeuchi is a Professor Emeritus at Hitotsubashi University and a Professor at Harvard Business
School.

5. Ms. Matsuyamais a Partner of Hibiya Park Law Offices.

Mitsui & Co. has no material business relationship with Hitotsubashi University, Claremont Graduate University,
Waseda University, Daiwa Institute of Research Ltd., Japan Association of Corporate Executives, NEW Asurion
AsiaPacific Japan LLC., Harvard Business School or Hibiya Park Law Offices.

There are no potentia conflicts of interest between the duties to Mitsui & Co. of the Directors except for External
Directors and their private interests and/or other duties. Given that Mitsui is a general trading company with
extensive business dealings, it has been decided to make appropriate efforts by the Board of Directors to handle
likely conflicts of interest involving the prospective Externa Directors in individua transactions with externa
parties. Mr. Watanabe, Ms. Matsuyama, Mr. Ozu are External Audit & Supervisory Board Members under the
Companies Law. When selecting candidates for External Audit & Supervisory Board Members, the Audit &
Supervisory Board shall confirm that no issues with independence arise by taking into consideration such factors
as relations with the company, management and important staff members.

The business address as of the date hereof of al of the Directors, except for Mr. Nonaka, Mr. Muto, Ms. Rogers
and Mr. Takeuchi, is 1-3, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8631, Japan. The business addresses of
Mr. Nonaka, Mr. Muto, Ms. Rogers and Mr. Takeuchi are: Gakujutsu Sougou Center 7F, 1-2, Hitotsubashi 2-
chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo101-8439, Japan; Gran Tokyo North Tower, 9-1, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku,
Tokyo 100-6756, Japan, Ark Hills South Tower 11F, 4-5, Roppongi 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 106-0032, Japan
and Josuikai Building 1F, 1-1, Hitotsubashi 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 101-0003, Japan, respectively.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

General

Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd. (“Mitsui Asia’) was incorporated under the Companies Act (Cap.
50) of Singapore as alimited liability company in Singapore on 7th December, 1995. Mitsui Asia changed its
status from a private company to a public company on 9th December, 1997 in order to publicly issue medium
term notes and changed its name to Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd. from Mitsui & Co., Asia
Investment Ltd. on 24th July, 2006. Mitsui Asiais a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mitsui & Co. and is reliant
upon Mitsui & Co. for establishing general management direction and strategy for Mitsui Asia.

The registered office of Mitsui Asiais at 80 Robinson Road, #25-00, Singapore 068898 and its registration
number in Singapore is 199508683N. The telephone number of the registered office is 65-6421-9254.

Mitsui Asia acts as a captive finance company in the Asia region. The principal activities of Mitsui Asia are
“In-house Banking”, which includes lending funds such as working capital to, and borrowing excess money
from, the direct and indirect subsidiaries and affiliate companies of Mitsui & Co. mainly in Asia (other than
Japan). Mitsui Asia's basic policy for fund-raising activities is to secure stable, medium-term funds and
liquidity for the subsidiaries and affiliate companies and provide financial market research information.

Associated Undertakings and other Investments

Mitsui Asia does not have any subsidiaries.

M anagement

The Directors of Mitsui Asia as of the date hereof are asfollows:

Name Title

Takakazu Uchida Executive Director
Naoki Nagano Executive Director
Takashi Manabe Executive Director
Omori Hiroshi Non Executive Director

The business address of Mr. Takakazu Uchida is 1-3, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8631,
Japan, Nippon Life Marunouchi Garden Tower and the business address of Mr. Naoki Nagano, Mr. Takashi
Manabe and Mr. Omori Hiroshi is 80 Robinson Road, #25-00, Singapore 068898.

All the Directors are employed under the business of Mitsui on a full-time basis. There are no potentia
conflicts of interest between the duties to Mitsui Asia of the Directors and their private interests and or other
duties. The Directors of Mitsui Asiain taking any decisions in their capacity as a member of the board do so
after taking into account the best interests of Mitsui Asia.
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TAXATION

The following statements are not intended to constitute a complete analysis of all tax consequences relating to
the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Notes. Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax
advisers concerning the tax consequences of their particular situations.

Japanese Taxation

Notesissued by Mitsui Asia
Mitsui & Co. has been advised that under existing Japanese laws, payments of principal and interest in respect

of the Notes issued by Mitsui Asia or by Mitsui & Co. pursuant to the Guarantees will not be subject to
Japanese withholding tax.

Notesissued by Mitsui & Co.

The following description of Japanese taxation (limited to national taxes) applies exclusively to interest and
issue differential (as defined below) on the Notes issued or to be issued by Mitsui & Co. outside Japan and
payable outside Japan. It is not intended to be exhaustive and Noteholders and/or Couponholders are
recommended to consult their tax advisers as to their exact tax position.

Interest payments on the Notes to an individual resident of Japan or a Japanese corporation, or to an
individual non-resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation that is a person having a specia relationship
with Mitsui & Co. as Issuer (a*“specially-related person”) as described in Article 6, paragraph 4 of the Specia
Taxation Measures Law of Japan (Law No. 26 of 1957, as amended) (the “ Special Taxation Measures Law”)
is subject to income tax on the amount of such interest, except for (a) interest payments to the designated
financial institution which has complied with the requirements for the tax exemption applications under
Article 6 of the Special Taxation Measures Law, or (b) interest payments through afinancial institution which
handles the interest payments on the Notes as defined in the Special Taxation Measures Law (the “the
payment handling agent”) in Japan to (i) a public corporation designated under the Income Tax Law of Japan
(Law No. 33 of 1965, as amended) (the “Income Tax Law”) or (ii) a financia institution or a financial
instruments business operator, etc. designated under Article 8 of the Special Taxation Measures Law, which
has complied with the requirements for tax exemption applications under Article 3-3, paragraph 6 of the
Special Taxation Measures Law.

The original income tax rate applicable to the payment of the amount of the interest on the Notes to be
withheld by Mitsui & Co. is 15 per cent. However, effective from and including 1st January, 2013 to and
including 31st December, 2037, such withholding tax rate has been increased to 15.315 per cent., since a
special surtax measures on income tax were introduced to fund the restoration effort from the earthquake
occurred in March 2011 under the Special Measures Law to Secure the Financial Resources Required to
Implement Policy on Restoration After the East Japan Earthquake (Law No. 117 of 2011). Taxpayer of
income tax and withholding tax needs to pay surtax, calculated by multiplying the base income tax amount of
15 per cent. with 2.1 per cent. in accordance the above law.

It should be noted that if the recipient of interest on the Notes is a Japanese corporation, the amount of such
interest will be included in the recipient’'s income which is subject to Japanese corporate tax under the
Corporate Tax Law of Japan (Law No. 34 of 1965, as amended); provided that the amount of Japanese
income tax withheld under the Income Tax Law will be generaly credited against the amount of Japanese
corporate tax.

Under the Special Taxation Measures Law, payment of interest on the Notes outside Japan to a non-resident of
Japan or aforeign corporation (not being specially-related persons of Mitsui & Co.) for Japanese tax purposes
will not be subject to withholding of Japanese income tax, if such recipient of interest establishes that it is a
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non-resident of Japan or a foreign corporation (not being specially-related persons of Mitsui & Co.) in
compliance with the requirements under the Special Taxation Measures Law as summarised below:

) If the Notes or Coupons are held through the payment handling agent in accordance with the Special
Taxation Measures Law Enforcement Order (Cabinet Order No. 43 of 1957, as amended, the “ Cabinet
Order”), (A) the recipient of the interest provides such payment handling agent which holds the Notes
or Coupons in its custody (the “payment handling custodian”) with information including, inter alia,
its name and address and obtains confirmation from the payment handling custodian of the
correctness of such information by presenting certain documentary or other evidence to such payment
handling custodian; (B) such payment handling custodian notifies “Interest Recipient Information”
(providing, inter alia, (x) that al recipients are non-residents of Japan or foreign corporations (not
being specially-related persons of Mitsui & Co.) (if applicable); (y) the amount of the interest payable
to the recipients that are non-residents of Japan or foreign corporations (not being specially-related
persons of Mitsui & Co.)) which is prepared by such payment handling custodian based on the
information provided by the recipient, to Mitsui & Co. or if the payment handling custodian has
further sub-deposited Notes or Coupons with another payment handling agent including a clearing
organisation (the “sub-depositary”), through such sub-depositary to Mitsui & Co., at the latest one
day prior to the date on which such payment handling custodian receives from Mitsui & Co. the
amount of the interest for the payments to the recipients; and (C) Mitsui & Co. prepares “Interest
Recipient Confirmation” based upon Interest Recipient Information and submits it to the competent
Japanese tax authority (the “tax authority”); or

(i) If the Notes or Coupons are held otherwise than through a payment handling custodian, upon each
payment of the interest on the Notes, the Noteholder files a “Claim for Exemption from Taxation”
(providing, inter alia, the name and address of the recipient of the interest) with the tax authority
through Mitsui & Co. or (if payment of interest is made through the payment handling agent) through
the payment handling agent and Mitsui & Co.

If the recipient of interest on the Notes is a non-resident of Japan or a foreign corporation (not being a
specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.), failure by such non-resident or foreign corporation (not being a
specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.) to comply with the above requirements will result in the
withholding of Japanese income tax.

The above exemption from the withholding of Japanese income tax on the interest payments of the Notes is
also applied to a Japanese financial institution or a Japanese financial instruments business operator etc.
designated by the Cabinet Order pursuant to Article 6, paragraph 9 of the Special Taxation Measures Law
which receives the interest on the Notes outside of Japan (i.e. receives the interest otherwise than through the
payment handling agent in Japan).

However, in all cases mentioned above, interest on Notes issued by Mitsui & Co. of which the amount of
interest is to be calculated by reference to certain indexes (as prescribed in the Cabinet Order relating to
Article 6, paragraph 4 of the Special Taxation Measures Law) relating to Mitsui & Co. or a specially-related
person of Mitsui & Co. will be subject to the withholding tax even if paid to an individual non-resident of
Japan or a non-Japanese corporation that is not a specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.

If the recipient of interest on the Notes is a non-resident of Japan or a foreign corporation (not being a
specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.) which complies with the above requirements and if such non-
resident or foreign corporation has a permanent establishment within Japan and the receipt of interest is
attributable to the business of such non-resident or foreign corporation (not being a specially-related person of
Mitsui & Co.) carried on within Japan through such permanent establishment, such interest will be subject to
Japanese income tax or corporate tax, as appropriate, payable other than by way of withholding.

79



If the recipient of the difference between the issue price of Notes and the amount which the holder receives
upon redemption of such Notes (hereinafter referred to as the “issue differential”) is a non-resident of Japan or
a foreign corporation (not being a specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.) having no permanent
establishment within Japan or having a permanent establishment within Japan but the receipt of such issue
differential is not attributable to the business carried on within Japan by such non-resident or foreign
corporation (not being a specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.) through such permanent establishment, no
income tax or corporate tax is payable with respect to such issue differential. If the receipt of such issue
differential is attributable to the business of any such non-resident or foreign corporation (not being a
specially-related person of Mitsui & Co.) carried on within Japan through a permanent establishment
maintained by it within Japan, such issue differential will be subject to Japanese income tax or corporate tax,
as appropriate, payable other than by way of withholding.

Under the current tax legislation applicable to an individual resident of Japan, the capital loss derived from
the sale of listed shares and bonds is able to be offset with income from the dividends from other listed shares
and interests from other bonds, etc.

Under the tax legislation enacted in 2014, the Japanese taxation applicable to a non-resident taxpayer (both
individual and corporate) which has a permanent establishment in Japan has changed, effective for
corporations from the fiscal year beginning on or after 1st April, 2016 and effective for individuals from 1st
January, 2017. In relation to the taxable income for a permanent establishment in Japan, the previous “entire
income approach” (under which all taxable Japanese source income is taxable regardless of its attribution to a
permanent establishment in Japan) was changed to the “attributable income approach” (under which only
taxable Japanese source income attributable to a permanent establishment in Japan is taxable). In addition, a
so-called arm’s length principle applies to intra-company transactions between the overseas head office (and
the other permanent establishments located outside Japan) and the permanent establishment in Japan for the
computation of the Japanese source income attributable to the permanent establishment in Japan.

United Sates Foreign Account Tax Compliance

THIS DISCLOSURE IS LIMITED TO THE UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAX ISSUES ADDRESSED
HEREIN. ADDITIONAL ISSUES MAY EXIST THAT ARE NOT ADDRESSED IN THIS DISCLOSURE
AND THAT COULD AFFECT THE UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAX TREATMENT OF THE NOTES.
THIS TAX DISCLOSURE WAS WRITTEN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES AND CANNOT BE
USED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT MAY BE ASSERTED UNDER THE
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED (THE “CODE"). PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS
SHOULD SEEK THEIR OWN ADVICE BASED ON THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM
AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR.

Pursuant to certain provisions of the Code, commonly known as FATCA (“FATCA”), a “foreign financial
institution” may be required to withhold on certain payments it makes (“foreign passthru payments’) to
persons that fail to meet certain certification, reporting, or related requirements. Each of the Issuers may be a
foreign financia institution for these purpose. A nhumber of jurisdictions (including Japan) have entered into,
or have agreed in substance to, intergovernmental agreements with the United States to implement FATCA
(“1GAS"), which modify the way in which FATCA appliesin their jurisdictions. Under the provisions of IGAs
as currently in effect, a foreign financial institution in an IGA jurisdiction would generally not be required to
withhold under FATCA or an IGA from payments that it makes. Certain aspects of the application of the
FATCA provisions and IGAs to instruments such as the Notes, including whether withholding would ever be
required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA with respect to payments on instruments such as the Notes, are
uncertain and may be subject to change. Even if withholding would be required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA
with respect to payments on instruments such as the Notes, such withholding would not apply prior to 1st
January, 2019 and Notes issued on or prior to the date that is six months after the date on which final
regulations defining “foreign passthru payments’ are filed with the U.S. Federal Register generally would be
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“grandfathered” for purposes of FATCA withholding unless materially modified after such date]. Holders
should consult their own tax advisors regarding how these rules may apply to their investment in the Notes. In
the event any withholding would be required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA with respect to payments on the
Notes, no person will be required to pay additional amounts as a result of the withholding.

Singapore Taxation

The statements below are general in nature and are based on certain aspects of current tax laws in Singapore,
and administrative guidelines and circulars issued by the Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS’) in force
as at the date of this Offering Circular and are subject to any changes in such laws, administrative guidelines
or circulars, or the interpretation of those laws, guidelines or circulars, occurring after such date, which
changes could be made on a retroactive basis. Neither these statements nor any other statements in this
Offering Circular are to be regarded as advice on the tax position of any holder of the Notes or of any person
acquiring, selling or otherwise dealing with the Notes or on any tax implications arising from the acquisition,
sale or other dealings in respect of the Notes. The statements made herein do not purport to be a
comprehensive description of all the tax considerations that may be relevant to a decision to purchase, own or
dispose of the Notes and do not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of
investors, some of which (such as dealers in securities or financial institutions in Singapore which have been
granted the relevant Financial Sector Incentive(s)) may be subject to special rules or tax rates. Prospective
holders of the Notes are advised to consult their own tax advisors as to the Singapore or other tax
conseguences of the acquisition, ownership of or disposal of the Notes, including the effect of any foreign,
state or local tax laws to which they are subject. It is emphasised that neither of the Issuers, Guarantors,
Dealers or any other persons involved in the Programme accepts responsibility for any tax effects or liabilities
resulting from the subscription for, purchase, holding or disposal of the Notes.

Notesissued by Mitsui Asia
Interest Payments

Subject to the following paragraphs, under Section 12(6) of the Income Tax Act, Chapter 134 of Singapore
(the “Income Tax Act”) the following payments are deemed to be derived from Singapore:

(@  any interest, commission, fee or any other payment in connection with any loan or indebtedness or
with any arrangement, management, guarantee, or service relating to any loan or indebtedness which is
(i) borne, directly or indirectly, by a person resident in Singapore or a permanent establishment in
Singapore (except in respect of any business carried on outside Singapore through a permanent
establishment outside Singapore or any immovable property situated outside Singapore); or
(ii) deductible against any income accruing in or derived from Singapore; or

(b)  any income derived from loans where the funds provided by such loans are brought into or used in
Singapore.

Further, such payments where made to a person not known to be a resident in Singapore for tax purposes are
generaly subject to withholding tax in Singapore. The rate at which tax is to be withheld for such payments
(other than those subject to the 15 per cent. final withholding tax described below) to non-resident persons
(other than non-resident individuals) is currently 17 per cent. The applicable rate for non-resident individuals
is currently 22 per cent. However, if the payment is derived by a person not resident in Singapore from
sources other than its trade, business, profession or vocation carried on or exercised by such person in
Singapore and is not effectively connected with any permanent establishment in Singapore of that person, the
payment is subject to a final withholding tax of 15 per cent. The rate of 15 per cent. may be reduced by
applicable tax treaties.
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Qualifying Debt Securities

With respect to any tranche of the Notes which are debt securities issued by Mitsui Asia under the Programme
(the “Relevant Notes’) during the period from 1st January, 2014 to 31st December, 2018 where more than
half of the issue of such Relevant Notes are distributed by Financia Sector Incentive — Capital Market,
Financial Sector Incentive — Standard Tier or Financial Sector Incentive — Bond Market companies, such
Relevant Notes would be qualifying debt securities (“QDS") for the purposes of the Income Tax Act.

If the Relevant Notes are QDS:

@

(b)

(©

subject to certain prescribed conditions having been fulfilled (including the furnishing by Mitsui Asia,
or such other person asthe MAS may direct, to the MAS of areturn on debt securities for the Relevant
Notes in the prescribed format within such period as the MAS may specify and such other particulars
in connection with the Relevant Notes as the MAS may require and the inclusion by Mitsui Asiain all
offering documents relating to the Relevant Notes a statement to the effect that where interest, discount
income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or break cost is derived from the Relevant Notes by a
person who is not resident in Singapore and who carries on any operation in Singapore through a
permanent establishment in Singapore, the tax exemption for qualifying debt securities shall not apply
if the non-resident person acquires the Relevant Notes using funds and profits of that person’s
operations through a permanent establishment in Singapore), interest, discount income (not including
discount income arising from secondary trading), prepayment fee, redemption premium and break cost
(collectively, the “Qualifying Income™) from the Relevant Notes, paid by Mitsui Asia and derived by a
holder who is not resident in Singapore and who (aa) does not have any permanent establishment in
Singapore, or (bb) carries on any operation in Singapore through a permanent establishment in
Singapore but the funds used by that person to acquire the Relevant Notes are not funds and profits of
that person’s operations through a permanent establishment in Singapore, are exempt from Singapore
tax;

subject to certain conditions having been fulfilled (including the furnishing by Mitsui Asia, or such
other person as the MAS may direct, to the MAS of areturn on debt securities for the Relevant Notes
in the prescribed format within such period as the MAS may specify and such other particulars in
connection with the Relevant Notes as the MAS may require), Qualifying Income from the Relevant
Notes paid by Mitsui Asia and derived by any company or a body of persons (as defined in the Income
Tax Act) in Singapore is subject to tax at a concessionary rate of 10 per cent. (except for holders of the
relevant Financial Sector Incentive(s) who may be taxed at different rates); and

subject to:

) Mitsui Asiaincluding in all offering documents relating to the Relevant Notes a statement to the
effect that any person whose interest, discount income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or
break cost derived from the Relevant Notes is not exempt from tax shall include such incomein
areturn of income made under the Income Tax Act; and

(if)  the furnishing by Mitsui Asia, or such other person as the MAS may direct, to the MAS of a
return on debt securities for the Relevant Notes in the prescribed format within such period as
the MAS may specify and such other particulars in connection with the Relevant Notes as the
MAS may require,

payments of Qualifying Income derived from the Relevant Notes are not subject to the withholding of
tax by Mitsui Asia.

Notwithstanding the foregoing:

0]

if during the primary launch of any tranche of Relevant Notes, the Relevant Notes of such tranche are
issued to fewer than four persons and 50 per cent. or more of the principal amount of such Relevant
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Notes is beneficially held or funded, directly or indirectly, by related parties of Mitsui Asia, such
Relevant Notes would not qualify as QDS; and

(ii)  even though a particular tranche of Relevant Notes are QDS, if, at any time during the tenor of such
tranche of Relevant Notes, 50 per cent. or more of such Relevant Notes which are outstanding at any
time during the life of their issue is beneficially held or funded, directly or indirectly, by any related
party(ies) of Mitsui Asia, Qualifying Income derived from such Relevant Notes held by:

(@  any related party of Mitsui Asia; or

(b)  any other person where the funds used by such person to acquire such Relevant Notes are
obtained, directly or indirectly, from any related party of Mitsui Asia,

shall not be eligible for the tax exemption or concessionary rate of tax as described above.

The term “related party”, in relation to a person, means any other person who, directly or indirectly, controls
that person, or is controlled, directly or indirectly, by that person, or where he and that other person, directly
or indirectly, are under the control of a common person.

The terms “break cost”, “prepayment fee” and “redemption premium” are defined in the Income Tax Act as
follows:

“break cost”, in relation to debt securities and qualifying debt securities, means any fee payable by the
issuer of the securities on the early redemption of the securities, the amount of which is determined by any
loss or liability incurred by the holder of the securities in connection with such redemption;

“prepayment fee”, in relation to debt securities and qualifying debt securities, means any fee payable by
the issuer of the securities on the early redemption of the securities, the amount of which is determined by
the terms of the issuance of the securities; and

“redemption premium”, in relation to debt securities and qualifying debt securities, means any premium
payable by the issuer of the securities on the redemption of the securities upon their maturity.

References to “break cost”, “prepayment fee” and “redemption premium” in this Singapore tax disclosure
have the same meaning as defined in the Income Tax Act.

Where interest, discount income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or break cost (i.e. the Qualifying
Income) is derived from the Relevant Notes by any person who is not resident in Singapore and who carries
on any operations in Singapore through a permanent establishment in Singapore, the tax exemption available
for QDS under the Income Tax Act (as mentioned above) shall not apply if such person acquires such
Relevant Notes using the funds and profits of such person’s operations through a permanent establishment in
Singapore. Any person whose interest, discount income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or break cost
(i.e. Qualifying Income) derived from the Relevant Notes is not exempt from Singapore income tax is
required to include such income in areturn of income made under the Income Tax Act.

Under the Qualifying Debt Securities Plus Scheme (the “QDS Plus Scheme”), subject to certain conditions
having been fulfilled (including the furnishing by Mitsui Asia, or such other person asthe MAS may direct, to
the MAS of areturn on debt securities in respect of the QDS in the prescribed format within such period as
the MAS may specify and such other particulars in connection with the QDS as the MAS may require),
income tax exemption is granted on Qualifying Income derived by any investor from QDS (excluding
Singapore Government Securities) which:

(@)  areissued during the period from 16th February, 2008 to 31st December, 2018;
(b)  havean original maturity of not lessthan 10 years;

(c)  cannot have their tenure shortened to less than 10 years from the date of their issue, except where:
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(i) the shortening of the tenure is a result of any early termination pursuant to certain specified
early termination clauses which Mitsui Asiaincluded in any offering documents for such QDS;
and

(i)  the QDS do not contain any call, put, conversion, exchange or similar option that can be
triggered at specified dates or at specified prices which have been priced into the value of the
QDS at the time of their issue; and

(d)  cannot be re-opened with a resulting tenure of less than 10 yearsto the original maturity date.

However, even if a particular tranche of Relevant Notes are QDS which qualify under the QDS Plus Scheme,
if, at any time during the tenure of such tranche of Relevant Notes, 50 per cent. or more of such Relevant
Notes which are outstanding at any time during the life of their issue is beneficially held or funded, directly or
indirectly, by any related party(ies) of Mitsui Asia, Qualifying Income from such Relevant Notes derived by:

0) any related party of Mitsui Asia; or

(i) any other person where the funds used by such person to acquire such Relevant Notes are obtained,
directly or indirectly, from any related party of Mitsui Asia,

shall not be eligible for the tax exemption under the QDS Plus Scheme as described above.
Investment Income

Certain Singapore-sourced investment income such as:

(@ interest from debt securities derived on or after 1st January, 2004;

(b)  discount income (not including discount income from secondary trading) on debt securities derived on
or after 17th February, 2006; and

(c)  prepayment fee, redemption premium and break cost (as such terms are defined in the Income Tax Act)
from debt securities derived on or after 15th February, 2007,

by individuals are exempted from tax, provided such income is not derived by individuals through a
partnership in Singapore and is not considered as gains or profits from any trade, business or profession.

Capital Gains

Any gains considered to be in the nature of capital made from the sale of the Notes will not be taxable in
Singapore. However, any gains derived by any person from the sale of the Notes which are gains from any
trade, business, profession or vocation carried on by that person, if accruing in or derived from Singapore,
may be taxable as such gains are considered revenue in nature.

Holders of the Notes who are adopting Singapore Financial Reporting Standard 39 ("FRS 39") for Singapore
income tax purposes may be required to recognise gains or losses (not being gains or losses in the nature of
capital) on the Notes, irrespective of disposal, in accordance with FRS 39. Please see the section below on
"Adoption of FRS 39 Treatment for Singapore Income Tax Purposes”.

Adoption of FRS 39 Treatment for Singapore Income Tax Purposes

The Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore has issued a circular entitled “Income Tax Implications Arising
from the Adoption of FRS 39 - Financia Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (the “FRS 39
Circular”). The Income Tax Act has since been amended to give effect to the FRS 39 Circular.

The FRS 39 Circular generally applies, subject to certain “opt-out” provisions, to taxpayers who are required
to comply with FRS 39 for financial reporting purposes.
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Holders of the Notes who may be subject to the tax treatment under the FRS 39 Circular should consult their
own accounting and tax advisers regarding the Singapore income tax consequences of their acquisition,
holding or disposal of the Notes.

Estate Duty

Singapore estate duty has been abolished with respect to al deaths occurring on or after 15th February, 2008.

Hong Kong Taxation

Withholding Tax

Under existing Hong Kong law, payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes may be made
without withholding for or on account of any Hong Kong taxes. In addition, no tax is withheld in Hong Kong
in respect of any gains arising from resale of the Notes.

Profits Tax

Profits tax is charged on every person carrying on a trade, profession or businessin Hong Kong in respect of
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong from such trade, profession or business.

Under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112) of Hong Kong asit is currently applied, interest on the Notes
will be subject to Hong Kong profits tax where such interest has a Hong Kong source and is received by or
accrued to:

) afinancial institution (as defined in the Inland Revenue Ordinance) and such interest arises through or
from the carrying on by the financial institution of its business in Hong Kong, notwithstanding that the
moneys in respect of which the interest is received or accrues are made available outside Hong Kong;

(i)  acorporation carrying on a trade, profession or business in Hong Kong and such interest is derived
from Hong Kong; or

(iif)  aperson, other than a corporation, carrying on a trade, profession or business in Hong Kong and such
interest is derived from Hong Kong and isin respect of the funds of the trade, profession or business.

In addition, Hong Kong profits tax may be charged on profits arising on the sale, disposal or redemption of
the Notes where the sale, disposal or redemption is or forms part of a trade, profession or business carried on
in Hong Kong.

The Proposed Financial TransactionsTax ("FTT")

On 14th February, 2013, the European Commission published the Commission’s Proposal for a Directive for
acommon FTT in the participating Member States.

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scope and could apply to certain dealings in the Notes (including
secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances. The issuance and subscription of Notes should,
however, be exempt.

Under the Commission’s Proposal, the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within and
outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in Notes where at
least one party is afinancia institution, and at |east one party is established in a participating Member State. A
financial institution may be, or be deemed to be, “established” in a participating Member State in a broad
range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a person established in a participating Member State
or (b) where the financial instrument which is subject to the dealingsis issued in a participating Member State.

However, the proposed FTT remains subject to negotiation between the participating Member States . It may
therefore be altered prior to any implementation, the timing of which remains unclear. Additional EU Member
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States may decide to participate. Prospective holders of the Notes are advised to seek their own professional
adviceinrelationtothe FTT.

Investors who are in any doubt as to their position or would like to know more should consult their
professional advisers.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

Summary of Dealer Agreement

Subject to the terms and the conditions contained in an amended and restated dealer agreement dated 7th
September, 2015, as amended by a supplemental dealer agreement dated 7th September, 2016 (together, the
“Dealer Agreement”) between the I ssuers, the Guarantor, the Permanent Dealers and the Arrangers, the Notes
will be offered on a continuous basis by an Issuer to the Permanent Dealers. However, each of the Issuers has
reserved the right to sell Notes directly on its own behalf to Dealers that are not Permanent Dealers. The
Notes may be resold at prevailing market prices, or at prices related thereto, at the time of such resale, as
determined by the relevant Dealer. The Notes may also be sold by an Issuer through the Dealers, acting as
agents of such Issuer. The Dealer Agreement also provides for Notes to be issued in syndicated Tranches that
arejointly and severally underwritten by two or more Dealers.

Each of the Issuers has agreed to reimburse the Arrangers for certain of their expenses incurred in connection
with the establishment of the Programme and the Dealers for certain of their activities in connection with the
Programme. The commissions in respect of an issue of Notes on a syndicated basis will be stated in the
relevant Final Terms.

The Issuers have agreed to indemnify the Dealers against certain liabilities in connection with the offer and
sale of the Notes. The Dealer Agreement entitles the Dealers to terminate any agreement that they make to
subscribe Notesin certain circumstances prior to payment for such Notes being made to the relevant Issuer.

Selling Restrictions
Japan

Notes issued by Mitsui & Co.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of
Japan (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended; the “Financial Instruments and Exchange Law”) and are subject to
the Special Taxation Measures Law. Accordingly, each Dealer has represented and agreed that (i) it has not,
directly or indirectly, offered or sold and will not, directly or indirectly, offer or sell, the Notes in Japan or to
any person resident in Japan for Japanese securities law purposes (including any corporation or other entity
organised under the laws of Japan), except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of,
and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and any other applicable
laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan; and (ii) it (a) has not, directly or indirectly, offered or
sold any of the Notes to, or for the benefit of, any person other than a Gross Recipient (as hereinafter
defined), and (b) will not, directly or indirectly, offer or sell any of the Notes, (x) as part of its initial
distribution, to, or for the benefit of, any person other than a Gross Recipient, and (y) otherwise until 40 days
after the date of issue, to, or for the benefit of, any individual resident of Japan or Japanese corporation for
Japanese tax purposes (except for a Japanese financial institution, designated in Article 3-2-2, paragraph 28 of
the Cabinet Order) that will hold Notes for its own proprietary account (a “Designated Financial Institution”)
and an individual resident of Japan or a Japanese corporation whose receipt of interest on the Notes will be
made through a payment handling agent in Japan as defined in Article 2-2, paragraph 2 of the Cabinet Order
relating to Article 3-3 of the Special Taxation Measures Law (an “Article 3-3 Japanese Resident”)). A “Gross
Recipient” asused in (ii) above means (a) a beneficial owner that is, for Japanese tax purposes, neither (x) an
individual resident of Japan or a Japanese corporation, nor (y) an individual non-resident of Japan or a non-
Japanese corporation that in either case is a party having a special relationship with Mitsui & Co. as described
in Article 6, paragraph 4 of the Special Taxation Measures Law, (b) a Designated Financial Institution, or (c)
an Article 3-3 Japanese Resident.
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Notes issued by Mitsui Asia.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law.
Accordingly, each Dealer has represented and agreed that it has not, directly or indirectly, offered or sold and
will not, directly or indirectly, offer or sell, the Notes in Japan or to any person resident in Japan for Japanese
securities law purposes (including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan), except
pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial
guidelines of Japan.

United Sates

D

@)

The Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and the
Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit
of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under
the Securities Act.

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will
be required to represent and agree that it will only offer, sell or deliver Notes in accordance with
Regulation S under the Securities Act and has not and will not offer, sell or deliver the Notes of any
identifiable Tranche within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, (i) as
part of their distribution at any time and (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the completion of the
distribution of such Tranche as determined and certified by the relevant Dealer, in the case of a non-
syndicated issue, or the lead manager, in the case of a syndicated issue, and that, at or prior to
confirmation of sale of Notes, it will have sent to each distributor, dealer or person receiving a selling
concession, fee or other remuneration that purchases Notes from it during the distribution compliance
period a confirmation or notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sales of the Notes within the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons. Terms used in this paragraph have
the meaning given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering, an offer or sale of Notes within the
United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration
reguirements of the Securities Act.

Each Dealer has also represented and agreed (and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme
will be required to represent and agree) that it, its affiliates or any persons acting on its or their behal f
have not engaged and will not engage in any directed selling efforts with respect to any Note, and it
and they have complied and will comply with the offering restrictions requirement of Regulation S
under the Securities Act.

Notesin bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered
within the United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions
permitted by U.S. Treasury Regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to
them by the Internal Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.

In respect of Notes in bearer form that are expressed in the applicable Final Terms to be subject to the
C Rules, the following applies:

In addition, under U.S. Treas. Reg. 8§1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(C) (the “C Rules’), the Notes must be
issued and delivered outside the United States and its possessions in connection with their
original issue. Each Deadler represents that it has not offered, sold or delivered, and agrees that it
will not offer, sell or deliver, directly or indirectly, Notes within the United States or its
possessions in connection with their original issue. Further, in connection with the original issue
of Notes, each Deadler represents that is has not communicated, and agrees that it will not
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communicate, directly or indirectly, with a prospective purchaser if either of such Dealer or
such purchaser is within the United States or its possessions or otherwise involve such Dealer’'s
U.S. office in the offer or sale of Notes.

Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the Internal Revenue Code and
regulations thereunder, including the C Rules.

In respect of Notes in bearer form that are expressed in the applicable Final Terms to be subject to the
D Rules, the following applies:

In addition to the foregoing:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

except to the extent permitted under U.S. Treas. Reg. Section 1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D) (the “D
Rules’), each Dedler (a) has represented that it has not offered or sold, and agrees that during
the restricted period it will not offer or sell, Notes in bearer form to a person who is within the
United States or its possessions or to a United States person, and (b) has represented that it has
not delivered and agrees that it will not deliver within the United States or its possessions
definitive Notes in bearer form that are sold during the restricted period,;

each Dealer has represented that it has and agrees that throughout the restricted period it will
have in effect procedures reasonably designed to ensure that its employees or agents who are
directly engaged in selling Notes are aware that such Notes may not be offered, sold or
delivered during the restricted period to a person who is within the United States or its
possessions or to a United States person, except as permitted by the D Rules;

if it is a United States person, each Dealer has represented that it is acquiring the Notes for
purposes of resale in connection with their original issuance and if it retains Notes for its own
account, it will only do so in accordance with the requirements of U.S. Treas. Reg. Section
1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D)(6); and

with respect to each affiliate that acquires Notes from a Dealer for the purpose of offering or
selling such Notes during the restricted period, such Dealer repeats and confirms that
representations and agreements contained in sub-clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) on such affiliate’s
behalf.

Terms used in this paragraph has the meaning given to them by the Internal Revenue Code and
regulations thereunder, including the D Rules.

European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus
Directive (each, a “Relevant Member State”), each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that with effect from and
including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State it has not
made and will not make an offer of Notes which have a minimum denomination of less than €100,000 (or
equivalent in another currency) except that it may make an offer of such Notes at any time to any legal entity
which isaqualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression “Prospectus Directive” means Directive 2003/71/EC (as
amended, including by Directive 2010/73/EU), and includes any relevant implementing measure in the
Relevant Member State.

United Kingdom
Each Dealer has represented and agreed that:
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(i) in relation to any Notes which have a maturity of less than one year, (a) it is a person whose ordinary
activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent)
for the purposes of its business and (b) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes
other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or
disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or who it is
reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for
the purposes of their businesses where the issue of the Notes would otherwise congtitute a
contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA by the relevant I ssuer;

(if) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of
Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Notes in
circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer or, where applicable,
the Guarantor; and

(iii) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything
done by it in relation to such Notesin, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Singapore

This Offering Circular has not been and will not be registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of
Singapore. Accordingly, each Dedler has represented and agreed that this Offering Circular and any other
document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the
Notes will not be circulated or distributed, nor may the Notes be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an
invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to personsin Singapore other than (i) to
an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the
“SFA"), (ii) to arelevant person pursuant to Section 275(1), or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and
in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275, of the SFA, or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in
accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

This Offering Circular has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore.
Accordingly, this Offering Circular and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or
invitation for subscription or purchase, of Notes may not be circulated or distributed, nor may Notes be
offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or
indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an ingtitutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA, (ii)
to arelevant person pursuant to Section 275(1), or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance
with the conditions specified in Section 275, of the SFA, or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with
the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the Notes are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by arelevant person which is:

(@  a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole
business of which isto hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more
individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or

(b)  atrust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and
each beneficiary of thetrust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

“securities’ (as defined in Section 239(1) of the SFA) of that corporation or the beneficiaries' rights and
interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that corporation or
that trust has acquired the Notes pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA except:

(1) to an ingtitutional investor or to a relevant person defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA, or to any
person arising from an offer referred to in Section 275(1A) or Section 276(4)(i)(B) of the SFA;

(2)  whereno consideration is or will be given for the transfer;
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(3)  wherethetransfer is by operation of law;
(4)  asspecifiedin Section 276(7) of the SFA; or

(5) as specified in Regulation 32 of the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and
Debentures) Regulations 2005 of Singapore.

People’ s Republic of China

Each Dedler has represented, warranted and agreed that the Notes are not being offered or sold and may not
be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in the People's Republic of China (for such purposes, not including
Hong Kong and Macau Specia Administrative Regions or Taiwan), except as permitted by the securities laws
of the People’s Republic of China.

Hong Kong

Each Dealer has represented and agreed that (i) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell in Hong
Kong, by means of any document, any Notes except for Notes which are a “structured product” as defined in
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong other than (a) to “professional investors’ as
defined in the Securities and Futures (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (and any rules
made under that Ordinance; or (b) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a
“prospectus’ as defined in the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do not constitute an
offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance; and (ii) it has not issued or had in its possession for
the purposes of issue, and will not issue or have in its possession for the purposes of issue, whether in Hong
Kong or elsewhere, any advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Notes, which is directed at, or
the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if permitted to do
so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to the Notes which are or are intended to
be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “professiona investors’ as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and any rules made under that Ordinance.

Australia

No prospectus or other disclosure document (as defined in the Corporations Act 2001 of Australia) in relation
to the programme or any debt instruments has been or will be lodged with the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission (“ASIC"). Each Dealer represents and agrees, and each further Dealer appointed
under the programme will be required to represent and agree, that it: (a) has not offered, and will not offer for
issue or sale and has not invited, and will not invite applications, for issue, or offers to purchase, the debt
instruments in Australia (including an offer or invitation which is received by a person in Australia); and (b)
has not distributed or published, and will not distribute or publish, any draft, preliminary or definitive
information memorandum, advertissment or other offering material relating to the debt instrument in
Australia, unless (i) the aggregate consideration payable by each offeree or invitee is at least AUD 500,000
(or its equivalent in other currencies, but disregarding moneys lent by the offeror or its associates) or the offer
or invitation otherwise does not require disclosure to investors in accordance with Part 6D.2 or 7.9 of the
Corporations Act, (ii) the offer or invitation does not constitute an offer to a “retail client” as defined for the
purposes of section 761G of the Corporations Act, (iii) such action complies with all applicable laws,
regulations and directives, and (iv) such action does not require any document to be lodged with ASIC or any
other regulatory authority in Australia.

South Africa

Each Dedler has represented, warranted and agreed that it will not make an “offer to the public” (as such
expression is defined in the South African Companies Act, 2008 (the “SA Companies Act”) and which
expression includes any section of the public) of Notes (whether for subscription, purchase or sal€) in South
Africa. Offers of Notes by Dealersin South Africa may be made pursuant to section 96 of the SA Companies
Act which section provides for offers that are not deemed to be “offers to the public”.
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This Offering Circular does not, nor isit intended to, constitute a prospectus prepared and registered under the
SA Companies Act.

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to accept deposits from the “general public” in terms of the
South African Banks Act, 1990.

Information made available in this Offering Circular should not be considered as “advice” as defined in the
Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act, 2002.

The Russian Federation

Each Dedler has represented, warranted and agreed that the Notes will not be offered, transferred or sold as
part of their initial distribution or at any time thereafter to or for the benefit of any persons (including legal
entities) resident, incorporated, established or having their usual residence in the Russian Federation or to any
person located within the territory of the Russian Federation unless and to the extent otherwise permitted
under Russian law.

General

These selling restrictions may be modified by the agreement of the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers
following achangein arelevant law, regulation or directive. Any such modification will be set out in the Final
Termsissued in respect of the issue of Notes to which it relates or in a supplement to this Offering Circular.

No action has been taken in any jurisdiction that would permit a public offering of any of the Notes, or
possession or distribution of the Offering Circular or any other offering material or any Final Terms, in any
country or jurisdiction where action for that purposeis required.

Each Dedler has agreed that it will, to the best of its knowledge, comply with (and will obtain any consent,
approval or permission required to be obtained by it by) all relevant laws, regulations and directives in each
jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Notes or has in its possession or distributes the
Offering Circular, any other offering material or any Final Terms and neither the Issuers, the Guarantor nor
any other Dealer shall have responsibility therefor.

Some of the Dealers and their affiliates have engaged in, and may in the future engage in, investment banking
and other commercial dealings in the ordinary course of business with the Issuers, the Guarantor or their
affiliates. They have received, or may in the future receive, customary fees and commissions for these
transactions.

In addition, in the ordinary course of their business activities, the Dealers and their affiliates may make or
hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative
securities) and financia instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their
customers. Such investments and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the I ssuers,
the Guarantor or their affiliates. Certain of the Dealers or their affiliates that have a lending relationship with
the Issuer and/or the Guarantor routinely hedge their credit exposure to the Issuer and/or the Guarantor
consistent with their customary risk management policies. Typically, such Dealers and their affiliates would
hedge such exposure by entering into transactions which consist of either the purchase of credit default swaps
or the creation of short positions in the Issuer’s and/or Guarantor’s securities, including potentially the Notes.
Any such short positions could adversely affect future trading prices of the Notes. The Deders and their
affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views
in respect of such securities or financia instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire,
long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.
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FORM OF FINAL TERMS

Final Terms

MITSUL&CO.

MITSUI & CO.,LTD.
MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.
U.S.$5,000,000,000
Euro M edium Term Note Programme

Guaranteed (in respect of Notesissued by Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd.)
by Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

SERIES NO: [ |
TRANCHE NO: | ]
[Brief Description and Amount of Notes]
Issue Price: [ ] per cent.

[Dealer(s)]

Final Terms dated [e]
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[Mitsui & Co., Ltd./Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd.]

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
[Guaranteed by Mitsui & Co., Ltd.]
under the U.S.$5,000,000,000 Euro M edium Ter m Note Programme

PART A—CONTRACTUAL TERMS

[The Notes are not listed and as such the infor mation contained in these Final Termsis not required to
comply with the Financial Conduct Authority’s Listing Rules and has not been approved or reviewed
by the UK Listing Authority.] [Includein the case of unlisted Notes.]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions (the
“Conditions’) set forth in the Offering Circular dated [e] [and the supplemental Offering Circular dated [e]]
which [together] constitute]s] listing particulars for the purposes of Chapter 4 of the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules. This document constitutes the final terms of the Notes described herein and must
be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular [as so supplemented]. [The Offering Circular [and the
supplemental Offering Circular] [ig] [are] available for viewing at [address] during normal business hours
[and] [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].]

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was
issued under an offering circular/a prospectus with an earlier date]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions (the
“Conditions’) set forth in the Offering Circular dated [original date] [and the supplemental Offering Circular
dated [e]] incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular dated [current date] and which are attached
hereto. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein and must be read in
conjunction with the Offering Circular dated [current date] [and the supplemental Offering Circular dated
[®]], which [together] constitute[s] listing particulars for the purposes of Chapter 4 of the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules. [The Offering Circular[s] [and the supplemental Offering Circular[s]] are available
for viewing at [address] during normal business hours [and] [website] and copies may be obtained from
[address]].
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10

11

12

13

(i) Issuer:

(i) [Guarantor:]
(i) Series Number:

(if) [Tranche Number:

Specified Currency or Currencies:

Aggregate Nominal Amount of Notes
[admitted to trading]:

(i) Series:
(if) [Tranche:

Issue Price:

(i) Specified Denominations

(if) Calculation Amount

(i) Settlement Date:

(i1) [Interest Commencement Date:
Maturity Date:

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment

Bagis:

Investor Put/lIssuer Call Option:

[Mitsui & Co., Ltd.]
[Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd.]

[Mitsui & Co., Ltd.]
[e]
[e]]

[e]

[e]
[e]]

[®] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus
accrued interest from [e]]

[e]

[e]

[e]

[®]/[ Settlement Date]/[Not applicable]
[e]

[[®] per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[duration][currency][LIBOR/EURIBOR/TIBOR/
Shibor/BBSW/M osPrimeRate/J BAR/SOR/SIBOR/
CNH HIBOR]] +/- [®] per cent. Floating Rate]

[Zero Coupon]

(further particulars specified below)
[Redemption at par]

[Instal ment]

[e]

[Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

[Date [board] approval for issuance of Notes [e] [and [e], respectively]]

[and Guarantee] obtained:

PROVISIONSRELATING TO INTEREST (IFANY) PAYABLE

14

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

[Applicable/Not Applicable]



(i) Rate[(9)] of Interest: [®] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/semi-
annually/quarterly/monthly] in arrear]

(i) Interest Payment Date(s): [®] in each year [adjusted in accordance with
[®]]/[not adjusted]
(iii) Fixed Coupon Amount [(s)]: [®] per Calculation Amount
(iv) Broken Amount(s): [®] per Calculation Amount payable [in/on] [e]
(v) Day Count Fraction (Condition 4(h)): [30/360/Actual/Actua (ICMA/ISDA)/[e]]
(vi) Interest Determination Date(s) [e] in each year.
(Condition 4(h)):

(vii) Other terms relating to the method of [Not Applicable]/[e]]
calculating interest for Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(i) Interest Period(s): [e]

(i) Specified Interest Payment Dates: [e]

(i) Interest Period Date; [Not Applicable]/ [[ ] in each year[, subject to

adjustment in accordance with the Business Day
Convention set out in (iv) below/, not subject to any
adjustment|[, as the Business Day Convention in (iv)
below is specified to be Not Applicable]]

(iv) Business Day Convention: [Floating Rate Business Day Convention/Following
Business Day Convention/Modified Following
Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day
Convention/[ e]]

(v) Business Centre(s): [o]

(vi) Manner in which the Rate(s) of Interest [Screen Rate Determination/| SDA
is/are to be determined: Determination/[e]]

(vii) Reference Banks: [Not Applicable/Applicable]

[e]
(viii) Party responsible for calculating the [e]
Rate(s) of Interest and/or Interest
Amount(s) (if not the Calculation
Agent):
(ix) Screen Rate Determination (Condition
4(b)(iii)(B)):

- Reference Rate: [[duration][currency][LIBOR/EURIBOR/TIBOR/
Shibor/BBSW/M osPrimeRate/JIBAR/SOR/SIBOR/
CNH HIBOR]]

- Interest Determination Date(s): [e]

- Relevant Screen Page: [e]

- Relevant Time (for other than LIBOR, [e][am/pm] [e] time
EURIBOR or CNH HIBOR):
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16

- Location for the Reference Banks (for
other than LIBOR, EURIBOR or CNH
HIBOR):

(x) ISDA Determination
A(b)(iii)(A)):

- Floating Rate Option:

(Condition

- Designated Maturity:

- Reset Date:

(xi) Margin(s):

(xii) Minimum Rate of Interest:

(xiii) Maximum Rate of Interest:

(xiv) Day Count Fraction (Condition 4(h)):

(xv) Fal  back  provisions, rounding
provisions, denominator and any other
terms relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating Rate
Notes, if different from those set out in
the Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions
(i) Amortisation Yield (Condition 5(d)):
(i) Day Count Fraction (Condition 4(h)):

(i) Any other formula/basis of determining
amount payable:

PROVISIONSRELATING TO REDEMPTION

17

18

Issuer Call Option
(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(if) Optional Redemption Amount(s) of each
Note and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount(s):

(iii) If redeemablein part:

(& Minimum Optiona Redemption
Amount:

(b) Maximum Optiona Redemption
Amount:

(iv) Notice period:
Investor Put Option
(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(ii) Optional Redemption Amount(s) of each
Note and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount(s):
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[principal financia centre of the currency of the

relevant currency]|other]

[e]
[e]
[e]
[+/-] [®] per cent. per annum

[®] per cent. per annum

[®] per cent. per annum
[e]
[o]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[e] per cent. per annum
[e]
[e]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[e]
[e] per Calculation Amount

[e] per Calculation Amount

[e] per Calculation Amount

[o]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[e]
[e] per Calculation Amount



(iii) Notice period: [o]
19 Final Redemption Amount of each Note [e] per Calculation Amount
20 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount(s) per Calculation [e] per Calculation Amount
Amount payable on redemption for taxation

reasons (Condition 5(b)) or on an event of

default (Condition 9) and/or other early

redemption and/or the method of calculating

the same (if required or if different from that

set out in the Conditions):

GENERAL PROVISIONSAPPLICABLE TO THE NOTES
21 Form of Notes: [Bearer Notes)

[temporary Global Note exchangeable for a
permanent Global Note which is exchangeable for
definitive Notesin bearer form in the circumstances
specified in the permanent Global Note ]

[temporary Global Note exchangeable for definitive
Notes in bearer form on [e] days’ notice]

[permanent Global Note exchangeable for definitive
Notes in bearer form in the circumstances specified
in the permanent Global Note]

[Registered Notes]

[Global Certificate exchangeable for definitive
Certificates representing Registered Notesin the
limited circumstances specified in the Global
Certificate]

22 Financial Centre(s) (Condition 6(h)) or other [Not Applicable/Applicable]/[e]
special provisions relating to payment dates:

23 Details relating to Instalment Notes: [NotApplicable/Applicable]/[e]
Instalment Amount and Instalment Date on
which each payment is to be made:

PURPOSE OF FINAL TERM S

These Fina Terms comprise the final terms required to have admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing
Authority and to trading to the PSM of the London Stock Exchange plc the issue of Notes described herein
pursuant to the U.S.$5,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme of Mitsui & Co., Ltd. and Mitsui &
Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd. [guaranteed by Mitsui & Co., Ltd.]

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

By:

Duly authorised
[Signed on behalf of the Guarantor:
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By:

Duly authorised
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PART B-OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING
Q) Listing: [London/PSM/None]
The PSM is not aregulated market.
(i)  Admission to trading: [Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to trading

[on the Professional Securities Market of the London Stock
Exchange] with effect from[e].]

(iii) Estimate of total expenses [e]
related to admission to
trading:

RATINGS

Ratings: The Notes to be issued have been rated:

[INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONSINVOLVED IN THE [I SSUE/OFFER]

[®] “Save as discussed in [“ Subscription and Sale€’], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the
offer of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.”]

ESTIMATED TOTAL EXPENSES
[Estimated total expenses: [e]

[FIXED RATE NOTESONLY - YIELD

Indication of yield: [e]
Theyield is calculated at the Settlement Date on the basis of the Issue
Price. It isnot an indication of future yield.]

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

ISIN Code: [o]
Common Code: [e]

Any clearing system(s) other than [Not Applicable]/[e]
Euroclear Bank SA.J/N.V. and

Clearstream Banking, S.A. and the

relevant identification number(s):

Additional Paying Agent(s) (if [ ]
any):
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7. GENERAL

Applicable TEFRA exemption [C Rules/D Rules/Not Applicable]

101



GENERAL INFORMATION

The listing of the Notes on the Officia List and admission to trading on the Market will be expressed
as a percentage of their nominal amount (exclusive of accrued interest). It is expected that each
Tranche of Notes which is to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the Market will be
admitted separately as and when issued, subject only to the issue of a temporary or permanent Global
Note or a Global Certificate initially representing the Notes of each Tranche. The listing of the
Programme in respect of Notes is expected to be granted on or around 10th September, 2016. Prior to
listing and admission to trading, however, dealings will be permitted by the London Stock Exchangein
accordance with its rules. Transactions on the Market will normally be effected for delivery on the
third working day after the day of the transaction. However, unlisted Notes may be issued pursuant to
the Programme.

Each of Mitsui & Co. and Mitsui Asia has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and
authorisations in Japan and Singapore, respectively, in connection with the issue and performance of
the Notes. The update of the Programme was authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of
Mitsui Asia passed on 7th September, 2016. The accession to the Programme and giving of the
Guarantee was authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of Mitsui & Co. passed on 30th
October, 2002. No authorisation procedures are required with respect to Mitsui & Co. under Japanese
law for the update of the Programme, however, the issue of each Tranche of Notes by Mitsui & Co.
requires separate authorisation.

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuers and their
respective consolidated subsidiaries taken as a whole, or the Guarantor and its consolidated
subsidiaries taken as a whole, since the date of their respective last published audited financial
statements being 31st March, 2016 and there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of
each of the Issuers or the Guarantor, since the date of their respective last published audited financial
statements being 31st March, 2016.

Save as disclosed on page 18 to 19 of the section of this Offering Circular entitled “Risk Factors”
under the heading “Restrictions under environmental laws and regulations may have a significant
impact on Mitsui’s business, operating results and financial condition” in relation to the oil spill
incident in the Gulf of Mexico and the investigation and civil action concerning Coronet discussed
therein, there are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings that may have, or have had during
the 12 months preceding the date of this Offering Circular, significant effects on the financial position
or profitability of, in the case of each Issuer, that Issuer, the Guarantor (in the case of Guaranteed
Notes) and their respective subsidiaries as a whole, and none of the Issuers and the Guarantor is aware
that any such proceedings are pending or threatened.

Each Note in bearer form and any Receipt, Coupon and Talon relating thereto with an original maturity
of more than one year will bear the following legend:

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON AS DEFINED IN THE UNITED STATES INTERNAL
REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED (THE “INTERNAL REVENUE CODE") WHO
HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED
STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS
165() AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.”

Each Note and Coupon issued by Mitsui & Co. will bear the following legend:
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“INTEREST PAYMENTS ON THIS SECURITY WILL BE SUBJECT TO JAPANESE
WITHHOLDING TAX UNLESS THE HOLDER ESTABLISHES THAT THE SECURITY ISHELD
BY OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A HOLDER THAT IS NOT AN INDIVIDUAL RESIDENT OF
JAPAN OR A JAPANESE CORPORATION OR AN INDIVIDUAL NON-RESIDENT OF JAPAN OR
A NON-JAPANESE CORPORATION THAT IS A PERSON HAVING A SPECIAL RELATIONSHIP
WITH THE ISSUER AS DESCRIBED IN ARTICLE 6, PARAGRAPH 4 OF THE SPECIAL
TAXATION MEASURES LAW OF JAPAN (LAW No. 26 of 1957, AS AMENDED) (THE
“SPECIAL TAXATION MEASURES LAW") (A “SPECIALLY-RELATED PERSON OF THE
ISSUER”) FOR JAPANESE TAX PURPOSES OR IS A DESIGNATED FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
OR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BUSINESS OPERATOR, DESCRIBED IN ARTICLE 6,
PARAGRAPH 9 OF THE SPECIAL TAXATION MEASURES LAW WHICH COMPLIES WITH
THE REQUIREMENT FOR TAX EXEMPTION UNDER THAT PARAGRAPH.

INTEREST PAYMENTS ON THIS SECURITY TO AN INDIVIDUAL RESIDENT OF JAPAN OR A
JAPANESE CORPORATION (OTHER THAN A DESIGNATED JAPANESE FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION DESCRIBED IN THE PRECEDING PARAGRAPH) OR TO AN INDIVIDUAL
NON-RESIDENT OF JAPAN OR A NON-JAPANESE CORPORATION THAT IS A SPECIALLY-
RELATED PERSON OF THE ISSUER (EXCEPT INTEREST THAT IS PAID TO A PUBLIC
CORPORATION, A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION OR A FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BUSINESS
OPERATOR, ETC. THROUGH A JAPANESE PAYMENT HANDLING AGENT AS PROVIDED IN
ARTICLE 3-3, PARAGRAPH 6 OF THE SPECIAL TAXATION MEASURE LAW IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENT FOR TAX EXEMPTION UNDER THAT
PARAGRAPH) WILL BE SUBJECT TO DEDUCTION IN RESPECT OF JAPANESE INCOME
TAX AT A RATE OF 15 PER CENT. (FOR THE PERIOD TO AND INCLUDING 31ST
DECEMBER, 2037, AN ADDITIONAL 0.315 PER CENT. WILL BE ADDED THERETO AS
SPECIAL INCOME TAX FOR RECONSTRUCTION) ON THEAMOUNT OF SUCH INTEREST.

HOWEVER, INTEREST ON THIS SECURITY ISSUED BY THE ISSUER OF WHICH THE
AMOUNT OF INTEREST IS TO BE CALCULATED BY REFERENCE TO CERTAIN INDEXES
(AS PRESCRIBED UNDER THE CABINET ORDER RELATING TO ARTICLE 6, PARAGRAPH 4
OF THE SPECIAL TAXATION MEASURES LAW) RELATING TO THE ISSUER OR A
SPECIALLY-RELATED PERSON OF THE ISSUER WILL BE SUBJECT TO THE WITHHOLDING
TAX EVEN IF PAID TO AN INDIVIDUAL NON-RESIDENT OF JAPAN OR A NON-JAPANESE
CORPORATION THAT ISNOT A SPECIALLY-RELATED PERSON OF THE ISSUER.”

Each Note, Receipt, Coupon and Talon issued by Mitsui Asia where such Notes are issued as
“Qualifying Debt Securities” for the purpose of Income Tax Act, Chapter 134 of Singapore will bear
the following legend:

“Where interest, discount income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or break cost is derived from
any of the Notes by any person who (i) is not resident in Singapore and (ii) carries on any operationsin
Singapore through a permanent establishment in Singapore, the tax exemption available for qualifying
debt securities (subject to certain conditions) under the Income Tax Act, Chapter 134 of Singapore (the
“Income Tax Act”), shall not apply if such person acquires such Notes using the funds and profits of
such person’s operations through a permanent establishment in Singapore. Any person whose interest,
discount income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or break cost derived from the Notes is not
exempt from tax (including for the reasons described above) shall include such income in a return of
income made under the Income Tax Act.”

Each Note, Certificate, Receipt, Coupon and Talon will bear the following legend:

103



10.

THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED
STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, ASAMENDED (THE “SECURITIESACT”) AND MAY NOT
BE OFFERED, SOLD OR DELIVERED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR ITS POSSESSIONS
OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS UNLESS AN EXEMPTION
FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIESACT ISAVAILABLE.

Notes have been accepted for clearance through the ICSDs. The common code, the International
Securities Identification Number (ISIN) and (where applicable) the identification number for any other
Relevant Clearing System for each Series of Notes will be set out in the relevant Final Terms. The
address of Euroclear is 1, Boulevard du Roi Albert 11, B-1210 Brussels, Belgium and the address of
Clearstream, Luxembourg is 42, Avenue JF Kennedy L-1855 Luxembourg. The address of any
aternative clearing system will be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The issue price and the amount of the relevant Notes will be determined, before filing of the relevant
Final Term of each Tranche, based on then prevailing market conditions. The Issuers do not intend to
provide any post-issuance information in relation to any issues of Notes.

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during usual business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) for so long as Notes may be issued under this
Offering Circular at the registered office of Mitsui & Co. and the offices of Citibank, N.A., London
Branch, as Issuing and Principal Paying Agent:

0) the Amended and Restated Agency Agreement dated 7th September, 2016 (which includes the
forms of the Global Notes, the Globa Certificates, the Definitive Notes, the Definitive
Certificates, the Coupons, the Receipts and the Talons) (as further amended or supplemented);

(ii)  the Deed of Covenant of each Issuer;
(iif)  the constitutive documents (with English trandations, if not in English) of each of the I ssuers;

(iv)  the published audited consolidated annual accounts of Mitsui & Co. and its consolidated
subsidiaries in English for the years ended 31st March, 2015 and 2016;

(v)  thepublished annual report and audited non-consolidated accounts of Mitsui Asiain English for
the years ended 31st March, 2015 and 2016;

(vi) each set of Final Terms for Notes that are listed on the Officia List of the UK Listing Authority
and admitted to trading on the Market or any other stock exchange; and

(vii) acopy of the Offering Circular together with any amendment or supplement thereto.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC, (Independent Auditors) (authorised and regulated by the Financial
Services Agency (Japan)), has audited, and rendered unqualified reports on, the consolidated financial
statements of Mitsui & Co. for the years ended 31st March, 2015 and 2016.

Deloitte & Touche LLP (Independent Auditors) (authorised and regulated by The Accounting and
Corporate Regulatory Authority in Singapore) has audited, and rendered unqualified audit reports on,
the financial statements of Mitsui Asiafor the years ended 31st March, 2015 and 2016.
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INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSOF MITSUI ASIA

The audited annual financial statements of Mitsui Asia are prepared and presented in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations of Financial Reporting Standards (“ Singapore
GAAP”) and materia differences exist between Singapore GAAP and IFRS which might be material to the
financial information herein. Prospective investors must make their own assessment of any such differences.
The audited financia statements of Mitsui Asia have been audited in accordance with Singapore Standards on
Auditing.

Mitsui Asia Page

Financial Statements of Mitsui Asia as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2016 (including the
audit report related thErEt0) ....... ..o ittt b et e bbbt b ae e F-1

105



MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The directors present their statement together with the audited financial statements of the company for the fine
year ended March 31, 2016.

In the opinion of the directors, the financial statements of the company as set out on a pages 5 to 40 are drawr
as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2016 and of the finar
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the company for the financial year then ended and at the d
this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts when th
due.

1 DIRECTORS
The directors of the company in office at the date of this statement are:

Mr Takakazu Uchida

Mr Omori Hiroshi

Mr Takashi Manabe

Mr Nagano Naoki (Appointed on April 6, 2015)

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS
BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefits by means ¢
acquisition of shares or debentures in the company or any other body corporate.

3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors of the company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share ce
and debentures of the company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ shareho
kept by the company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows:

At beginning

of year or date
Ultimate holding company of appointment, At end
- Mitsui & Co., Ltd if later of year
Ordinary shares (Registered in name of director)
Mr Takakazu Uchida 8,107 12,073
Mr Omori Hiroshi 5,751 6,003

Mr Nagano Naoki 4,355 5,025
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

4 SHARE OPTIONS
(a) Options to take up unissued shares
During the financial year, no options to take up unissued shares of the company was granted.
(b) Options exercised
During the financial year, there were no shares of the company issued by virtue of the exercise of an

option to take up unissued shares.

(¢) Unissued shares under option

At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the company under options.

5 AUDITORS

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

e

Mr Takakazu Uchida

A K

Mr Takashi Manabe

Tuly 15, 2016
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D I i tt
e o I e [ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Unique Entity No. TO8LLO721A

6 Shenton Way, QUE Downtown 2
#33-00

Singapore 068809

Tel: +65 6224 8288
Fax: +65 6538 6166
www,deloitte.com/sg

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd. (the
“company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the
company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information as set out on pages 5 to 40. :

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards,
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial
statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Deloitte & Touche LLP (Unique Entity No. TOBLLO721A) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore
under the Limited Liability Partnerships Act (Chapter 163A)
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of the company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position

of the company as at March 31, 2016 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
company for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Defoith % Dol L

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

July 15, 2016
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
March 31, 2016

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7
Loan receivables 8
Derivative financial instruments 9
Other receivables and prepayments 10
Total current assets

Non-current assets

Loan receivables 8
Other asset 11
Equipment 12

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Loan payables 13
Derivative financial instruments 9
Other payables 14

Income tax payable
Total current liabilities

Non-current liability

Loan payables 13
Total non-current liability

Capital and reserves

Issued capital 15
Retained earnings

Total equity

Total liabilitiesand equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2016
Uss$

89,471,912
703,896,990
244,006
5,153,784
798,766,692

187,514,505
261,063
6,996
187,782,564

986,549,256

554,134,911
787,374
3,207,738
1,178,869
559,308,892

407,462,512
407,462,512

15,000,000
4,777,852
19,777,852

986,549,256

2015
Uss$

3,787,011
1,032,116,605
2,250,364
5,088,443
1,043,242,423

135,179,558
261,063
10,963

135,451,584

1,178,694,007

706,656,896

2,747,493
654,497
710,058,886

448,612,788
448,612,788

15,000,000
5,022,333
20,022,333

1,178,694,007
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended March 31, 2016

Note 2016 2015
US$ US$
Interest income 16 14,922,856 14,302,040
Interest expense 17 (6,211,564) (6,006,592)
Net interest income 8,711,292 8,295,448
Other operating income 50,250 38,405
Staff costs (636,840) (665,167)
Depreciation (3,967) (6,718)
Other operating expenses 18 (3,055,410) (2,516,983)
Profit beforeincometax 19 5,065,325 5,144,985
Income tax expense 20 (809,806) (632,006)
Profit for the year, representing total
compr ehensiveincomefor the year 4,255,519 4,512,979

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
Year ended March 31, 2016

Note

Balance at April 1, 2014
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Dividend paid 22
Balance at March 31, 2015

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividend paid 22

Balance at March 31, 2016

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Issued Retained
capital earnings Total
US$ US$ uUss$
15,000,000 9,209,354 24,209,354
- 4,512,979 4,512,979
- (8,700,000) (8,700,000)
15,000,000 5,022,333 20,022,333
- 4,255,519 4,255,519
- (4,500,000) (4,500,000)
15,000,000 4.777.,852 19,777,852
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended March 31, 2016

Operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:
Net fair value loss (gain) from derivative financial instruments
Net fair value loss from hedged items in

designated hedge accounting relationship

Depreciation expense

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Loan receivables
Other receivables and prepayments
Derivative financial instruments
Loan payables
Other payables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

Investing activity
Purchases of equipment, representing net cash
used in investing activity

Financing activity
Dividends paid, representing net cash used in
financing activity
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalentsat end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2016
Us$

5,065,325

543,368

126,470
3,967
5,739,130

275,884,668
(65,341)
2,123,894

(193,672,261)
460,245
90,470,335

(285,434)
90,184,901

(4,500,000)

85,684,901
3,787,011
89,471,912

2015
USs$

5,144,985

(2,250,364)

76,570

6,718

2,977,909

488,935,190
(1,335,170)
(235,832)

(479,140,791)
564,024
11,765,330

(1,088,933)
10,676,397

(6,968)

8,700,000)

1,969,429
1,817,582
3,787,011
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES(ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

1 GENERAL

The company (Registration No. 199508683N) is incorporated in Singapore with its principal place of busin
and registered office at 80 Robinson Road, #25-00, Singapore 068898. The financial statements are expr
in United States dollars.

The company is principally engaged in the financing of the operations of the companies in the Mitsui & C
Ltd. group.

The financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2016 were authorised for issue b
Board of Directors on July 15, 2016.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the histor
cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance wit
provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orde
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is di
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which mark
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair v
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a
except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of FR8a%5, and measurements that have

some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in FRS 36 Impairment of Asset

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signif
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities t
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
theasset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - On April 1, 2015, the Company has adopted all
the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS") that are effective from that date and
relevant to its operations. The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not resu
significant changes to the company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts rep
for the current or prior years.

At the date of the authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRSs and amendments to
that are relevant to the company were issued but not effective:

. FRS 109Financial Instruments®

. FRS 115Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

. Amendments to FRS 1 X arificationsto FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
. Amendments to FRS Rresentation of Financial Satement: Disclosure Initiative*

. Amendments to FRS Satement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative?

. Improvements to Financial Reporting Standards (November 2014)

IApplies to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early application permitted.
2Applies to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with early application permitted.
3Applies to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above FRS and the amendments to FRS in f
periods will not have a material impact on the financial statements of the company in the period of tt
initial adoption.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the company’
statement of financial position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
instrument.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument an
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees on points paid or rece
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discol
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. Income
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those final
instruments “at fair value through profit or loss”.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sal
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timefral
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, e:
for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss which are initially measured at
value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets “at fair value thro
profit or loss”, “held-to-maturity investments”, “available-for-sale” financial assets and “loans ani
receivables”. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of financial assets and is determir
the time of initial recognition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and fixed deposits that are readily convertible to a k
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Loans and receivables

Loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an a
market are classified as “loans and receivables”. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair vz
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairt
Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate method, except for short-term receivables v
the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Certain loans are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. Fair v

is determined in the manner described in Note 4. Such loans are designated in hedge accoul
relationships.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicatot
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is obje
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the finan
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference betweel
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the ori
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss dire
for all financial assets with the exception of loan receivables where the carrying amount is reduced thrc
the use of an allowance account. When a loan receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the allowze
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impair
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairmer
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed wh:
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows frorn
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership c
asset to another entity. If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rew
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the company recognises its retained inter
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the company retains substantial
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the company continues to recognis
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the subst:
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an eq
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct is
costs.

Financial liabilities

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently mea
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, with interest expense recognised on an effe
yield basis except for short-term payables where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, and are subsequently meas
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (n
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of
borrowings in accordance with the company’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the company’s obligations
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Derivativefinancial instruments and hedge accounting

The company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate sw
Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 9.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hed
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hel
relationship. The company designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recogr
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transact
or hedges of foreign currency risk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges).

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled witl
12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives and non-derivative
respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. Hedges of fore
exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedc
instrument and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertal
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis
company documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is hic
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

Note 4 contains details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are record
profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that is attribute
to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the he
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in profit or loss in the line of the statement of profit
loss and other comprehensive income relating to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the company revokes the hedging relationship, the hed
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to prof
loss from that date.

Offsetting arrangements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of fina
position when the company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and int
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. A right to se
must be available today rather than being contingent on a future event and must be exercisable by any
counterparties, both in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankrupt

OTHER ASSET - Club membership held by the company is classified as other asset and is stated at
less impairment.

EQUIPMENT - Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumule
impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the str:
line method, on the following bases:

Furniture and fittings - 38% per annum
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of equipment is determined as the differe
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS - At the end of each reporting period, the company
reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount «
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not pos:
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable ar
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allo
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent alloc
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are testec
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value il
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for v
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its car
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amoun
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a reve
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating u
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased cat
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recogr
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the pt
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obliga
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

LEASES - Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantic
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in v
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating |
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recos
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a stre
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in w
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
receivable.
Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effe
interest rate applicable.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charg
as an expense when employees have rendered the services entitling them to the contributions. Payi
made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as the Singapore Central Provident Fund, ar
with as payments to defined contribution plans where the company’s obligations under the plans
equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes iten
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that ar
taxable or tax deductible. The company'’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax la
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities il
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Defe
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deducti
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the tempa
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)

other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting pro

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduc
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is se
or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively €
by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the repo
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax:
authority and the company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they |
to items credited or debited outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly
equity), in which case the tax is also recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive inc
or directly in equity, respectively).

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The financial statements of the
company are measured and presented in United States dollar, which is the currency of the primary econ
environment in which the company operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of the company, transactions in currencies other than the comps
functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. A
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denomin:
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary i
are included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of n
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences aris
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in ¢
comprehensive income. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks
described in the hedge accounting policies above.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, managemer
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and lial
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are ba
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ f
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accou
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pe
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(i)

(ii)

Critical judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements apart from those involving estimations (see below) tf
management has made in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies that ha
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Functional currency
The functional currency of the company has been evaluated based on the guidance to the FRS 21
is determined to be United States dollars. Assessment of the primary and secondary indicators o

FRS 21 was mixed and management has exercised its judgement in concluding that the functi
currency of the company is United States dollars.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the financ
statements within the next financial year are discussed below.

Income tax
The company’s ability to enjoy a concessionary tax rate under Finance and Treasury Centre stat
subject to satisfying compliance to certain terms and conditions. Management is of the view that

company will be able to meet the requirement of the relevant terms and conditions and continu
receive the benefit of such concessionary tax rate.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

Estimation of the fair values of derivative financial instruments and of the changes in fair values of
financial instruments attributabl e to the risks being hedged

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by obtair
market quotes from the various issuers. The company is of the view that the market quotes are ¢
by departments independent of the issuers’ marketing department and that the quotations g
represent the best estimate of the instruments’ fair value. However, due to the instruments not b
actively traded, the realisation of the carrying values is predicated by market conditions at the time
realisation. The inputs and assumptions (such as interest rates, swap rates, foreign currency future
and currency basis spreads etc.) used in valuation models require significant judgements and estirr
Accordingly, actual amounts realised may vary significantly from their estimated fair values.

Further details on the fair value of the derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Notes
and 9.
4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

(a) Categoriesof financial instruments

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period:

2016 2015

US$'000 US$'000
Financial assets
Loan and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 895,757 1,171,545
Loan receivables in designated hedge accounting relationships 86,123 -
Derivative financial instruments 244 2,250
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 955,681 1,149,633
Loan payables in designated hedge accounting relationships 9,124 8,384
Derivative financial instruments 787 -
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4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

(b)

(©

Financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements

For the derivative financial instruments subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or sin
agreements, each agreement between the company and the counterparty allows for net settlem
the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absen
such an election, the derivative financial instruments may be settle on a gross basis, however,
party to the master netting arrangements or similar agreements will have the option to settle all s
amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party. Per the terms of each arrange
or agreement, an event of default includes failure by a party to make payment when due, failure I
party to perform any obligation required by the arrangement or agreement (other than payment
such failure is not remedied after notice of such failure is given the party or bankruptcy.

Financial risk and management policies and objectives

By its nature, the company’s activities are principally related to financial activities for th
Mitsui & Co., Ltd.’s group of companies. These activities expose the company to a variety of financ
risks, comprising mainly market risk (including interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk, ar
liquidity risk.

Risk management at the company is a multi-faceted process with oversight that requires cons
communication, judgement and knowledge of specialised products and markets. The company’s se
management takes an active role in the risk management process.

The company uses a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to market
including forward and swap contracts to hedge a particular risk associated with the loan receivables
payables.

The company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
There has been no change to the company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in wh

manages and measures the risk. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis indi
below.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

The main financial risks that the company is exposed to and how it manages these risks are se
below:

(i)

Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign exchange risk arises from a change in foreign currency exchange rate, which is expe
to have an adverse effect on the company.

The company is engaged in financial activities for the Mitsui & Co., Ltd.’s group of companie:
The borrowings of the company are mainly denominated in US dollars, Japanese Yen, Singaf
dollars, Australian dollars, Euro and Malaysian Ringgit. These funds are then lent to the groug
companies.

The company partly uses natural hedges that arise from offsetting foreign currency lo
receivables and loan payables, and partly through the use of derivative financial instruments s
as forward contracts to hedge their exposure to foreign currency risk in local reporting curren

As at the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of monetary assets and mone;
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the company are

follows:
2016 2015

JPY SGD AUD EUR _JPY SGD AUD EUR MYR
US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$H000 US$000 US$H000
Non-derivative
financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 89,420 1 51 - 1,896 1,570 13 308
Loan receivables 24,876 41,019 32,566 49,402 59,350 33,168 29,528 36,883 46,486
Other receivables 39 139 90 34 47 4,719 82 51 5
Total 114,335 41,159 32,707 _ 49,436 61,293 39,457 29,623 37,242 46,491
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Loan payables (112,148) (40,493) (32,566) (427) (165,390) (11,078) (29,528) (87) -
Other payables (2,343) (165) (103) - (2,137) (155) (71) - -
Total (114,491) (40,658) _(32,669) (427) (167,527) _ (11,233) (29,599) (87) -
Net on balance
sheet position (156) 501 38__ 49,009 (106,234) 28,224 24 37,155 46,491
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

2016 2015
JPY SGD AUD EUR _JPY SGD AUD EUR MYR

US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
Effect of derivatives®
Assets 244 - - - 98,852 - - - -
Liabilities - - - (48,983) (3,974) (23.418) - (35,432) _ (46,978)
Net off balance

sheet position 244 - - (48,983) 94,878 (23,418) - (35,432) (46,978)

1 Foreign exchange derivatives are presented at notional value and interest rate swa
presented at net fair value position.

The sensitivity used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key manageme
personnel is 10%, which is the change in exchange rate that management deems reasol
possible which will affect outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary items at ye
end.

If the relevant foreign currencies strengthen by 10% against the functional currency of t
company, profit or loss will increase (decrease) by:

2016 2015
US$'000 US$'000
Japanese yen 9 (1,136)
Singapore dollar 50 481
Australian dollar 4 2
Euro 3 172
Malaysian Ringgit - (49)

If the relevant foreign currencies weakens by 10% against the functional currency of t
company, it would have an equal opposite effect on the amounts shown above, in the basis
all variables remaining constant.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

(ii)

Interest rate risk management

The company is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on inter
bearing liabilities and assets.

The company manages interest rate risk exposure partly by using natural hedges that arise
offsetting interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities and partly through the use of derivat
financial instruments such as interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging, where neces:
Under the interest rate swaps, the company agrees with other parties to exchange, at spec
intervals, the difference between the fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amou
calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. Interest differentials
accrued and recorded as adjustments to the interest expense relating to the hedged items.

In management’s opinion, there is no material impact on profit or loss arising from th
company'’s interest rate sensitivity as the interest rate risk exposure is managed using nat
hedge and the use of the derivatives financial instruments as mentioned above.

The table below summarises the range of interest rate for monetary financial instruments a
the end of reporting period:
Range of interest rates (%)

2016 2015
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.0001 to 0.0001 0.001 to 0.05
Loan receivables 0.45t0 3.74 0.43t04.24
Liabilities
Loan payables 0.07to 3.24 0.02 to 3.45
Off balance sheset
Interest rates swap 0.15t0 0.91 0.20t0 0.52
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resultir
in financial loss to the company. The company has adopted the policy of dealing only wi
creditworthy related counterparties and obtaining letters of guarantee from its holding compa
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from defaults.

The company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or
group of counterparties having similar characteristics, except that the company has signific
loan receivables from its group companies as disclosed in the accompanying notes to the finar
statements. The credit risk on cash, fixed deposits and derivative financial instruments is limi
because counterparties are banks with high credit rating assigned by international credit ra
agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the debtors fail to perform their obligatio
as at the end of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

All the company’s financial assets are neither past due nor materially impaired.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company is unable to meet its payment obligations when due,
that it is unable, on an ongoing basis, to borrow funds in the market on an unsecured, or e
secured basis at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed commitments.

The company monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequa
management to finance the company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations
cash flows. The company also maintains available undrawn credit facilities to ensure sufficie
liquid funds are maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table detail the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial asse
and liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
individual categories based on the earliest date on which the company can be required to pay.

table include both interest and principal cash flows. The adjustment column represents
possible future cash flows attributable to the instrument included in the maturity analysis whi
is not included in the carrying amount of the non-derivative financial instruments on the statem
of financial position.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Non-derivative financial instruments

2016

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Loan receivables

Other receivables

Total

Liabilities

Loan payables

Other payables

Total

Net liquidity gap

2015

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Loan receivables

Other receivables

Total

Liabilities

Loan payables

Other payables

Total

Net liquidity gap

On demand/
less than 1t03 3to12 Over
1 month months months 1year Adjustments Total
US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$000
89,472 - - - - 89,472
564,931 53,235 88,861 208,006 (22,671) 892,362
46 - - - - 46
654,449 53,235 88,861 208,006 _ (22,671) 981,880
411,369 45,389 102,370 434,215 (31,010) 962,333
2,472 - - - - 2,472
413,841 45,389 102,370 434,215 _ (31,010) 964,805
240,608 7,846 (13,509) (226,209) 8,339 17,075
3,787 - - - - 3,787
864,047 88,263 83,883 133,765 (2,662) 1,167,296
462 - - - - 462
868,296 88,263 83,883 133,765 (2,662) 1,171,545
417,795 92,564 197,938 448,536 (1,563) 1,155,270
2,747 - - - - 2,747
420,542 92,564 197,938 448,536 (1,563) 1,158,017
447,754  (4,301) (114,055) (314,771) (1,099) 13,528
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

The following table details the liquidity analysis for derivative financial instruments. The
company’s portfolio of derivative financial instrument comprise of interest rate swaps ar
forward contracts. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of

derivative instruments.

Derivativefinancial instruments

Less than 1to3 3to 12 Over
1 month months months 1 year Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
2016
Net settled:
- Inflow - - 244 - 244
- Outflow - (118) - - (118)
- (118) _ 244 - ___ 126
Gross settled:
- Inflow 48,329 - - - 48,329
- Outflow (48,999) - - - (48,999)
(670) - - - ___ (670)
2015
Net settled:
- Inflow - - 76 - 76
- Outflow - - - - -
- - 76 - 76
Gross settled:
- Inflow 162,397 47,187 - - 209,584
- Outflow (160,812) (46,598) - - (207,410)
1,585 589 - - 2,174
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

v)

The following table details the liquidity analysis for the company’s commitments. The table h:
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the commitments.

On demand/
less than 1to3
1 month months
US$'000 US$'000
2016
Commitments
(Note 21) 1,089,526 -
2015
Commitments
(Note 21) 1,015,859 -

3to 12 Over 1
months year Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

- 1,089,526

- 1,015,859

The company expects that not all of the undrawn loan commitments will be drawn before expi

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, current receivables and current paye
approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of the:
financial instruments. The fair values of other classes of financial assets and liabilities &
disclosed in the respective notes to financial statements.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

1. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms an
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quot

market prices;

2. the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models ba:
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current mark

transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments; and

3.  the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where st
prices are not available, discounted cash flow analysis is used, based on the applice
yield curve of the duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and optio

pricing models for optional derivatives.

The company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy, which :
described in Note 2, that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making tt

measurements.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value as at (US$'000)

2016 2015

Financial assets/

financial Fair value  Valuation technique(s)

liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  hierarchy and key inputs

Derivativefinancial instruments (see Note 9)

Interest rate swap 244 118 76 - Level 2 Discounted cash flows.
Future cash flows are
estimated based on
contractual rate
discounted at observable
yield curves at the end
of the reporting period.

Forward foreign - 670 2,174 - Level 2 Discounted cash flows.

exchange Future cash flows are

contracts estimated based on
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND
CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

(d)

There were no significant transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy duri
the financial year.

Except as detailed in the following table, management considers that the carrying amounts
financial assets and financial liabilities of the company recorded at amortised cost in the financ
statements approximate their fair value:

2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount __value
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Financial assets
Loan receivables
- fixed interest rate 24,271 24,489 29,414 30,124

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included above are categorisec
the level 2 and have been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models b
on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate t
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

Capital risk management policies and objectives
The company reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the company will be abl
continue as a going concern. The capital structure of the company comprises of issued capital,

payables and retained earnings.

There have been no material changes in the company’s overall strategy over management of ce
from prior year.
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5 HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED COMPANY TRANSACTIONS

The company is a subsidiary of Mitsui & Co., Ltd, incorporated in Japan, which is also the company’s ultim
holding company. Related companies in these financial statements refer to members of the ultimate hol
company’s group of companies.

Many of the company’s transactions and arrangements and terms thereof are arranged by or between me
of the group and the effects of these on the bases determined between the parties are reflected in these fir
statements. The intercompany balances are unsecured and repayable on demand unless stated other
the financial statements.

Significant intercompany transactions other than those disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the fina
statements are as follows:

2016 2015
US$ Uss$
With ultimate holding company:
Interest expense 2,561 854
With related companies:
Interest income (14,611,158) (13,947,601)
Interest expenses 2,371,739 2,736,277

6 OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Some of the company'’s transactions and arrangements and terms thereof are with related parties ar
effects of these on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial statements
balances are unsecured and repayable on demand unless stated otherwise in the financial statements

Significant related parties transactions other than those disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the fina

statements:
2016 2015
US$ Uss$
Interest income (179,604) (220,848)
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6 OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)
Compensation of directors and key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and key management during the year was as follows:

2016 2015
US$ Uss$
Short-term employee benefits 274,333 314,131

The company considers its directors as members of its key management.

The remuneration of directors and key management is determined by the ultimate holding company ha
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2016 2015

US$ US$
Cash and bank balances 51,975 14,289
Fixed deposits 89,419,937 3,772,722
Total 89,471,912 3,787,011

The above fixed deposits bear interest at a prevailing market rates for an average tenure of one
(2015 : one day).
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8 LOAN RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

US$ US$
Amortised cost:
Related companies (Note 5) 792,732,429 1,151,365,111
Related parties (Note 6) 12,556,530 15,931,052

805,288,959 1,167,296,163

Loan receivables in designated hedge accounting

relationships:
Related companies (Note 5) 86,122,536 -
Total 891,411,495 1,167,296,163
Analysed as:
Current 703,896,990 1,032,116,605
Non-current 187,514,505 135,179,558
Total 891,411,495 1,167,296,163

The loan receivables include;

1)  Secured loan receivables from related companies and related parties amounting to US$781,16:
(2015 : US$1,049,925,721). The loans are secured by letters of guarantee from the ultimate hol
company;

2) Unsecured loan receivables from the related companies and related parties amounting
US$110,249,369 (2015 : US$117,370,442).

Except for fixed interest rate loan receivables whereby fair value is disclosed in Note 4(c)(v), the carry
amounts of loan receivables approximate their fair values as they are at floating rates.
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9 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial derivatives are off-balance sheet financial instruments which include forward contracts for
purchase and sale of foreign currencies and interest rate swaps. The contract for underlying princ
amounts of these financial derivatives and their corresponding gross positive and negative fair values a
end of reporting period are analysed below.

Year-end Year-end Net
Notional positive negative fair value
principal fair value fair value gain/(loss)
US$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$

2016
Current
Derivativesin designated hedge

accounting relationships
Interest rate swap 87,885,206 244,006 (117,536) 126,470
Derivatives not in designated

hedge accounting relationships
Forward foreign exchange contracts 48,983,298 - (669,838) (669,838)
Total 136,868,504 244,006 (787,374) (543,368)
2015
Current
Derivativesin designated hedge

accounting relationships
Interest rate swap 8,307,718 76,570 - 76,570
Derivatives not in designated

hedge accounting relationships
Forward foreign exchange contracts 207,801,759 2,173,794 - 2,173,794
Total 216,109,477 2,250,364 - 2,250,364
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11

12

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Accrued interest

Prepaid facility arrangement fee
Prepaid expenses

Facility amortisation fee
Deposits

Others

OTHER ASSET

Club membership, at cost

EQUIPMENT

Cost:
At April 1, 2014
Addition
At March 31, 2015 and 2016

Accumulated depreciation:
At April 1, 2014
Depreciation for the year
At March 31, 2015
Depreciation for the year
At March 31, 2016

Carrying amount:
At March 31, 2016

At March 31, 2015

F-36

2016
Us$

950,825
2,333,258
6,314
1,817,732
34,570
11,085
5,153,784

2015
Uss$

411,370
2,619,592
7,172
1,999,502
33,642
17,165
5,088,443

c N
02
& ';

N
(0]
-
o
()]
w

Furniture
and fittings

Us$

36,535
6,968
43,503

25,822
6,718
32,540
3,967
36,507
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2016 2015

Uss$ Uss$
Amortised cost:
Ultimate holding company (Note 5) - 45,000,000
Related companies (Note 5) 386,820,599 449,111,406
Outside parties 565,652,612 652,773,990

952,473,211 1,146,885,396

Loan payablesin designated hedge accounting

relationships:
Outside parties 9,124,212 8,384,288
Total 961,597,423 1,155,269,684
Analysed as:
Current 554,134,911 706,656,896
Non-current 407,462,512 448,612,788
Total 961,597,423 1,155,269,684

Loan payables are unsecured, except for loans obtained from related companies amounting to
386,820,599 (2015 : US$445,649,946) and outside parties amounting to US$209,124,212 (201
US$208,307,718), which are guaranteed by the ultimate holding company.

14 OTHER PAYABLES

2016 2015

US$ US$
Accrued interest 735,747 416,940
Facility arrangement fee payable 2,153,163 2,153,163
Others 318,828 177,390
3,207,738 2,747,493

15 ISSUED CAPITAL
2016 2015 _2016 _2015
Number of ordinary shares US$ US$
Issued and fully paid:
Balance at beginning
and end of year 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000

The company has one class of ordinary shares which have no par value, carry one vote per share and
right to dividends as when declared by the company.
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16 INTEREST INCOME

Related companies and related parties (Notes 5 and 6)
Other parties
Total

17 INTEREST EXPENSE

Ultimate holding company and related companies (Note 5)
Other parties
Total

18 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Foreign currency exchange adjustment loss, net
Professional service fees

Guarantee fee

Others

Total

19 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

2016
US$

14,790,762
132,094
14,922,856

2016
US$

2,374,300

3,837,264
6,211,564

2016
US$

1,671,566
494,554
1,019
888,271
3,055,410

Profit before income tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Directors’ remuneration
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
Costs of defined contribution plans
Loss arising on adjustment for hedged items
in designated accounting relationships
Loss (Gain) arising on derivatives not in designated
hedge accounting relationships
Gain arising on derivatives in designated
hedge accounting relationships
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2016
Us$

274,333
593,015

43,825
126,470

669,838

(126,470)

2015
Uss$

14,168,449
133,591
14,302,040

2015
Us$

2,737,131
3,269,461
6,006,592

2015
Uss$

1,034,867
568,997
14,568
898,551

2,516,983

2015
Us$

314,131
624,115
41,052
76,570

(2,173,794)

(76,570)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2016 2015
US$ US$
Current year tax 1,178,869 654,497
Adjustments recognised this year
in relation to the current tax of prior years (369,063) (22,491)
Income tax expense 809,806 632,006

Income tax expense is calculated at the statutory rate of 17% (2015 : 17%) of the estimated assessable
for the year.

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

2016 2015
US$ US$
Profit before income tax 5,065,325 5,144,985
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17% 861,105 874,647
Effect of concessionary tax rate 317,764 (220,150)
Adjustments recognised this year
in relation to the current tax of prior years (369,063) (22,491)
Income tax expense 809,806 632,006

The company is awarded the Finance and Treasury Centre (“FTC") status in 2003 effective from Jul
2003. Under the FTC status, the company is exempted from withholding tax on interest payments on for
currency denominated borrowings from overseas banks and approved network companies, provided the
raised are used for the conduct of qualifying FTC activities.

Under the FTC status a concessionary tax of 10% on fee income received by the FTC from its subsidic

related companies and associates (approved network companies) for the provision of qualifying FTC sen
and qualifying activities conducted on own account.
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22

COMMITMENTS
a) Operating lease commitments:
2016 2015
US$ US$
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases 145,314 180,353

As at the end of the reporting period, the company has the following outstanding commitments:

2016 2015

uUss$ US$
Within one year 67,433 141,526
In the second to fifth years inclusive 55,028 94,497
122,461 236,023

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for office and apartment s
Operating leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years and rentals are fixed
3 years.

b)  Undrawn irrevocable credit lines
2016 2015
US$ Uss$
Undrawn irrevocable credit lines 1,089,525,525 1,015,859,129
Undrawn irrevocable credit lines comprise mainly agreements to provide credit facilities to relat
companies and related parties.
DIVIDENDS

On September 25, 2015, a dividend of US$0.30 per share (total dividend US$4,500,000) was declarec
paid to shareholders in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2015.

On September 25, 2014, a dividend of US$0.58 per share (total dividend US$8,700,000) was declarec
paid to shareholders in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2014.
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ISSUERS

REGISTERED OFFICE OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF
MITSUI & CO.,LTD. MITSUI & CO. FINANCIAL SERVICES (ASIA) LTD.
1-3, Marunouchi 1-chome 80 Robinson Road
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8631 #25-00 Singapore 068898
GUARANTOR

REGISTERED OFFICE OF
MITSUI & CO.,LTD.
1-3, Marunouchi 1-chome
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8631

ISSUING AND PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT, CALCULATION AGENT,
FISCAL AGENT AND TRANSFER AGENT

Citibank, N.A., London Branch
13th Floor, Citigroup Centre
Canada Square, Canary Wharf
London E14 5L.B

REGISTRAR

Citigroup Global Markets Deutschland AG
Reuterweg 16
60323 Frankfurt am Main
Germany



Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Citigroup Centre
Canada Square
Canary Wharf

London E14 5LB

Goldman Sachs International
Peterborough Court
133 Fleet Street
London EC4A 2BB

J.P. Morgan Securitiesplc
25 Bank Street
Canary Wharf

London E14 5JP

Mizuho International plc
Mizuho House
30 Old Bailey
London EC4M 7AU

MUFG SecuritiesEMEA plc
Ropemaker Place
25 Ropemaker Street
London EC2Y 9AJ

Nomura Singapore Limited
10 Marina Boulevard #36-01

MarinaBay Financial Centre Tower 2

Singapore 018983

Daiwa Capital M arkets Europe Limited
5 King William Street
London EC4AN 7AX

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited
Levels 17, HSBC Main Building
1 Queen's Road Central
Hong Kong

Merrill Lynch International
2 King Edward Street
London EC1A 1HQ

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
25 Cabot Square, Canary Wharf
London E14 4QA

Nomura International plc
1 Angel Lane
London EC4R 3AB

SMBC Nikko Capital Markets Limited
One New Change
London EC4AM 9AF



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To Mitsui & Co., Ltd. To Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC Deloitte & ToucheLLP
Shinagawa Intercity Tower C 6 Shenton Way, OUE Downtown 2
15-3, Konan 2-chome #33-00
Minato-ku, Tokyo 108-6221 Singapore 068809

LEGAL ADVISERS

To Mitsui & Co., Ltd. To Mitsui & Co. Financial Services (Asia) Ltd.
in respect of Japanese law in respect of Singapore law
Baker & McKenzie Allen & Gledhill LLP
(Gaikokuho Joint Enterprise) One Marina Boulevard #28-00
Ark Hills Sengokuyama Mori Tower 28F Singapore 018989

9-10, Roppongi 1-chome
Minato-ku, Tokyo 106-0032

To the Dealers
in respect of English law

Gaikokuho Kyodo-Jigyo Horitsu Jimusho Linklaters
Meiji Yasuda Building 10F
1-1, Marunouchi 2-chome
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005



MITSUI&CO.

Linklaters Business Services
One Silk Street
London EC2& 8HQ





